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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board") of directors (the “Directors”)
of China Minsheng DIT Group Limited (the “Company”), | am
pleased to report the audited consolidated results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

In 2018, there was a great-leap-forward development in the
Company’s business. The revenue generated by our main
business grew 145% on a year on year basis. The growth in
business income, profit, contract value and other critical
operating indices sped up significantly. The strategic
arrangement of nationwide investment is almost complete. The
advantages brought by scale has emerged. Overall, things are
looking up. Green construction technology parks have been
established in 22 provinces and 48 cities, laying a solid foundation
for the Company’s sustainable development. Six new technology
parks are under construction, and they are located in Haikou,
Jiaozuo, lJiaozhou, Huai'an, Xiangtan and Yuxi. Four technology
parks have gone into operation recently, and they are located in
Hefei, Foshan, Jiaozuo and Xiangtan. We now have 53 production
lines. The number of the Company’s patents has topped our
industry for the past four years, and we were the only enterprise
that has been conferred on the title of Intellectual Property
Advantageous Enterprise by the State Intellectual Property Office
in the prefabricated construction industry.

For 2019, the market size of prefabricated construction industry
is.projected to reach RMB500 billion. The development of
prefabricated construction industry has entered the era of
economies of scale. The Company will position itself as “a high-
tech group whose core business is to offer integrated intelligent
construction solutions”. We are dedicated to implement the “5
Drawins” principle to the next level by () expanding the scale of
development (“a sizable Drawin”); (i) improving the quality of
development (“an efficient Drawin”); (i) perfecting management
system (“a standardised Drawin”); (iv) conducting R&D (“an
intelligent Drawin”); and (v) implementing synergistic
development (“an ecological Drawin”). We want to take
advantage of the above-mentioned measures to achieve our
goals, namely, lifting our status in the industry in an all-round
way, increasing our profitability continuously and becoming the
most competitive enterprise in the industry.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to the staff for their hard work and
dedication during the past year. | would also like to express our
gratitude to all shareholders, investors and other business
partners for their continuing support and trust to the Company.

By order of the Board of

China Minsheng DIT Group Limited
Yin Jun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENW R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Prefabricated Construction Has Entered an Era of Mature
and Stable Development

In 2018, our country seized the opportunity of the new industrial
revolution. New concept of development was implemented. The
transition and conversion of momentum sped up. The
development of new industry has been taken to a much higher
level. Actual strength is the key of prefabricated construction
industry in this new era. Supportive policies have been published
to stimulate the development of the industry throughout the
country. New enterprises of the industry mushroomed. Cost
control, application of digital technologies and engineering
procurement construction have become the focus of the
development of the industry. Prefabricated construction market
is changing from rapid growth period to an era that focuses on
premium quality, technology and management abilities.

Our Country Devotes Major Efforts to Support

Prefabricated Construction

Two major goals have been proposed in the Action Plan for the
- Thirteenth Five-Year Prefabricated Construction published by the
~ Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development (MOHURD).
. The prefabricated buildings to new buildings ratio in 2020 will be
“iover 15%. The implementation ratios of prefabricated
- construction in first-, second- and third-tier areas will be over
‘“20%,‘ 15% and 10% respectively. In terms of exemplary cities,
over 50 exemplary cities, over 200 industrial bases, over 500
\exempiary projects and over 30 technology innovation bases will
be establlshed up to 2020, aiming to bring their exemplary and
Ieadmg roles into full blossom. According to the said goals, 31
‘*provmces/mummpal|t|es have unveiled their goals and relevant
\\support}v; policies one after another, and a well-rounded trend
f development has formed.
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Summary of Nationwide Prefabricated Construction Policy for &2BE&&E™
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Each Province and City:

Region
B

Policy
BE

BERE W& ()

KEAEZERRBE -

Developmental Target
BERAE

Hunan

W

Hunan
Changsha

MR

Opinion Of Accelerating
Implementation For Development
Of Prefabricated Construction By
The General Office Of The
People’s Government Of Hunan
Province

CREE ARBTH BRI
RIEERAAREFRNERE
")

Notice Of Further Promotion For
Development Of Prefabricated
Construction By The General
Office Of The People’s
Government Of Changsha City

(EXTARBTHRERENE
—HHEEREARZEERNE
)

By 2020, the proportion of prefabricated construction of the core
cities from provinces, municipalities and states as a whole in new
buildings will reach over 30%, of which that of core city area of
three cities, being Changsha City, Zhuzhou City and Xiangtan City,
will reach over 50%.

BT -TF 2EMIMNBOMT R EE(GREEELPIE
F30%IA L - B & RMT - REm =P O R EE
50% A E o

Prefabrication technology for construction with single building
prefabrication assembly rate not below 50% in principle is adopted
in all of the commodity housing projects on the newly granted
lands. Actively promoted area: for the area beyond third ring lane,
from 2018 to 2020, the proportion of constructed area using
prefabrication technology by the commodity housing projects on
the newly granted lands each year is no less than 40%; from 2021
to 2025, such proportion will be no less than 60%. Proactively
promoted area: Wangcheng District, Changsha County (other than
Jingkai District of Changsha), Liuyang City, Ningxiang City; from
2018 to 2020, the proportion of constructed area using
prefabrication technology by the commodity housing projects on
the newly granted lands each year is no less than 30%, from 2021
t0 2025, such proportion will be no less than 40%.
?‘Fﬂ LM mFEEE 2R ARE RN ETRE  EREsEE
@ETJ?E”JLWEEECSO% o FEfRMEHE R ZIBARUASN R
T-N\FEZT_FTF  §FEHHEMOEREEBRKARRENXE
{ipE S ed:n)=2=2 ﬁ%tWUT\{E_EBMO% e Sl i S
ZLEBITMER 60% - SRENEERE - EWE - RAB(RPLEHE
BRON) - BIFGT  EHH  RZE-NFEZZZF | FFEHH
BV R o 5 1E B BRA S Al = R 2 S 1 B EL T AR L IR R 30%
RZZBZ—FE22F-RF - ZHHITER40% ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEENWE D (E)
Region Policy Developmental Target
& BX BERBE
Zhejiang Opinion Of Accelerating By 2020, the proportion of prefabricated construction in new
Hangzhou Implementation For Development  buildings in Shangcheng Disrict, Xiacheng District, Jianggan District,
Of Green Construction and Gongshu District, West Lake District, Binjiang District, Hangzhou
Construction Industrialization By ~ Economic Development Zone are deemed as key promoted areas,
The General Office Of The Xiaoshan District, Yuhang District, Fuyang District, Linan District,
People’s Government Of Dajiangdong Industry Cluster Zone as actively promoted areas and
Hangzhou City Chun'an County, Tonglu County, Jiande City will reach 30% and
more as proactively promoted areas.
T AN CMNTARBAERABANE NERRE - THE I #HERE  fmiE 8L - fMNEE
EGERENMBETIE RN HERASHEEME FLUE SR 5HE - BERE- X
ERER) IREXEZRAEGEEME  Z2%  WES BEWAR
g R M- oTF - REXNBEENERENLHIED
30% M PA E o
Jiangsu Notice Of Printing The Opinion Of  The total area of the prefabricated construction projects of newly
Nanjing Further Promotion For constructed buildings reached over 3 million sq.m. in 2017 and the
Implementation of Development proportion of prefabricated construction in new buildings reached
Of Prefabricated Construction By over 15%, subsequently growing year by year; by 2020, the
The General Office Of The proportion of prefabricated construction in new buildings of the
People’s Government Of Nanjing  whole city will reach over 30%.
City
L& R R (ARMARBRNHAREDNER R-ZT—tF FRIERERARLEELEEED00&ETH
RN E - PHEERR A EE *LAL HENBERGTERENLOER15% U L - BEZRF
EREBERABAN) Re A EFemERAEEGTEERENLHIET30%
AR -
Chongaing Opinion Of Implementation For  Each district of the main city and Fuling District, Yongchuan District,
Intensified Development Of Nanchuan District, Qijiang District, Rongchang District are identified
Fabricated Construction By The as key development areas and Wanzhou District, Qianjiang District,
General Office Of The People’s  Changshou District, Jiangjin District, Hechuan District, Dazu District,
Government Of Chongging Bishan District, Tongliang District, Tongnan District as designated as
Municipality active development areas so that the proportion of prefabricated
construction in new buildings of the whole city will seek to have
reached over 15% by 2020 and reach over 30% by 2025.
BE (EETARBRNHAEBNRA BPREEIHSERZTEE KIE- Blile- - BIE KEEAE
NEREEAZENERER) HEEREY BNE BIE RSE-I2E - AIE - KB

B 2R ARE EERABEERERED  HFH_FT_F
i%ﬁ%@ﬂﬁ@%@%ﬁ%ﬁ@% ATE B A EE B 2 15% BA £ - 2
ZERFETI0% AL -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Policy
BUR

BERE W& ()

Developmental Target
BERBE

Guangdong
Shenzhen

BEERFYI

Shandong

IR

Hubei Wuhan

WAL E

Notice Of Accelerating Promotion
For Prefabricated Construction
By Housing and Construction
Bureau Of Shenzhen Municipality

CRINTEEMERBER IR
HEE SR A SR SRR A

Opinion of Implementation (in
consistence with Guo Ban Fa
(2016) Document No. 71) For
Intensified Development Of
Fabricated Construction By The
General Office Of The People’s
Government Of Shandong
Province
(UREARBNHABEEANE
BB 4% B2 [2016]71 5% ST K ) B
RERNZENERER)

Notice Of Further Accelerating
Development Of Prefabricated
Construction By The People’s
Government Of Wuhan City

(RUZR™ ARBT R E — 200
RER A LR HEA)

The implemented projects of prefabricated construction are
identified as: those of newly transferred land for commercial use;
admitted to “13th Five-Year” Commencement Plan (including the
prefabricated construction projects such as Penghu District
transformation and city refreshment) for separate buildings, and
represented the talented housing and protective housing projects
which had not obtained Construction Land Planning Permit up to 27
June 2016.

AEEEEERNANRZENIER & MEHENEEABIER A
[+=h] RIS (EMPRUEGENNMERSERIER) B UK
B BEE—ZE - R"EANAZ T tHBRBEGERAMR BT
BOWASFEFIREFEEFRFEER -

By 2020, the proportion of prefabricated construction will reach
over 30% in new buildings of Jinan and Qingdao Cities and reach
over 25% and 15% in other districted cities and counties (cities)
respectively; by 2025, such proportion will reach over 40%.

- -TF FELREEMREAZEEHNERELIES
30% A I - Eﬁﬁaxliiﬁkmiﬂ%(m) D Bl S 25% f 15% A F & &
“TRF OES40% AL -

At the end of 2017, for housing construction, the proportion of area
of new prefabricated construction accounted for no less than 10%
of area of new buildings; from 2018 to 2020, the said proportion is
seeking to progressively increase by 10% year by year; up to the
end of 2020, such proportion will seek to have been no less than
40%.

RIFB—tFE FERENEREAREERGEFENEZESL
EELHITERI0% : RZZE—NFE2EZFTFF - Latthfl
FRFRIE10% : B ZFFFK + DFZLEOITER40% °
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

f=5 LA

BIEENWmEk D (&)

Region Policy Developmental Target

B B ZEBEE

Tianjin Notice Of Implementation Plan During pilot promotion period (2018 to 2020), prefabricated

RE

Beijing

Bl

10

For Intensified Development of
Prefabricated Construction By
The General Office Of The
People’'s Government Of Tianjin
Municipality

(REMARBUSHABEHEEA
RANBERERXNEZLEETE SR
EOpEERSI)

Opinion Of Implementation For
Accelerating Development Of
Prefabricated Construction By
The General Office Of The
People’s Government Of Beijing
Municipality
<<it§‘ﬁAEBZH?))$"E?E§EADD
RERFKEANEENERER)

construction is adopted in the qualified new public buildings while
it should also be adopted in Central City Area, Core Area in Binhai
New District and Commodity Residence in Central Ecological Zone.
During popularization promotion period (2021 to 2025),
prefabricated construction will be adopted in all of the qualified
new construction projects on the state-owned construction land
within the whole city.

RABEERER(ZZE-N\FE_ZT_TF)
1IM¢E’J%BFE%HX iEa ==

BN AHEEAE
AR E BT AZ L B A L

A REEEEIFARREARE REMEER(ZT=—
$§ ToRF) 2mHENREERAMIEERE AE KT
R E AR EE -

In 2018, the realized proportion of prefabricated construction of
area of new buildings reached over 20%; by 2020, such realized
proportion will reach over 30%, which will facilitate the formation of
a series of enterprises with scale of production for design,
commencement and components.

BRER AR EGFEREmMAEM L PIZD 20%
—TF - BRZLLOBEDIZ0% A L - B4
nEbF R

RZE—N\F &
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FRET BT - e
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Speeding Up an In-depth Arrangement in Several
Provinces

The Company has signed eight investment agreements for the
following cities: Dongli (Tianjing), Wuxi (Jiangsu), Bengbu (Anhui),
Xuzhou (Jiangsu), Wen'an (Hebei), Weishi (Henan), Jinhua
(Zhejiang) and Changde (Hunan). Eight lands in the following cities
have been delisted: Mujiang (Chongging), Huai'an (Jiangsu),
Xiangtan (Hunan), Jiaozuo (Henan), Jiangxia Wuhan (Hubei), Dongli
(Tianjing), Lin"an Hangzhou (Zhejiang) and Haikou (Hainan). The
direct investment arrangement of Green construction technology
parks over 22 provinces and 48 cities has been basically
completed.

® Established region A BE
Region to be established %6 B 12

> Nationwide Map
Z2EME

BEEWwR D ()

MERZEZEREMR

RAFTTRERE AL DHIRRZRE )T
RS - ZEWE OTHGEMN  db Xk A
R NI RARER - TR LR -

DHRBEET TEHER  HEME TR
B HIERURTE - RIZRE - MIMMER -
BEEA - REREMREEZE2 E8HNE
BIREMRENRTTK
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
B W R DM (&)

Green Development Concept HEREES

The Company formulates its standards and rules with energy A BB R BIEET LB (RAHAMIEERIBE -
conservation and environmental protection in mind. New  FalEALREM - BERAKFBEEMN  Blha#
technologies (in terms of renewable energy, water recycling, anti- ¥ 4i7 FIEK IR 3 AT Z R 10T « bRt R 3 a0 48 A
fog maintenance and low noise), new materials and new  TIHTH|EIE : () HRPEAEE : ()IZSERL (i)
equipment have been used for the following purposes: (i) cutting  FIRGZEER : (WHERE  RWVISFEITE[Z
cost and improving efficiency; (ii) increasing production; (iii)  HEp BIEE - —E— N\F - FHETEDSREEGS
realising green construction of factories; (iv) green (& SRI280 « £/ - W)‘I‘I 5&22 $E - E
manufacturing; and (v) establishing a “zero emission” technology % : SR EREEAE - 5 72 N N TR
park. The construction of six new technology parks began in & « #85& -

2018, and they are located in Haikou, Jiaozuo, liaozhou, Huai'an,

Xiangtan and Yuxi. Four technology parks went into production,

and they are located in Hefei, Foshan, Jiaozuo and Xiangtan.

» The Aerial View of Jiaozuo Technology Park » The Aerial View of Jiaozhou Technology Park
EIERIRE S E BINEHRE S E

» The Aerial View of Yuxi Technology Park
FEREE SHE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The Company will develop its critical technologies for all the
aspects of its system with the strategic goal of “Green
Development” (as proposed by the State) in mind. These
technologies consensus improvements with material selection,
modular design, energy-saving design and so forth. Both the
upstream and downstream of industry chain and product life
cycle were taken into consideration when developing such green
critical technologies. In terms of green manufacturing, the
Company is devoted to taking clean production and energy
conservation technologies to the next level. We treasure the
reduction, the environmental treatment and the recycling of
“Three Wastes” (waste gas, waste water and residue) and
relevant comprehensive utilisation technologies. Clean
manufacturing with inspection of carbon footprint has been
implemented according to 1ISO14064. Our plan covers technology
R&D (for automatic assembly, intelligent alignment and control),
improving welding, maintenance and other processes with a high
degree of energy consumption, the R&D of highly efficient and
intelligent equipment and production lines for energy
conservation, analysing limiting and banning the use of harmful
substance and the management requirements of chemicals,
proposing how to improve our techniques and coming up with a
complete set of manufacturing solutions that produce no toxic
material and waste.

BERE W& ()

AAEZER [HERR] MEKAE  ERE%
FIAE K —ESRMELERE - B
RS2 RN ECRFHRREN  REEE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BERE W& ()

EMPC Full Industry Chain

By planning the coverage of the whole cycle of projects, fully
coordinating engineering, manufacture, procurement and
construction, we aim to eradicate common failings in the quality
of conventional construction and improve any fragmented
management for engineering, procurement and construction are
the major methods for the followings purposes: (i) making the
most out of engineering to improve quality and cut costs; (ii)
minimising consumption for every link in our production chain;
and (jii) achieving the goal of “Super Quality, Amazing Speed and
Competitive Cost”.

The Company’s EMPC industry chain system has won the bidding
of the Greenland Intercity Space Station Project located in
Changsha, Hunan Province. It is the first high-rise prefabricated
building with a height of 130 metres in Hunan Province, and it is
also the highest commercial residential building in China. It took
only six months from the start of the construction of the
Incubator of Cultural and Creative Industries in Malanshan,
Changsha to its decoration. The “Malanshan Speed” and "Drawin
Speed” have been established and well-received by our industry.

il ‘\/iew of the Greenland Intercity Space Station Project

uhIR B R E

EMPC 2 E##

MBIEE 2 BEARE Y TN HBFR  ®iE - K
BRBESEERE  BEAKBEREREEN
BEER NER KB IR AEEE
X BEATIHEENETEFR () ToEER
FHEREANER  (VEEERSEREANERE
PEERE: R(NVER mmE - BITH - | KA -

ARBZEMPCEXHER AT R AEERYD
ARUIER = UATA B - RHE A 5 — (B 130 KK
BeEREAZEEEEE  AETEARER
BmEEREAZ&  RASHUXRIEZKCE
REMESIIRRERIMNER @A - 8BIET [F
WILERE | M TRFCRE ] - B ERLR -

» The Aerial View of Malanshan Project

SRR REKE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Achievements in Intelligent Equipment

The Company now is able to manufacture the complete set of
equipment for our prestressed composite slab production lines
by itself, leading to a massive increase in production efficiency.
We have made some technological breakthrough in machines for
processing cloth, moulding and so forth. Eight sets of 62 pieces
of equipment were made by ourselves in 2018, and the general
assembly of the equipment was completed as well. The general
assembly and testing of seven new products were completed in
the same year. We are able to mass-produce these new
products, thanks to which our R&D cycle is 50% shorter than that
of our competitors.

#!iiinﬁ.ﬁ

P e w e

» Composite Slab Production Equipment » Moulding Machine
BEMRINEERE BERSEA

BEREN W& ()

BREHEHR
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MBS KBERSTEERE - R THEHE
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BERE W& ()

Our Technological Innovations Were Recognised by the
State For Multiple Times

The Company was awarded the 2018 Hunan Innovative and
Pioneering Technology Investment Project, Hunan Five Top-100
Technological Innovation Project, Cellular Network Development
Provincial Project, Enterprise Technologically Innovative and
Pioneering Team Provincial Project and Intellectual Property
Rights Registration for Innovation Provincial Project. The
Company was also awarded the following three municipal
scientific research projects: 2018 Changsha Great Technological
Project, Municipal Mobile Internet Industrial Project and Municipal
Patent-intensive Enterprise Project. The Company focuses on our
competitive area of prefabricated construction design, and a
product system that composed mainly of construction project
design and technological design consultation has been formed.
Our business will make use of digitalized technological platform,
and a digitalized system featuring BIM design platform, mobile
App and PC digital centre E-Hub is taking shape.

The Company is the only enterprise being conferred with the title
of “Intellectual Property Advantageous Enterprise” by the State
Intellectual Property Office. Our intelligent equipment company’s
management system is certified to ISO 9001, ISO 18001 and ISO
14001, and the intelligent equipment company was awarded
“Quality Credit AAA Grade Enterprise of Hunan Province”,
namely, the enterprise with the highest level quality credit.
Hangzhou Green Construction Technology Park was elected one
of the first batch of the construction industry demonstration
bases in Zhejiang Province. Yuxi Green Construction Technology
Park was elected a prefabricated construction industry base in
Yunnan Province.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Business Prospects

On 28 February, 2019, the Group’s prefabricated component
subcontractor sales amount to RMB1,808.1 million, among which
RMB564.1 million has been recorded as revenue, while
RMB1,244.0 million has not yet satisfied the requirement for
revenue recognition.

The growth of construction industry in 2019 is expected to
continue to slow down. Propelled by the State, the growth of
facility construction will be high, while the growth rate and the
percentage of housing construction will drop further. However,
the Group believes that the prefabricated construction market
will expand, the scale of which will reach RMB500 billion in 2019
with a growth rate of over 30%. The prefabricated construction
has officially entered the era of large scale production.

The competition in prefabricated construction industry will
become even more fierce. The earliest competitors entered the
industry will go into operation next year, and their management
is improving. The Company will make full use of our mature
products, sound management system and cutting-edge
technologies for the following purposes: (i) establishing a close
customer relationship; (ii) increasing the market share of our
products; and (iii) raising the revenue scale of the areas that have
gone into operation.

In 2019, the Company will focus on intelligent construction to
explore and establish an ecosystem that combines modern
information technologies with buildings in a widespread and
profound fashion. Our mature technologies will go on the market.
State-of-the-art technologies will stimulate development. By
establishing a high-tech group whose core business is providing
an integrated solution for intelligent construction, creating an
excellent industrial and technological ecosystem and building
Drawin cloud computing and cloud serving, we offer
environmentally friendly, energy-saving and intelligent high-rise
apartments with excellent quality and competitive price. We are
dedicated to managing the critical businesses of our core
business ecological chain. The management structure of our
enterprise’s ecological chain will be taken to the next level. All of
these measures will realize a smooth operation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BERE W& ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Review of Results

The Group was principally engaged in the research and
development, design, manufacture and sale of assembled
building prefabricated units, licensing and property investment in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately 1.45 times
from approximately HK$216.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to approximately HK$530.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The significant increase in revenue
were mainly attributable to (i) the utilized capacity of technology
parks for the manufacturing and sale of prefabricated units
continuously increased during the year and (ii) the revenue
generated from granting licenses has significantly increased in
result of increasing number of customers during the year. As a
result, the Group recorded sales revenue for year ended 31
December 2018 of prefabricated units of approximately HK$423.6
million (2017: approximately HK$173.6 million), licensing of
approximately HK$84.9 million (2017: approximately HK$32.7
million), sales of equipment of approximately HK$18.6 million
(2017: approximately HK$5.8 million), consulting service income
of approximately HK$1.2 million (2017: approximately HK$2.9
million) and rental income from investment properties of
approximately HK$1.9 million (2017: approximately HK$1.6
million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Cost of sales

The Group recorded cost of sales of approximately HK$372.1
million (2017: approximately HK$207.6 million) for the year ended
31 December 2018. The increase was primarily attributable by
the increase in sales of prefabricated units.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group increased by approximately
HK$149.1 million from approximately HK$9.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to approximately HK$158.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018. The gross profit margin
increased to 29.8% in 2018 from 4.1% in 2017, which was mainly
attributable to (i) the significant reduction in cost due to the
increase in scale of production in the year and (ii) the revenue
generated from granting licenses significantly increased by 1.6
times from approximately HK$32.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2017 to approximately HK$84.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Other income

The other income of the Group decreased by approximately
HK$3.5 million from approximately HK$7.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to approximately HK$3.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018. Other income mainly comprised
of (i) interest income arose from bank deposits of approximately
HK$2.4 million and (ii) others arose from surcharges return
approximately HK$1.2 million.

Other gains — net

For the year ended 31 December 2018, other gains — net
amounting to approximately HK$7.2 million mainly comprised of
(i) net exchange gains amounting to approximately HK$4.5
million; and (ii) net gains on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss amounting to approximately HK$2.8 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses amounted to approximately
HK$34.7 million (2017: approximately HK$17.4 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2018, such expenses are directly related to
the sale of prefabricated units and such increase was in line with
the increase in sales revenue.

Administrative expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the administrative
expenses decreased by 31.0% to approximately HK$109.7 million
from approximately HK$159.1 million in 2017, which was mainly
attributable to the staff costs decreased by 60% to approximately
HK$33.4 million in 2018 from approximately HK$83.9 million in
2017 and the remaining decrease is attributable to other general
administrative expenses, such as rental expenses, entertainment,
travelling expenses and office expenses etc.

Finance costs

Finance costs of approximately HK$9.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 represented (i) the interest expenses of
approximately HK$13.7 million for the bank borrowings; and (ii)
capitalisation of HK$4.5 million interest in plant under
development for prefabricated construction business for the
year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2018, the cash and bank balances of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$110.8 million (2017:
approximately HK$582.5 million) and the current ratio of the
Group is 1.1 (2017: 3.3).

As at 31 December 2018, the borrowings of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$496.6 million (31 December 2017: HK$119.6
million) and the gearing ratio (expressed as a percentage of total
borrowings over total assets) is 14.8% (2017: 4.2%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Dividend Policy, provided the Group is profitable and
without affecting the normal operations of the Group, the
Company may consider to declare and pay dividends to the
shareholders of the Company. In deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall
take into account, among others, the operating results, cash
flow, financial condition and capital requirements of the Group
and the interests of the shareholders of the Company.
Declaration of dividend by the Company is also subject to the
Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-Laws of the Company and any
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to
time and there can be no assurance that a dividend will be
proposed or declared in any specific periods.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 784 (2017:
1,013) employees excluding the Directors. 778 (2017: 1,007) of
them worked in Mainland China and 6 (2017: 6) of them worked
in Hong Kong, China.

Employees are basically remunerated based on the nature of
their job and their performance as well as the prevailing market
trend. Other employee benefits include mandatory provident
fund, medical benefits and year end discretionary bonus.
Following a people-oriented approach, we implement a
systematic recruitment, training and incentive platform, providing
internal fuel for the growth of the Company. In doing so, we
create a desirable workplace for our employees to develop and
flourish.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no significant assets
pledged to banks to secure general banking facilities and bank
loan granted to the Group, except for the one as disclosed in the
Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2018, the Group was not involved in any
material litigation threatened against the Group.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yin Jun ("Mr. Yin"), aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director on 3 July 2015. Mr. Yin is currently the chairman of the
Board, the general manager and vice chairman of the board of
Tianjin China Minsheng Drawin Technology Limited, chairman
and CEO of China Minsheng Drawin Technology Industry Limited,
director and general manager of China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd
and director of F{ T & B A7) (CRIC Ltd*). Before joining
the Company, Mr. Yin has more than 20 years of experience in
building and real estate industry in big state-owned enterprise
and held important management positions. He has served as
General Manager and Chairman of the Board of FiZ2HBH =&
/A7) (No. 3 Construction Group of China State Construction
Fifth Engineering Division Corporation., Ltd*). Prior to that, Mr.
Yin has served as General Manager of Fi{=fMibE Q&) (Xinhe
Real Estate Co., Ltd*), Deputy General Manager of #i2H BB
‘A7 (China State Construction Fifth Engineering Division
Corporation., Ltd*) and other important management positions.
Mr. Yin graduated in 1995 with a Bachelor degree in Engineering.
He obtained a Master degree in Engineering in 1997 and he
earned his Doctorate degree in Management in 2014.

Mr. Yang Hongwei (“Mr. Yang"), aged 53, was appointed as an
executive Director on 1 July 2018. Mr. Yang is currently the chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Yang has worked in
various government departments, state-owned enterprises and
private corporations in the past 29 years. He served as a Deputy
General Manager of Suntown Technology Group Co. Ltd. and an
Assistant General Manager of Wuling Power Corporation Ltd..
Prior to that, Mr. Yang was a member of a Standing Committee of
Hunan Gongaingtuan Organisation* (A5 E# &%) and was a
Minister of Ministry of Qingnong* (% Z3#F). Mr. Yang graduated
from Beijing Sport University and obtained a bachelor degree in
Education. He then obtained a master degree of Public
Management from National University of Defense Technology in
2007.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Peng Xiongwen (“Mr. Peng”), aged 49, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 1 July 2018. Mr. Peng is currently the
chief financial officer of Tianjin China Minsheng Drawin
Technology Co, Limited a company incorporated in the PRC with
limited liability as the indirect controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Peng was the Deputy General Manager in KunMing
Jia Li Ze Tourism Culture Co. Ltd. from October 2012 to December
2017. He has been a member of the Association of International
Accountants since July 2012. Mr. Peng graduated from Tianjin
College of Commerce (currently known as Tianjin University of
Commerce) in 1992 and obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
accounting. He then obtained a master’s degree of EMBA from
Xiamen University in 2009.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Hongging (“Mr. Jiang"), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 2 February 2015. Mr.
Jiang holds a Ph.D. in Engineering majoring in Architectural
Design and Theory from South China University of Technology.
He also holds a Master of Engineering Degree majoring in
Landscape Architecture Design and a Bachelor of Engineering
Degree majoring in Urban Planning from Chongging Institute of
Architecture and Engineering. Mr. Jiang had also been studied in
Ecole d' Architecture Parisla-Seine in Paris, France. He is a
Professorate Senior Urban Planner and a Certified Planner of the
People’s Republic of China. Mr. Jiang presided over and
participated in a number of major engineering technology or
research projects at national, provincial and ministerial level; and
he has a certain extent of study in Xiongan New Area, China’s
Hainan Free Trade Zone, Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau-Bay
Area, urban and rural development, urban renewal and health
(pension) industry. Mr. Jiang was an executive director of the
Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (stock
Code: 8085) from 1 December 2012 to 29 September 2017. Mr.
Jiang was also an executive director of Birmingham International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2309) from 30 August 2011 to 20
January 2012.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Lee Chi Ming ("Mr. Lee"), aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 December 2014. He is
a fellow member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (“ACCA”") and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Mr. Lee graduated from Hong Kong
Polytechnic. He also holds a LLB degree from University of
London and a master degree in Business Administration from
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lee has over 25 years' experience
in the fields of accounting, regulations and asset management.
He held various senior positions with the Securities and Futures
commission (“SFC”), Hong Kong since 1995, as director of
Licensing, director of Corporate Planning and director of Finance
and Administration. Mr. Lee retired from SFC in July 2014 and
joined as director and managing partner of Benington Capital Ltd,
an asset management company which manages a Greater China
focused long-short equity fund for professional investors. Mr. Lee
is an independent non-executive director of Huatai Securities
Company Limited (stock code: 6886) which is listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Ma Lishan ("Mr. Ma"), aged 68, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 28 June 2016. He has
extensive experience in operation and management of modern
large-scale corporations and listed companies. Mr. Ma graduated
from Beijing Foreign Studies University in the PRC in 1975. Mr. Ma
served in various positions such as chairman, executive director,
general manager in certain large-scale joint ventures and Great
Wall Wine under China Oil & Foodstuff Corporation. From January
1996 to June 2003, Mr. Ma served as an executive director of
China Foods Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 506). From May 1997 to June 2003, Mr. Ma served as
an executive director and the managing director of China Foods
Limited. From June 2000 to June 2003, Mr. Ma served as the
deputy general manager of China Foods Import and Export
(Group) Co., Ltd. From June 2008 to January 2009, Mr. Ma was an
executive director of Sino Resources Group Limited (now known
as Elife Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 223). From March 2008 to present, he is
an independent non-executive director of Silver Base Group
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 886). From 2 August 2009 to present, he is an independent
non-executive director of Sunac China Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1918). From
September 2010 to August 2012, he was also the executive
director, managing director and chairman of Hao Tian Resources
Group Limited (now known as Hao Tian Development Group
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Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
474). He was the senior consultant in Hao Tian Development
Group Limited from August 2012 to August 2016. From March
2016 to present, he is also an independent non-executive
director of SRE Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1207). From August 2016 to present, he is
an independent non-executive director of Huarong International
Financial Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 993).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Dayou (“Mr. Yu"), aged 57, was appointed as chief
technology officer of the Company on 1 May 2016. Mr. Yu has
over 28 years of experience in architectural design and property
industry. He has held technical management positions as Deputy
General Manager of Hunan Office of China Poly Property* (7 &
RFHE IR A 7)) and General Manager of Hunan Architectural
Design Institute. Mr. Yu graduated from architectural profession
university in 1989. He has led or involved in formulating
numerous local standards and has personally owned more than
40 patent rights. He also received 3 Elite Awards in Science
Technology* (1% Im Bt £ #% 1i7 #2). Mr. Yu is a Senior Engineer,
Certified Level-one Architect, an expert of Hunan Province
Committee of Experts of Engineering Construction
Standardisation* (& LRRERM A EZELEREZES) and
an expert of Committee of Information Management of National
Construction Enterprise CIO Development Union* (Bl SR &2
COBRMBERENM ZEEZES)

*  For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard
corporate governance practices as the Board considers that
good and effective corporate governance is essential for
enhancing accountability and transparency of a company to the
investing public and other stakeholders. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on the
Stock Exchange, except for:

(@ code provision A.2.1 of the Code in relation to the
separation of roles of chairman and chief executive officer,
as both of the roles are currently undertaken by the
Chairman of the Board;

(b) code provision A.4.1 of the Code in relation to the non-
executive director for a specific term;

(c) code provision A.6.7 of the Code in relation to Directors
should attend the general meetings of the Company. Due
to their respective engagements, Mr. Yin Jun, Mr. Mi
Hongjun and Mr. Lee Chi Ming were unable to attend the
special general meeting of the Company held on 21 June
2018. Due to their respective engagements, Mr. Chan Chi
Hung, Mr. Jiang Hongging and Mr. Ma Lishan were unable
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 5 June 2018,

Mr. Yin Jun, being the chief executive officer of the Company,
was appointed as chairman of the Board on 3 October 2016. In
view of the current rapid development of the Group, the Board
believes that vesting the roles of both chairman of the Board and
chief executive officer in the same person can facilitate the
execution of the Group’s business strategies and boost
effectiveness of its operation. In addition, under the supervision
of the Board which comprised two executive Directors, one non-
executive Director, and three independent non-executive
Directors, the interests of the shareholders of the Company will
be adequately and fairly represented.
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On 8 May 2018, Mr. Yin Jun, stepped down as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group while Mr. Yang Hongwei, currently a vice
president of the Company, was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group in succession to Mr. Yin. As such, the
Company has fully complied with such code provision A.2.1 after
the appointment of the new Chief Executive Officer.

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-executive
director should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. Mr. Peng Xiongwen is not appointed for a specific term,
but is subject to retirement from office by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the provisions of the Company's bye-laws.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. In response
to the specific enquiry made by the Company, all the Directors
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

All the Directors are high caliber executives with diversified
industry expertise and bring a wide range of skills and experience
to the Group. As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised two executive Directors, one non-executive Director
and three independent non-executive Directors, whose
biographies are set out on pages 23 to 26 of this annual report.
Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’ and
Senior Management Biography”, there is no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships between Board
members, and in particular, between the Chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board maintained
a high level of independence, with more than one-third of the
Board comprised of independent non-executive Directors, who
had exercised independent judgement. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications whenever the names of Directors are disclosed.
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Meetings

The composition of the Board and their respective attendance in
the general meeting and the Board meetings during the year

ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:

]
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TEERHRE (B

MEHAERFEES

—N\EFE+-A=+—BLEENEESE

ENRRAGREZSEH

Number of meetings attended/held
during the respective tenure

REBABGBLERE/
BINERRE
General Board
meetings meetings
BRRAE Ezgel
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yin Jun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) BELE(EERTHBH) (RZE—1F 112 9/10
(appointed on 3 July 2015, re-designated as Chairman TAZREZE RZZ—"FTAH=H
on 3 October 2016) AEBER)
Mr. Chen Domingo (appointed on 5 December 2014, RERES (RZE-NET_ARLBEZRE 2/2 5/6
resigned on 30 June 2018) R=E-\FRA=ZTHET)
Mr. Mi Hongjun (appointed on 3 July 2015, resigned as EAERE (RS —RFLAZREZT 172 6/6
Chairman on 3 October 2016 and resigned on RIB-—RETAZAREIERRC-Z
30 June 2018) —NERAZTARET)
Mr. Yang Hongwei (appointed on 1 July 2018) BREFERZZ-NFLA-BEZA) N/A 474
il
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Chen Donghui (appointed on 28 June 2016, resigned  BREER4E (R -Z—~EF~A=-+/\H N/A 2/4
on 8 May 2018) BZE W N\FRANAET) ik
Ms. Gan Ping (appointed on 28 June 2016, resigned BELT(R_E—~EXNAZTN\H N/A 3/4
on 8 May 2018) EZRE n-Z—-/\ERAN\BET) T
Mr. Zhao Xiaodong (appointed on 28 June 2016, resigned  #BER &4 (R-ZE—~FA=-+/\H N/A 3/4
on 8 May 2018) BZE R ? /\iﬁﬂ)\ﬂﬁﬂ ) TER
Mr. Peng Xiongwen (appointed on 1 July 2018) PEXEE (RS- \FLA—REZE) N/A 4/4
il
Independent non-executive Directors BIEHTES
Mr. Chan Chi Hung (appointed on 30 December 2014, BEEAE(RZE-NF+-_A=FH 0/1 3/4
resigned on 14 June 2018) BRI W \FAA+REET)
Mr. Jiang Hongging (@ppointed on 2 February 2015) FRELE (M-S —RF-_F-AEZM) 172 6/10
Mr. Lee Chi Ming (appointed on 30 December 2014) ZERLENE-MF+-_A=1THEZT) 12 7/10
Mr. Ma Lishan (appointed on 28 June 2016) BULEERZE—AFAAZTN\BEZRT) 1/2 9/10
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Code provision A.6.7 of the Code which provides that
independent non-executive directors should attend the general
meetings of the Company. Due to their respective engagements,
Mr. Yin Jun, Mr. Mi Hongjun and Mr. Lee Chi Ming were unable to
attend the special general meeting of the Company held on 21
June 2018.

Due to their respective engagements, Mr. Chan Chi Hung, Mr.
Jiang Hongging and Mr. Ma Lishan were unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 5 June 2018.

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board has delegated the supervision of the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business to the executive
Directors. However, the Directors are collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by guiding and
monitoring the Company to achieve its strategic objectives. The
Board's primary functions are to set corporate policy and overall
strategy for the Group and to oversee the management’s
performance. Accordingly, the Board approves strategic plans,
major disposals and acquisitions, connected transactions and
other significant operational issues. Furthermore, Board meetings
may be held on occasions when a Board level decision on a
particular matter is required; otherwise daily operational
decisions are delegated to the executive Directors.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

To ensure their contributions to the Board remain informed and
relevant, all the Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skill.

During the year, all the Directors were provided with regular
updates and presentations on changes and developments of the
Group’s business and the latest developments in laws, rules and
regulations relating to director’s duties and responsibilities.

The Company organised an in-house seminar conducted by an
international law firm in June 2018. Most of the Directors and
certain senior management of the Company attended this
seminar accordingly. For the year ended 31 December 2018, all
of the Directors confirmed that they have obtained sufficient
continuous professional development training.

30

PRI SFRIGE X E AT IRRTE - B IENITES
EHEARARBBRRASG - BELE - HHAERE
ARFERATERBEXZBREHERARTR-F
—NFARAZT—BETHERRFRIAE -

BREBELE  EHBEREMTINEERB X
BRELEEARAR-ZZE—\FNARAETH
BRBAFRE -

BEEERE

EEeCRRUTESFEEARAEBNBEREE
o R EEHABRREARFHKINER
AABERERARANEZERKER -EF
SXIZRET/AEEFELRER  BERBRE
REBEEENKRE - At - EFSFIRES
 TEHERKE BEXSZMEMEREE
EH U ERENAEREARKFRELY
RERBITEZTEEH TRERZERRAH
TEFEE

REREZEABANDEAMIAMBERTH
EEFHER BRMSBMBESE2NEESR
AR - LASEAE N ST 1 S M R S PR o

RER 2REFCERFEELAEEEKE(
RERBEAALEHBEETRENEENER R
A RER R BERBRANTEREHRER -

RZE—NFRA ARAZHHBERRZMES
PREBH—RAFMTE - ARBAABOEFR
ETRAEEABAHBERE LN BE-
- N\FFTA=+—BILFE MBEEFHHE
REESEHOFEZTEERIFI -



TREABENREEERAT ¥ - N\FFER

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code states that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The Chairman
provides leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board
works effectively and discharges its responsibility whilst the chief
executive officer of the Company has overall chief executive
responsibility for the Group's business development and day-to-
day management generally.

Mr. Yin Jun, being the chief executive officer of the Company,
was appointed as chairman of the Board on 3 October 2016. In
view of the current rapid development of the Group, the Board
believes that vesting the roles of both chairman of the Board
and chief executive officer in the same person can facilitate
the execution of the Group's business strategies and boost
effectiveness of its operation. In addition, under the supervision
of the Board which comprised two executive Directors, one non-
executive Director, and three independent non-executive
Directors, the interests of the shareholders of the Company will
be adequately and fairly represented.

On 8 May 2018, Mr. Yin Jun, stepped down as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group while Mr. Yang Hongwei, currently a vice
president of the Company, was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group in succession to Mr. Yin. As such, the
Company has fully complied with such code provision A.2.1 after
the appointment of the new Chief Executive Officer.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-executive
director should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. Mr. Peng Xiongwen is not appointed for a specific
term, but is subject to retirement from office by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the provisions of the Company's
bye-laws.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors for the
time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. As such,
the Company considers that such provision is sufficient to meet
the underlying objective of this code provision.
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According to the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”),
Directors appointed to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until
the next following general meeting and can be eligible for re-
appointment at that time.

Insurance of the Directors and Officers

The Company has bought liability insurance for Directors and
officers in respect of legal action against the Directors and
officers which is in compliance with Code provision A.1.8 of the
Code.

Board Diversity Policy

Under code provision A.5.6 of the Code, the nomination
committee (or the board) should have a policy concerning
diversity of board member, and should disclose the policy in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 4 July 2014. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board and endeavors to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company'’s
business. In determining the optimum composition of the Board,
diversity of Board members will be considered from a number of
factors in order to maintain an appropriate range and balance of
talents, skills, experience and knowledge on the Board. The
Company will also take into account its own business model and
specific needs from time to time.

Board Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee shall endeavor to find individuals of
high integrity who have a solid record of accomplishment in their
chosen fields and who possess the qualifications, qualities and
skills to effectively represent the best interests of the Group and
its Shareholders. Candidates will be selected for their ability to
exercise good judgment, and to provide practical insights and
diverse perspectives. Candidates will also be assessed in the
context of the then-current composition of the Board and the
operating requirements of the Group. In conducting this
assessment, the Nomination Committee will, in connection with
its assessment and recommendation of candidates for director,
consider diversity (including, but not limited to, gender, race,
ethnicity, age, experience and skills) and such other factors as it
deems appropriate given the then-current and anticipated future
needs of the Board and the Company, and to maintain a balance
of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills on the Board.
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The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications
at a minimum to be required of any Board members in
recommending to the Board potential new board members, or
the continued service of existing members:

—  reputation for integrity

— accomplishment and professional knowledge and industry
experience which may be relevant to the Company

— commitment in respect of available time

— merit and potential contributions that such candidate could
bring to the Board with reference to the Company's Board
Diversity Policy (as adopted and amended by the Board
from time to time), including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, independence, skills, knowledge and length of
service

— in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive
director of the Company, to assess: (i) the independence of
such candidate with reference to, among other things, the
independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules; and (ii) the guidance and requirements relating to
independent non-executive directors as set out in Code
Provision A.5.5 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and in
the "Guidance for Boards and Directors” published by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

— board succession planning considerations and the long-
term needs of the Company

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company has set up an audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference which
clearly deal with its authorities and duties. The primary role and
function of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in
providing an independent review of the Group's financial
reporting and internal control systems as well as the internal and
external audit functions.

The Audit Committee currently comprises all of the three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Hongging,
Mr. Lee Chi Ming and Mr. Ma Lishan. The composition and
members of the Audit Committee comply with the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Lee Chi Ming is an
independent non-executive Director with appropriate
professional accounting qualification as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
held three meetings to review with the management the Group's
adopted accounting principles and practices, internal controls
and financial reporting matters in conjunction with the external
auditors, including reviews of the half-year and annual financial
results and reports. The Audit Committee has also discussed on
the financial, operational and compliance controls in particular
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget. The Audit Committee has
not taken a different view from the Board regarding the selection
and re-appointment of the external auditors. The attendance of
each member of the Audit Committee is set out below:

- )\F+ZA=t+—HLFE BF]XZ
S ERITZASH HEEERIINEZEBAMER
EHAEEMEAN G RARER - AEPEE
LM BEREEE  ERREEMNYFEREF
MBEERRE BRZEGNHUE EER
BRETIELFH  FRARAERESF KUK
EREee T EMER BEIERELEHREGTEH
URBIFEZNEIREREHEERERE
EREZESUENEREEIINEZEM T EEES
EWEAANERSIE SEZEZESNENLE
EERAAT

Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

REAE HESBERE

Mr. Jiang Hongaing (Chairman, ERELRE(FE  RZE—N\F 2/3
resigned as Chairman on 30 June 2018) NAZTHBTERE)

Mr. Chan Chi Hung (resigned on 14 June 2018) BR&EBREL (R-Z—N\F 11

NATMAEBHE)

Mr. Lee Chi Ming (appointed as Chairman TERAEERZE—N\F 3/3
on 1July 2018) +tA—REZTAERE)

Mr. Ma Lishan Bk E 3/3

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with the
management and the independent auditor of the Company the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
has discussed the auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters, including a review of the annual results and
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Nomination Committee

The Company has set up a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with specific written terms of reference
which clearly deal with its authorities and duties. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board on a regular basis (including
the skills, knowledge and experience), to recommend to the
Board on the selection of suitable candidates for directorships
and on the succession planning for the Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one executive

Director, namely Mr. Yin Jun; and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Hongging and Mr. Lee Chi Ming.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee held four meetings to review the structure and
composition and the succession plan of the Board, and to
evaluate and make recommendations on individuals nominated
for directorship. The attendance of each member of the
Nomination Committee is set out below:

TEERHRE (B

REBE-ZT-N\F+A=+—RHBILFE &%
ZEGRTHRGE  UEREFSNERE A
B R AEAERTE - B IRBEFETHEREL
2% - SIREREENEMHFERENT

Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

RERR HESEIH
Mr. Yin Jun (Chairman) BESLE(FE) 4/4
Mr. Jiang Hongging EHRELE 4/4
Mr. Lee Chi Ming FEREE a/4
Remuneration Committee FMEEE

The Company has set up a remuneration committee (the
"Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference which clearly deal with its authorities and duties. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and
make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, and
ensure no Director or any of his associates may be involved in
any decisions as to his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Hongging,
Mr. Lee Chi Ming and Mr. Ma Lishan.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors and senior management,
consider and approve the renewal of the Company’s service
agreements with its executive Directors and matters relating to
the early termination of such agreements upon change of Board
composition of the Company. The attendance of each member of
the Remuneration Committee is set out below:
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gREMHECENT
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Name of Members

Number of meetings attended

REARE HESERE
Mr. Jiang Hongaing (Chairman) ERERE(EE) 1”1
Mr. Lee Chi Ming ZRERLAE 171
Mr. Mi Hongjun (resigned on 30 June 2018) HREELEE(RZE—NF
NAZ=THEHE) 1/1
Mr. Ma Lishan (appointed on 1 July 2018) BIILEE(R=ZE—N\F N/A
+tA—BEZRT) N iE A

The existing Remuneration Committee will continue to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management of
the Group, and to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for ensuring sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
shareholders’ interests and the Company’s assets. The risk
management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or 10ss.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group conducts
an annual review on whether there is a need for an internal audit
department. Given the Group’s simple operating structure, as
opposed to a separate internal audit department, the Board is
directly responsible for internal control of the Group and for
reviewing its effectiveness.
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The Board conducts a review on the internal control system of
the Group on an annual basis and has the responsibility to
maintain an effective internal control system. The Board also
reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems on a regular basis to ensure that
the systems in place are adequate. The Group's internal control
system is comprised of a system of controlled management
wherein various authoritative limits are placed to ensure that the
Group is able to supervise, control and assess various functions
within Group. The system further permits the Group to safeguard
its accounting records to minimise material errors in order to
provide financial information as accurately as possible.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company engaged
an external independent consultant to conduct a review on the
internal control system of the Group in order to maintain high
standards of corporate governance. The Board has also reviewed
the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function. Based on the above, the Board
is of the view that the Company has established a proper internal
control system which is effective and adequate.

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The auditor of the Company for the financial year under review is
PricewaterhouseCoopers. During the year ended 31 December
2018, remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditor of the Company to the Group was
approximately HK$1.89 million and HK$0 respectively. The non-
audit services mainly consist of review and consultancy services.

DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018. The auditor of the Company acknowledges its
reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s report on the financial
statement during the year. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company'’s ability to continue as
going concern. The statement made by the auditor of the
Company regarding their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 59 to 68 of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Ho Pong was appointed as the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) since 14 June 2017. He
is full-time employee of the Company and has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman and is responsible for advising the Board
on corporate governance matters and facilitating communication
between Board members, the Shareholders and management of
the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Rights to convene special general meetings

(1)

(2)

38

Under the Company'’s bye-laws

Pursuant to Bye-law 62 of the Company’s bye-laws, a
special general meeting (“SGM") shall be convened on
requisition by shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”, or individually the “Shareholder”), as
provided by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) (the “Companies Act”), or, in default, may be
convened by the requisitionists.

Under the Companies Act

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act, a
Shareholder or Shareholders holding at the date of the
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the
deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company may requisition the Directors to forthwith
proceed duly to convene a SGM by depositing a written
requisition at the registered office of the Company.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting (including the resolutions to be considered at the
meeting), signed by the requisitionists, deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more requisitionists.
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If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene a SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

A SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Rights to put forward proposals at general meetings
Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meetings of the Company pursuant to the provisions of the
Companies Act as follows:

Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act allow certain
Shareholder(s) to requisition the Company to give notice to
the Shareholders in respect of any resolution which is
intended to be moved at an annual general meeting of the
Company (“AGM") or circulate a statement in respect of
any proposed resolution or business to be considered at a
general meeting of the Company.

Under Section 79 of the Companies Act, at the expense of
the requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves,
it shall be the duty of the Company on the requisition in
writing by such number of Shareholders:

(@ to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next AGM notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting.

(b)  to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them any
statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.
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40

The number of Shareholders necessary to make the above
requisitions to the Company shall be:

(@)

either any number of Shareholders representing not
less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all
the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition
relates; or

not less than one hundred Shareholders. Notice of
any such intended resolution shall be given, and any
such statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders
entitled to have notice of the meeting sent to them by
serving a copy of the resolution or statement on each
such Shareholder in any manner permitted for service
of notice of the meeting, and notice of any such
resolution shall be given to any other Shareholder by
giving notice of the general effect of the resolution in
any manner permitted for giving him notice of
meetings of the Company, provided that the copy
shall be served, or notice of the effect of the
resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the
same manner and, so far as practicable, at the same
time as notice of the meeting and, where it is not
practicable for it to be served or given at that time, it
shall be served or given as soon as practicable
thereafter.

Section 80 of the Companies Act sets out the conditions to
be met before the Company is bound to give notice of any
resolution or to circulate any statement. Pursuant to
Section 80 of the Companies Act, the Company shall not be
bound under Section 79 to give notice of any resolution or
to circulate any statement unless:

(@

a copy of the requisition signed by the requisitionists,
or two or more copies which between contain the
signatures of all the requisitionists, is deposited at the
registered office of the Company:

() inthe case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the
meeting; and

(i) in the case of any other requisition, not less
than one week before the meeting; and

MARRRE L 2FMFEHREASE
=2

(aa) RREEZFAMAREZF S NS
@ ERRNTORARRBIRERE
Az EBRRARC %K

(bb) AR —BERBR - EALFEH)
mERNBHREAHERLE - AN
FEHRARERESHRRENEMN TN
5 7 R B SR B RO BI AR R B AR
EREHBENRRELREN: 2
PR TR {A] B b AR BR 3% B T b T 0R 5%
ERBA - RIZADERT MR R E# D
ARFEHFBENEMT R - REHBH
HEZFRBRAENBA  EZE
RHEXZENTARZABRREAB BTN
BHAA(RBABRME)  ARE
ABEHELNT AR - MXERE
HE R - RBEEERAITIER T &
ERBETHELNBEER - WEF
R ERE L BIARNBEREERA
TERTRRAELED -

REDEFEBOGEAE AR AN AT B M
R B AN BHE A BRI F AT A E B (5
- RIBARDEFR 8015 - ARRIBARES
79 WGP AL EE A B DR ZR RSB A S E B
ERIBRRE - BR3E

@ RTEFEK-—MNE2FARENZ
FH(EMNIALEHAEREFART
M2 EXEARRANEMMRER

() WEBFEZLHAZRBANE
o AARNBRERETATD
RAEER : &

(ih fMBEMNEBZE  AAREH
SRBTHTIN—EEH &



TREABENREEERAT ¥ - N\FFER

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

(b) there is deposited or tendered with the requisition a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expense in giving effect thereto;

provided that if, after a copy of the requisition requiring
notice of a resolution has been deposited at the registered
office of the Company, an AGM is called for a date six
weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, the copy
though not deposited within the abovementioned time shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for the
purposes thereof.

Rights to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries shall be in writing and be sent by post to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Suites 1001-
1004, 10th Floor, One Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong.
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To manage its relationship with its Shareholders and the
investment community, the Company communicates through
publication of announcements, circulars and annual and interim
reports. Such information is disseminated through the Stock
Exchange at its designated website (http://www.hkexnews.hk),
and can also be accessed via the Company’s website
(http://cmdrawin.todayir.com). The Directors, company secretary
and other appropriate members of the senior management will
also respond to inquiries from the Shareholders and the
investment community put to the Company in the manner as
mentioned under the heading “Shareholders’ Rights” in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Company did not make any changes to the
memorandum of association of the Company and Bye-laws, the
current versions of which are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the research and
development, design, manufacture and sale of assembled
building prefabricated units, licensing and property investment in
the PRC.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's revenue is derived primarily from business activities
conducted in Hong Kong and China Mainland.

A fair review of the Group's business, including the important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of
2018 and the likely future developments, is set out in the
Business Review and Prospects and Financial Review sections of
this Annual Report.

Disclosure related to the Group’s environmental policies and
performance and relationships with major stakeholders are
included in the Environmental, Social and Governances Report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 and the state of affairs of the Group and the
Company at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 69 to 195.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities

of the Group for the last five financial years/period is set out on
page 196.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group revalued its investment
properties by using the combinations of an income capitalisation
approach and a direct comparison approach. The increase in fair
value amounting to approximately HK$367,000 (31 December
2017: fair value loss of HK$18,337,000) has been credited/debited
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the
statement of changes in equity on page 73 and Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2018 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. YIN Jun (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Hongwei (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Peng Xiongwen

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. JIANG Hongging

Mr. LEE Chi Ming

Mr. MA Lishan

The Company has received from each of the existing
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Directors and Officers Liability Insurance undertaken by the
Company provides an indemnity to all the directors of the
Company under which every director will be indemnified by the
Company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities incurred by him in the execution and discharge of his
duties or in relation thereto. Such insurance has been in force
during the financial year ended 31 December 2018 and as of the
date of this report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence. The emolument of the Directors
are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals
with highest remuneration are set out in Note 9 and 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company had or was deemed to have interests
and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")) which
(i) have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) have been entered
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO; or (iii) otherwise have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code to
the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract, transaction or arrangement of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
any Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
all or any substantial part of the Group’s business was entered
into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHT
TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2018 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
respective spouses or minor children to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, as far as known to the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had the
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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RAEXTRDKABRDGPEENGTRE

Percentage of

Number of the Issued

Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares held Share Capital

HEET

BRRERB 514 BERGHE BRABDL

(note 1)

(K¥zE1)

Jiayao Global Investments Limited (“Jiayao”)  Beneficial owner 5,880,440,000 52.46%
R (B IREBRAB ([F2IR]) EmBEAA (note 2)
(Kt 2)

Jiamin (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 320,000,000 2.85%
Ex(ER)RERR AR EmliE A (note 2)
(M5E2)

Jianuo (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 310,000,000 2.76%
b (BER)IREBR A BEmEAA (note 2)
(B&E2)

Jiaxin (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 305,000,000 2.72%
=iz (BB RERR AR E=AA (note 2)
(M3E2)

Jiaheng (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 300,000,000 2.68%
BT (R IREBR AR BREAA (note 2)
(M5E2)

Jiacheng (Holding) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 65,000,000 0.58%
EH(ZER)IREBR A EmBEAA (note 2)
(Bt 2)

Jialing (International) Investment Limited Interest of controlled corporation 1,300,000,000 11.59%
RA(BR)REERAA R /NI o (note 2)
(M3E2)

Jiayao Interest of controlled corporation 1,300,000,000 11.59%
2 AR (note 2)
(MHEE2)
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Percentage of

Number of the Issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares held Share Capital
HE&T
BEREE g4 BERMEAE BAEBFDL
(note 1)
(B 1)
Jiaye Summit Global Investment Limited Interest of controlled corporation 7,180,440,000 64.05%
=& (BE)REER AT CELYNGIE £ (note 2)
(MH5E2)
China Minsheng Drawin Technology Industry  Interest of controlled corporation 7,180,440,000 64.05%
Limited RN (note 2)
PRERMBREXARAR (BF5E2)
Tianjin China Minsheng Drawin Technology Interest of controlled corporation 7,180,440,000 64.05%
Limited (“TCMDT") RYENEER (note 2)
REPFRERBEFEBRAR (fF5E2)
([REFRER])
Jiayou (International) Investment Limited Beneficial owner 109,520,000 0.98%
(“Jiayou") EmEA A (note 2)
2H(BE)REERAA([=A]) (MF5E2)
Jiahuang (Holdings) Investment Limited Interest of controlled corporation 109,520,000 0.98%
REER)BREERAA SYENEER (note 2)
(M5E2)
Jiaxin Investment (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled corporation 109,520,000 0.98%
BMRE(L8)BRAR RN AR (note 2)
(MH3E2)
China Minsheng Jiaye Investment Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled corporation 109,520,000 0.98%
(“CMIYI") RENEER (note 2)
PREEREERAR(HRRZFERE]D (MF3E2)
China Minsheng Investment Corp., Ltd. Interest of controlled corporation 7,289,960,000 65.03%
PEIRAERERGNBRAF SRR TR (note 2)
(MH5E2)
Zhu Yuehai Beneficial owner 1,000,000,000 8.92%
KEB EmEAA
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Notes:

1. It was based on 11,209,602,920 Shares as at 31 December 2018.

2. Jiayao beneficially owned 5,880,440,000 Shares, representing 52.46% of
the issued share capital of the Company. Jiayao’s five indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiaries, namely Jiamin (Holding) Investment Limited, Jianuo
(Holding) Investment Limited, Jiaxin (Holding) Investment Limited,
Jiaheng (Holding) Investment Limited and Jiacheng (Holding) Investment
Limited, beneficially owned in aggregate 1,300,000,000 Shares,
representing 11.59% of the issued share capital of the Company. Jiayou
beneficially owned 91,260,000 Shares, representing 0.81% of the issued
share capital of the Company. Each of Jiayao and Jiayou is a company
indirectly and wholly owned by TCMDT and CMYIJI respectively, which
in turn is 100% and 69.4% owned by China Minsheng Investment Corp.,
Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, and as at 31 December 2018, the
Directors were not aware of any persons (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had any
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 7
November 2003 (the “Old Scheme”) was terminated pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 7 August 2013. A new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) in place of the Old Scheme was adopted
pursuant to such resolution with effect from 7 August 2013 which
has a term of 10 years. No share options have been granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the New Scheme since its
adoption on 7 August 2013. As at 31 December 2018 and up to
the date of this report, there were no outstanding share options
that have been granted and remained outstanding and
exercisable under both the Old Scheme and the New Scheme.
The following is a summary of the New Scheme:

(@) Purpose
The purpose is to enable the Company to grant options to
eligible participants as incentives and/or rewards for their
contribution or potential contribution to the growth and
development of the Group.
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Eligible participants

Eligible participants include employees or officers (including
executive Directors), non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors), suppliers,
customers, consultants or advisors, and securities holders
of the Company, as to be determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion within the categories.

Total number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the New Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to
time. The total number of Shares which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the New Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as at 7 August 2013, but the Company may seek
approval of its shareholders in general meeting to refresh
the 10% limit under the New Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
The total number of share issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to each eligible participant in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue at the date of grant. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or to any of their
associate must not exceed 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Company’s shares at the
date of each grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant.
Subject to separate approval by the shareholders in general
meeting with the relevant participant and his associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting provided
the Company shall issue a circular to shareholders before
such approval is sought, the Company may grant options to
a eligible participant which would exceed this limit.
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Option period
The option period within which the shares must be taken
up under an option shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period
must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

The minimum period, if any, for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion. The New Scheme itself
does not specify any minimum holding period.

Payment on acceptance of the option

HK$10 is payable by the grantee to the Company on
acceptance of the option offer. An offer must be accepted
within 28 days from the date of grant.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of the grant but shall not be
less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares on
the date of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the par value of a share.

Remaining life of the New Scheme

The New Scheme will remain valid for a period of ten years
commencing on 7 August 2013 unless otherwise
terminated by resolution of shareholders in general
meeting.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The CMDBT Agreement and Pingjiang Agreement

On 12 October 2017, Changsha China Minsheng DIT Limited (the
“Changsha Company”, a wholly—owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into an agreement (the "CMDBT Agreement”)
with China Minsheng Drawin Building Technology Co., Limited
(“CMDBT", a wholly owned subsidiary of Tianjin China Minsheng
Drawin Technology Co., Limited), pursuant to which the
Changsha Company agreed to supply prefabricated construction
components and products to CMDBT for the construction of a
service centre in Xiangyin (the “CMDBT Supply Arrangement”).

Pursuant to the CMDBT Agreement, the Changsha Company had
agreed to supply up to 2,200 m3 of the prefabricated
construction components and products to CMDBT at the price of
RMB1,600 per m3 (tax inclusive) of the prefabricated construction
components and products.

Further, on 6 December 2017, the Changsha Company entered
into an agreement (the "Pingjiang Agreement”) with Pingjiang
China Minsheng House Technology Company Limited (the
"Pingjiang Company”, a subsidiary of CMDBT), pursuant to which
the Changsha Company had agreed to supply prefabricated
construction components and products to the Pingjiang Company
for the construction of a service centre in Pingjiang (the
"Pingjiang Supply Arrangement”).

Pursuant to the Pingjiang Agreement, the Changsha Company
had agreed to supply up to 7,000 m3 of the prefabricated
construction components and products to the Pingjiang Company
at the price of RMB1,610 per m3 (tax inclusive) of the
prefabricated construction components and products.

The maximum contracted amount payable in aggregate under
the CMDBT Agreement and the Pingjiang Agreement to the
Changsha Company was agreed to be up to RMB14,790,000 (tax
inclusive).
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As disclosed in the announcement dated 13 September 2018,
each of CMDBT and the Pingjiang Company was then a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company at the time the CMDBT
Agreement and the Pingjiang Agreement were entered into
respectively. However, as a result of the disposal of the entire
equity interest in CMDBT by the Company to Tianjin China
Minsheng Drawin Technology Co., Limited ("TCMDT") on 26
December 2017 (the “Disposal”), CMDBT (and therefore Pingjiang
Company) became a wholly-owned subsidiary of TCMDT. As
TCMDT is an indirect controlling shareholder of the Company,
each of CMDBT and the Pingjiang Company became a connected
person of the Company for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules upon the completion of the Disposal, and
accordingly, each of the CMDBT Supply Arrangement and the
Pingjiang Supply Arrangement became a continuing connected
transaction of the Company.

As each of the CMDBT Supply Arrangement and the Pingjiang
Supply Arrangement was a continuing transaction which had
subsequently become a continuing connected transaction as a
result of the Disposal, each of the CMDBT Agreement and the
Pingjiang Agreement is subject to the announcement and annual
reporting requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EPC Service Arrangement and Supply Arrangement

On 2 May 2018, the Company and CMDC (“China Minsheng
Drawin Construction Co., Ltd.* (FRERKZEXBRAA), a
company established in the PRC and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Minsheng Investment Corp., Ltd* (FEIRAIRERMNH
R~ 7)) ("CMIC")") entered into the Framework Agreement in
relation to (i) the provision of EPC general contracting services by
the CMDC Group to the Group for the development of the
Group's several technology park in the PRC; and (i) the supply of
prefabricated construction components and products by the
Group to the CMDC Group for the construction projects engaged
by third party developers or contractors.
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Pursuant to the EPC Service Arrangement, the contractual price
of EPC general contracting services to be provided by the CMDC
Group to the Group should be determined with reference to the
estimated costs of a construction project plus a management fee
of not more than 5% of the construction costs. As disclosed in
the announcement dated 2 May 2018, the Company estimated
that the maximum value of the transactions under the EPC
Service Arrangement over the term of the Framework Agreement
may reach RMB400 million (equivalent to approximately HK$493
million).

Pursuant to the Supply Arrangement, the integrated unit price of
the prefabricated construction components and products to be
supplied by the Group to the CMDC Group should be the
prevailing market price of each unit and the quotation of the
merchandise provided by the Group should be determined with
reference to the estimated costs of each unit plus a profit of not
more than 10% margin of the unit cost. As disclosed in the
announcement dated 2 May 2018, the Company is required
under Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules to set an annual cap over
the term of the Framework Agreement. Accordingly, such
Proposed Annual Cap over the term of the Framework
Agreement has been determined to be RMB300 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$370 million).

CMDC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TCMDT (Tianjin China
Minsheng Drawin Technology Limited (XZF RERBRAR A
A])), and therefore a connected person of the Company for the
purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, each of
the EPC Service Arrangement and the Supply Arrangement under
the Framework Agreement constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the EPC Service Arrangement is capital in nature and one of
the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the estimated
maximum value of the EPC Service Arrangement over the term of
the Framework Agreement exceeds 25% but is less than 100%,
the EPC Service Arrangement constitutes a major and connected
transaction of the Company which is subject to the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Further, as the Supply Arrangement is of revenue nature and
certain applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Proposed
Annual Cap of the Supply Arrangement exceed 5%, the
contemplated transactions under the Supply Arrangement
constitute continuing connected transactions which are subject
to the annual review, reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

On 21 June 2018, a special general meeting was held. Under the
ordinary resolution, shareholders are confirmed, approved and
ratify the Framework Agreement dated 2 May 2018 and the
transactions contemplated thereunder (including the Proposed
Annual Cap for the Supply Arrangement and the estimated
transaction value under the EPC Service Arrangement).

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive Directors
The independent non-executive directors confirmed that they
have reviewed the CMDBT Supply Arrangement and the Pingjiang
Supply Arrangement under the CMDBT Agreement and the
Pingjiang Agreement respectively, and the EPC Service
Arrangement and Supply Arrangement under the Framework
Agreement and confirmed that:

()  the CMDBT Supply Arrangement, the Pingjiang Supply
Arrangement, the EPC Service Arrangement and Supply
Arrangement was entered into in the Group's ordinary and
usual course of business;

(i) the CMDBT Supply Arrangement, the Pingjiang Supply
Arrangement, the EPC Service Arrangement and Supply
Arrangement was entered into on normal commercial
terms or on terms no more favourable than terms available
to independent third parties; and

(i)  the CMDBT Supply Arrangement and the Pingjiang Supply
Arrangement were entered into according to each of the
CMDBT Agreement and the Pingjiang Agreement governing
them respectively on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interest of the Shareholders as a whole.

(iv)  the EPC Service Arrangement and Supply Arrangement was
entered into according to the Framework Agreement
governing it on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of Shareholders as a whole.
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ARBRZE—NFRAZ+—HBHETREE
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Confirmation from auditors

The Company'’s external auditor was engaged to report on the
continuing connected transactions of the Group under the above
CMDBT Supply Arrangement, Pingjiang Supply Arrangement, EPC
Service Arrangement and Supply Arrangement in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information”, and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The external
auditor has issued an unqualified report containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transaction of the Group under the CMDBT Supply Arrangement,
the Pingjiang Supply Arrangement, the EPC Service Arrangement
and the Supply Arrangement disclosed above in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Main Board Listing Rules. The Company
provided a copy of the report to the Stock Exchange.

The external auditor of the Company confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2018 under the CMDBT Supply Arrangement, the
Pingjiang Supply Arrangement, the EPC Service Arrangement and
the Supply Arrangement:

(i) have not been approved by the Board,;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
price policies of the Group;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such

transactions; and

(iv) have exceed the annual cap as set by the Company.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions of the Group
undertaken in the normal course of business are set out in Note
36 to the consolidated financial statements. Save for the
connected transaction as disclosed above, none of these related
party transactions is required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018:

()  The Group's largest customers and the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 5% and 20% of the
Group’s total turnover respectively.

(i) The Group's largest suppliers and five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 4% and 18% of the Group's
total cost of sales respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors owned more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) has any beneficial interests in
these major customers and suppliers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in respect of the
shares of the Company under the Company’s byelaws although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31
December 2018 and up to the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this report.
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire in the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting .

By Order of the Board of

China Minsheng DIT Group Limited
Yin Jun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF H:

CHINA MINSHENG DIT GROUP LIMITED FREXEENFEEBERAAZERER
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (RBFEAFME 2 BRI A])
OPINION =

What we have audited EPEEFTHWAR

The consolidated financial statements of China Minsheng DIT HREZERBERFEEEGR AR (A TEREEA
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) &) REMB AR (A THB [ E£E ) NEHNE
set out on pages 69 to 195 which comprise: 69 E 195 EMER A Ik - B

e  the consolidated statement of financial position as at31 e WIZZE—N\E+-A=+—BHEE T B
December 2018; R

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other o #HEZBILFENGABRIREMEEK
comprehensive income for the year then ended; =

e  the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the e HEZHILFEMNGEERZERK
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then e HEZHLIEFENGERERER & &
ended; and

«  the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which «  %ABKRENT - AEFEEHREHE
include a summary of significant accounting policies. >

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
BB E BTN ERTT - BEFIRAFAEI =1
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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our opinion EMHNER

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true MR A ZSEA VKRR BIEEE 216D
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group “AﬂEﬁEE’K@S P REEANEEMR R
as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial M TEE£ER_ZT—N\F+_A=+—HNEKSE
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then BB REEHZZBILFEMNGEPHERIE R
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting #ZRARERE @ WEBRBREBS(ARMEH) O E
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of BEXZARE -

Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly

prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION EREW®R

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards BB REBEE S LRI A BMAHACEBEFER)
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities #7735t - BRIEZSEA TRENSAEEAR
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's — R%E [EEIMBA G AU BRI AEHET] =
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial &7 fE# — Rl -

Statements section of our report.

=
Bk

“We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient RIS - RIFFTESHEIBEEETER
_ and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. HARMNETE RIREER o

\ Independence B

We ard mdependent of the Group in accordance with the REESSHAASEMA(EE BRI
(AT IR BMBLRESEE - YERE
AR EMmEREEEEE -

FRESE

AREGFFESBBERMOEZEAE  RALHK
Ludgemdnt vve e of most S|gmf|cance in our audit of the HIRAMBHRENEIZEEMNSZIH - BLFIF
consolldated ﬂriancnal statements of the current period. These RAERMBANBEBGEVEREEEELAER
matt@]< ‘ were addressed in the context of our audlt of the BIEFFEEYN ERMIAHESLEFIREHRSE
BHER -
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

1. Impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment

2. Impairment provision for trade receivables

Bz B AR ()

B K R R
B HER o 0 R B S FIR TR A0 T -
1. W BER

R AEERE RS

2. EBZRWFRMREERE

Key Audit Matter1
AREITSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB A EYERETEE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment
M - BERRENRERS

Refer to Note 5 (Critical accounting estimates and
judgements — Impairment of property, plant and
equipment) and Note 15 (Property, plant and equipment)
to the consolidated financial statements.
FLHREMBEHRRWES(E2 G AT RAE — W
¥ WEREERE) RMEE15 (M - BEREE) °

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment of the Group was HK$1,483,219,000.
RZZ—N\F+ZA=+—H E5EYXE BEER
%%%E@ﬁmmmwum&mo

With regard to the identification of impairment indicators
relating to property, plant and equipment, we evaluated
management’'s assessment by taking into account
macroeconomic data (including industry trends),
management’s business plans, and the Group's recent
disposals of similar CGUS. N
AR EYE  BREREEBBEOREREmS M I

EEREBEEER (BETEBD)  TRENERH) N
B REREE S ERNURSELEUNR WEE )
B hET#ETTRAE »

With regard to the recoverable amounts of the unﬁérlying

CGUs with impairment indicators: \

AR EARESFRNEERSELSMNTKESE E

e We assessed the appropriateness of the Ffa ugat{on,/;,f’*'\ |
model adopted by management /.

o HMFETERELRA E‘METE*E*F”E’J HE M
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Key Audit Matter1 (Continued)
BREEH(F)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
B ETNAEEERETSE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and
equipment (Continued)
M - BERBZENRETS (E)

Management has assessed whether any impairment
indicators of property, plant and equipment existed as at
the balance sheet date and has identified that impairment
indicators of the property, plant and equipment existed
for certain subsidiaries which are loss-making for
consecutive years.

EREDTEDE BERXEREEAERBHRES
GEARMRBREDR  WEFEEEL FHESBENE TH
BRARGFEDE  KBERRERETR

For the purpose of assessing the impairment,
management identified each subsidiary as a Cash
Generating Unit (“CGU"). The recoverable amount of the
‘ underlying CGUs were determined based on the present
value of estimated future cash flow. No provision for
~impairment was made based on management’s

»_ assessment.

\RETTRER L EREASHBAREE R —ERE
o E£Bu((RESELEN]) - ARRSEEEMOAR
*‘ E&BmHREETRKRSRENRESET - BIFEIE
I b B LRE RS -

We fo\Eused on this area as the carrying amount of
p}r}gpert%, plant and equipment is significant to the
C \\\solidjted financial statements and the identification of

‘{\»\_;_amount of the underlying CGUs involved significant
*manage ents‘estlmates and judgement, including
\‘ applylng key as$umptlons such as revenue growth rates

< umﬁwaﬁﬁﬁﬁix S Rl
‘x;E@\WAﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ FEBER -

e We evaluated the appropriateness of discount rates
by comparing them with the costs of capital of
comparable companies as well as considering territory
specific and other factors.

o HMBMBKITIA KM R AW ERKAEITLE -
PAK Z B e R R R R ARFHE T IR R A E 1 -

e We evaluated the reasonableness of revenue growth
rates by comparing them with historical operating
results, budgets approved by management and future
business projections.

o HMBBKKNEREEFELLLHES  EHEMNE
BITEE AR IR FE T TR BT T L BORATE AL R E /)
BRI -

e We tested the mathematical accuracy of the
underlying present value of estimated future cash flow
calculations.

o HFAIRTHARKREREAENHARENHE
SEREME o

e We evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis
around the key assumptions to ascertain the extent of
changes in these assumptions required to trigger an
impairment of the relevant assets, and considered the
likelihood of such changes in those key assumptions.

o HMTHEREEEAMRBEBRNBRENN - AEE
EEAREERERMENZSERNELREE  E
BZEEREREBENSE AN -

Based on the work we performed, we considered the
valuation model used by the management was
appropriate and the key assumptions were supported by
the evidence we gathered.

RBBMIPTEITH TE - ﬁﬁ*%mﬁﬁﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁ
ANBEEE  RBEMARENEE FERERFR
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Key Audit Matter2
BRETEH2

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMET MRS ERETSE

Impairment provision for trade receivables
B 2 EWFIRERERE

Refer to Note 5 (Critical accounting estimates and
judgements — Impairment of trade receivables) and Note
21 (Trade and other receivables and prepayments) to the
consolidated financial statements.

E2 e MBERRM TS (B2t At G — 85
JE W SR IRRR () Ko B R 21 (‘B 55 e L JE MR TR I SRS 3R

) e

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's gross trade
receivables amounted to HK$294,940,000, against which
an impairment provision of HK$2, 614 000 was provided

RZZ2E—N\F+ZA=+—0  E5ENEZELK

4A%H 5 294,940,000 7T, - IﬂHﬁhMﬁ%ﬁl&A%O
BT e

The Group applied the simplified approach as permitted
under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9 —
Financial Instruments to measure expected credit losses
which used a lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables, grouped by shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.
EEBHATAMBMELEREIR —SRITEATY
Bt At ERBEEBE  HERMEE S EKGIR
WEESREAEREERE  TRAZEERREE LS
EIRE 48 o

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of trade
receivables balances and the significance of management
judgements applied in determining the impairment
provision.

HRNE SRR FIRGEHNEEEEREEEHEHEET
BERBRNEEM  RATIRZEE -

Our audit work in relation to impairment provision for
trade receivables included:
HZMEHEESERFIERERENSTT LIERTE

We assessed the reasonableness of key input data and
major assumptions adopted in expected credit losses of
trade receivables, including the historical default loss
rates and the adjustments for the historical default loss
rates based on forward looking macroeconomic data.

B G T T2 ASENGEEURE S EWFIETE
HEEBETHEANIZRR  BEELENBEREMN
AERFIEM B ESBREELENBAERNHAE -

We tested the accuracy of the aging analysis of trade /
receivables by tracing items in the aging analysis, on a N
sample basis, to the relevant supporting documents. -
HZFRBEIRRRSOMANIEE ZE BEHR Kﬁ LME
5 7 TR 5 HE WO IR BRES 0 T B 2E R © ' |

We tested the expected credit losses calculation schedule 2
for mathematical accuracy. ¢
A EUE&TEHEEE)ESTEJ%H@FE%‘%H’U%ﬁ(%%ﬁ@l‘i g

We checked subsequent settlements relatmg tot ade
receivables as at 31 December 2018, on a sample bai /

PR RER T — )\¢+ B2+ Ef’f%
EWHRIER BRI BHEE - ¥4

gathered. T “
RIBFTETH T - HAIR EEEEJ'E& E%‘%ﬁﬂ&m lL
TERE 7 E ) A 5 2 R P S 70 3B Tﬁi%
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Corporate Information, Chairman’s Statement,
Management Discussion and Analysis, Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management and Corporate Governance Report (but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, and the Report of the Directors, which is
expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
-~ financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other

‘ mformatlon that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’'s
N e conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

; other }‘;‘formanon we are required to report that fact. We have

\ nothmg t? report in this regard.

N\

: en we read the Report of the Directors, if we conclude that

i ;\_ther‘ s a material misstatement therein, we are required to

\ \\cqm:mumcate the matter to the audit committee and take

) appropr ate act|¢n conSIderlng our legal rights and obligations.

Hiiz 2
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BFEE T H % FEMESEREMEAN

DX 4=
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BARMHRAMBERERNES  RANEETE
Bl LM E S AL BIET - EREAME
EREBHEGEVBHRRABMERABETFAT
BOBERGTEEAEBAEUTFFEEAHRR
AR -

IRBFIERR MG ERZEEN RS A ATESH
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EA#ERRL  RAFEREZFE - EETE
BIVRBERERENEIR -

ERMEEEZTREL  WREAMRBEFTT
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BEEB  UWEZEHEMNEEEFNNEBHEE
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of e

the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the e
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used e
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
re‘lated disclosures made by the directors.

‘conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of e
.the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the

\‘a dit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty

,e* ts related to events or conditions that may cast
&gjlﬂcant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
gmj\g concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
rep\ort to.the related disclosures in the consolidated
-_financial sqatememts or, if such disclosures are inadequate,

k fto modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
Udit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
port. Hovaver future events or conditions may cause the

oup to cease‘to Eontmue as a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with the audit committee all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HERBIZHMRENEHEEABAZRL

independent auditor’s report is Mang Kwong Fung, Frederick. I o
PricewaterhouseCoopers BERMKBESTTERT
Certified Public Accountants HEDAD

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019 &% —E—NAF=A=+AAH
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=
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Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
8= H=E
—ZE-N\F = —+F
+=A=+—-H +=—A=+—H
IEFE IEFE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
k23 FET FHEIT
Revenue WA 6 530,232 216,587
Cost of sales SHE KA 9 (372,107) (207,619)
Gross profit EX 158,125 8,968
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRB ARk - 212,334
Government subsidies B Bh 14,029 62,789
Other income H A 7 3,510 7,008
Other gains — net Hithlzs — ¥ 58 8 7,151 15,288
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAS 9 (34,745) (17,408)
Administrative expenses THAX 9 (109,710) (159,110)
Net impairment — losses on BB
financial assets — i%ﬂﬁ?ﬁiﬂ% (1,633) -
Share of losses of associates /NN i) op=| (1,329) -
Operating profit KRR 35,398 129,869
Finance costs BB KA 10 (9,155) (17,272)
Profit before income tax BR AT 18 B AT R 26,243 12,597 )/
Income tax (expense)/credit Fis R (%), H% 12 (6,903) 11,224
Profit for the year FERA 19,340 1:2’3,821
Profit/(loss) for the year, BUTALTFRENEE
attributable to w=FL(EE) &/ 7R
— Owners of the Company — RRARERA 27,427 "131}19 Ve
— Non-controlling interests — IR (8,087) (7,898)
19,340
Earnings per share attributable to RATHEE AFL
owners of the Company BRER
(expressed in HK$ cents per share) (ABIRBILZES])
— Basic and diluted — BEARNEE 14 0.24
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E - ZE— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Bz HE
—E-N\F —ET—+F
+=A=+-H +=A=+—H
IEFE IEFE
Notes HK$000 HK$000
HtaF FHET FHEIT
Profit for the year FERA 19,340 123,821
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, Hfth2mE (EiE), W
which may be reclassified HETREHETSE
subsequently to profit or loss %
— Changes in fair value of available- — Tﬁi\:ﬂj% REE
for-sale financial assets BABEED) - 209
— Currency translation differences — NI EERE (105,416) 122,141
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FEEMEE(EE) W
for the year, net of tax MR FH 18 (105,416) 122,350
' Total comprehensive (loss)/income FEZM@E (&) W
for the year bl (86,076) 246,171
. Total comprehensive (loss)/income  RUTALFENEE
~ . for the year, attributable to 2@ (E8) WERE
—Owners of the Company — RRQREA A (76,811) 253,700
— Nan-controlling interests — JEIE AR (9,265) (7,529)
(86,076) 246,171

ove consolidated statement of profit or loss and other iﬂz & Bl N Hfth B T Ui o 2 S B Y PR —
\{npreh >nsive income should be read in conjunction with the B -
companying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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As at 31 December 2018 R=—Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R-ZB-NFE RZZT—+tF
+=ZA=+—-H +tZ—A=+—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEKREE 15 1,483,219 928,708
Land use rights + b fsh A 16 732,937 628,458
Investment properties A EE 17 17,348 18,543
Intangible assets mIELEE 18 4,118 782
Deferred income tax assets BRI EE 30 37,442 20,751
Investment in associates AR E QT 19 192,697 182,735
Financial assets at fair value through NAREBEFEZEEE
profit or l0ss SABERNERERE 23 23,967 —
2,491,728 1,779,977
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 96,095 78,609
Trade and other receivables and B 5 N E b W IR
prepayments IYSEUNE/ S 21 505,793 402,516
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESREE 24 - 23,926
Cash and cash equivalents B MREeEEIER 25 110,802 582,511
Restricted cash AR $1F= 26 153,588 449 /7
866,278 1,088,011
Total assets EEME 3,358,006 2,867,988
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of AAREB A LR
the Company a7
Share capital (nominal value) g A (EE) 27 1,120,960 1,120,960
Reserves f# e 28 649,946 123517
1,770,906 1804477 |
Non-controlling interests FFER S 29 607,623 ‘1"5'56‘,"(71”7 L
4 7y d /;:;l:;\i\;\‘
Total equity A 2,378,529 405394 AT —=

, ffﬂ/’ /
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2018 R=—Z—N\F+=-_A=+—H

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

R=B-N\F  R-F 7
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-H

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BtaF FHET FHEIT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Deferred income IEEWA 1,427 23,475
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTSH AR 30 8,010 7,962
Borrowings BE 32 340,676 101,686
Obligations under finance lease BEREE 33 2,880 -
352,993 133,123
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 hE M ERRIE 31 413,813 266,537
Advance from customers TElE P RIE = 22,987
Contract liabilities aHaE 40,545 -
Current income tax liabilities MBS HARE 14,702 22,003
Borrowings ERs 32 155,900 17,944
' Obligations under finance lease BEESE 33 1,524 =
626,484 329,471
Total liabilities A& 979,477 462,594
‘ Toféil\pquity and liabilities REREREE 3,358,006 2,867,988
5\The abcv*a consolidated statement of financial position should be AR A BA TS AR U 3% 8 B2 BE B B 5 — OFBEGE o

re d in"conjunction with the accompanying notes.

l|dated financial statements on pages 69 to 195 were  F69FE 195 B NGB RER T —HLE= A

. approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2019 and were  —+ A BREEEGHE  THN TEERKES
snghod on its behalf by 1 =553

-~ Yin Jun Yang Hongwei
' EE BRE
Director Director

EE ¥
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

Attributable to owners of the Company

n\l-_]_\

—NF+ZA=+—RLFE

KLAAEEARE
Available-
for-sale
financial ~ Convertible
assets bond - Contributed Non-
Share Share  revaluation equity  Exchange surplus Other  Accumulated controlling Total
capital~ premium feseve comporent  resene  fesene resene losses Totdl  interests equity
o THAESR  TERRA . ) )
BA  BAEE EEEMHE —EEBR  ERBE MARMEE  RMBE  ZiEE 48 FEREE  ERiE
Notes HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
ifi3 7.2 7.2 7.2 7.2 T Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
Balance at 1 January2017 RoE-tE-B-RhEH 1,020%0 731460 (209 37,800 437%) 131,166 - (505,670) 13151 83677 1925188
Profitloss)for the year EERH/ () = = = = = = = .79 .79 (05—
Other comprehensive incomefoss;: — Efe2ENE/(BE) :
Changes in air value of
avallable-or-sale inancial assets - - bit} - - - - - b - 0
Currency translaton diferences - - - - nm - - - nm 3 1
Total comprehensive income/ ER2TNE/ (58448
(loss) for the year - - i} - mm - - 131719 253700 [1529) 2611
Transactions with owners in their ~ SEAA (AEREASH)
capacity as owners Efl%a
Exercising of convertitle bond AETRRER 100000 1823 - (37,6000 - - - - 190,635 - 190,635
Disposal of ownership inerest in %WEMM EEGME
Subsiiaries without oss of control e - - - - - - 8631 - 8631 1730 45,955
Disposal of subsilaries WWEAH - - - - - - - - - (10,27) (10,27)
Captalcontrbution by non-contolling B A A3k RiER A
nterest of subsiciaries - - - - - - - - - 179 7709
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-E-tE+Zf=1-R
i) [NV - SToE B BE GBRS) 18T ST 245
Balance at 31 December 2017 WoE-tE+-f=1-A
as originally presented MR BRAHET 1,120,960 859,695 - - 11976 131166 28631 (373,951)  1.844417 560917 240539
Change In accounting polcies EHIRES - - - - - - - (1,220) (1,220) (53) (1,273)
At 1 January 2018 (Restated) R-2-N§-5-A
(iE3)) 1120960 859,695 - - 11976 131166 28631 (@15,171) 1,843,257 560864 2404121
Pty ot e E541/(68) - - - - - - - o e ww)) X\
Other comprehensive income/  ER2ERE /(5 : y y i
(loss): //
Curency anslaiondiferences ERiCE=] - - - - (104239) - - - (104239) (1,178)‘ (1@5,’2{16)
Tota comprehensive loss! EEAEEE/HEEE / &
income for the year - - - - (10423 - - i (76,811) 9, 265)) (86,076) y
|
Transactions With owners; EREARTNRS
Disposalof onerstipimerestsin -+~ HEREATHSEER
Subwitout loss of contol MEXHEHIE ) = - - - - - 1,180 - 1,180 m; i
Capitlnjection by ownerstip ErEERIAEE
Inerests - 3,652 - - - - (372) - 3280
Transactons with NCE: SHERRRRANAS: )
Capialinection by non-controling—— FERRREAE R P -
harefolders Vd - - - - - - - 4 - BB0 BB
Total ransactions with owners ~ EEEA 2 RB4E - 3652 - - - - 08 - o s ,60[434 A
§ - r\ \
At 31 December 2018 HZB-NEtZA=1-A 1,120,960 863,347 - = (26,262) 131,166 9439 (347,744) 1,770,906 807,623 231859 B \\\Z?;
\ 7% ST
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should — _Fifi4R& 4 Eﬁéﬁ%ﬁ‘éﬁiﬁi‘é%‘w? 19?55

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

| Recove

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Bz BE
—E-N\F —E—+F
+=A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
ILEE IEEFE
Notes HK$000 HK$000
Hfax FET FE&T
Operating activities RESEH
Cash used in operations KEFTRARRS 34 (55,246) (13,271)
Income tax paid B FTEH (30,423) (7,374)
Net cash used in operating activities KRB ATAMIR S FRE (85,669) (20,645)
Investing activities RETH
Purchase of properties, plants BEYE  BELRE
and equipments (653,884) (487,068)
Purchase of land use rights EE TP (154,101) (100,275)
Purchase of intangible assets BEERLAE (3,805) (530)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEBEUAABETEHE
through profit or loss FEHABENEREE (846,037) -
Payment for establishment of an associate FtAk iz — B & A Al 3 (35,533) -
Proceeds from disposal of equipments HER BN FTSRIE 4,873 -
- Proceeds from disposal of HEREEEHENE
investment properties KIE 722 2,052
i:;Proceecus from disposal of subsidiaries & KB X R&YFTIS FIA 166,515 47,934
P(ocee s from redemption of financial BOUARBEAEEEE
asset at fair value through profitor loss ~ Et ABZER S RE E
FS3A 847,634
Interest received =& IES) 2,359 2,081
\Decrease in restricted cash BRI ER 2R = 47,943
uﬁchase[of available—for-sale BEAHREECREE
inancial assets - (1,217,126)
rogjied from disposal of HEMHEECREE
‘ . availab e—for-sjle financial assets GOJFRES - 1,325,342
of receivables in connection U (2] B 95 & AR B A B U 3R IR
— withinvestments - 19,620
: N\
used in investing activities REEBHANE TR (671,257) (359,977)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

—NF+ZA=+—RLFE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
= HE
—E-N\F —tF
+=A=+-8 +t=ZA=+—H
ILEE EEE
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
Hfax FET FE&T
Financing activities RMEEE
Interest paid BAF A 10 (13,364) (4,063)
Increase in restricted cash IR IR 21 0 (130,000)
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRITEE (43,826) (42,727)
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITIEERFERIE 426,272 155,255
Payment of obligation under finance Iease ﬁ EAMERT BUR (2,047) =
Proceeds from partial disposal of 73t E BB A B AR i A
equity interests in subsidiaries 9&?3? HIE R FT1S /IR
without loss of control 28,954 38,177
Capital contributions by FEIER T &
non-controlling interests 31,530 7,719
Net cash generated from financing BEEBELNR S FE
activities 297,519 154,361
Net decrease in cash ReERRESEEBRD
and cash equivalents op=E-c (459,407) (226,261)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUNHRE MR FEEE '
beginning of the year 582,511 784,546
Net exchange (losses)/gains REMRSEEBEMNER |
on cash and cash equivalents (B518), /W $ 58 (12,302) 24,206
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRORE MFEEFEERHA
the year 25 110,802 582,511
The notes on pages 76 to 195 are an integral part of these 767 195 B MM 5 T3 th 243 & 1 15 3R & (0 4%

consolidated financial statements

B




China Minsheng DIT Group Limited 3 2018 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E - ZE— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

' consistently applied to the years presented, unless
"\ otherwise stated.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Minsheng DIT Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in Bermuda on 28 February 1991 under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and its issued shares are listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) starting from 25 July 1991.

The address of the registered office of the Company is
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company
is Suites 1001-1004, Level 10, One Pacific Place, 88
Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) are prefabricated construction work, granting
licenses and sales of equipment in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

The ultimate parent company of the Company is China
Minsheng Investment Corp. Ltd., a company incorporated
in the People’s Republic of China.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 = —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HItFE

Il‘/ =~

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EARETHERBE @)

2.1 Basis of preparation 21 mEEE
The consolidated financial statements of the 74&’& ARG BRREBEREINE
Company have been prepared in accordance with WREED([FEBHBRELEL ) RE

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of certain financial assets and investment
properties which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity

with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical

accounting estimates. It also requires management to

exercise its judgement in the process of applying the

Group's accounting policies.

(@) New amendments of HKFRSs adopted by

the Group in 2018

(@) New and amended standards of HKFRSS
adopted by the Group in 2018

The Group has applied the following
standards, amendments and
interpretations for the first time for their
annual reporting period commencing 1
January 2018:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions —
Amendments to HKFRS 2

Annual Improvements 2014-2016
cycle

% BHRDIZE 622 BT EMEL °
RAMBRRIRELNAERERE -
REBUAABEFENETERE
ERAREBEINERNIREESBE
tEHERT -

WA E RS RS 5
R ARAETES R FEX
EI e S TR
18 PR 2 -

AEER =B — R E B

B 3R 2 B SASET K

@ FEER=T—NERM
19 B B ) 78R 5 B F AT
B e
AEEMER =T — \F—
A — B B4 8 4 1 345 1
R 2 R LA TR B
STRRE |

(a)

BEPBREELE
OERT A

ER MR
155 REE
WA [

~L

&
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x%mpﬁ&+‘
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-ZT— N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EXEBRMEm@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 wRBEEE(E)
(a) New amendments of HKFRSs adopted by (a) FTEER-ZE—NEFEMNNEE

the Group in 2018 (Continued) B # R & 2E RIS AT 2K (48)

(@ New and amended standards of HKFRSS @ AEERZZT—NFHEMN
adopted by the Group in 2018 BB BT s 2RI ET
(Continued) BRI RAERTAS (B)
e Transfers to Investment Property — e HREEREWE —

Amendments to IAS 40 e AR 4055
e Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency o BREFEDFINEZFR
Transactions and Advance Consideration STRB
The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 RAEBMIERELERE
and HKFRS 15 are disclosed in Note 3 SERBEBM G REERE
below. 1558 B 2 B P T XX 5E3
B -
The other amendments listed above did SR A E AAE FT AN A
not have any impact on the amounts HBTHRBRANSEE
recognised in prior periods and are not EEH%%HEHET\ )
expected to significantly affect the current BRI ARREEELAER
or future periods. B o
(b) New standards and amendments of b)  [EREME X E B IEIE R

HKFRSs not yet effective and not early & BB &R FTET A

adopted by the Group RAZET A

Certain new accounting standards and AT 2 ER RBREDRMG

interpretations have been published that are BIYIER_ZFTE—NEFE+_A

not mandatory for 31 December 2018 reporting =+— B 5 B o Hl A U AR

periods and have not been early adopted by the EEWEREREMN - BuhoT :

Group are summarised as below:

NER Effective for
) ‘ | annual periods
X ‘ |n beginning on
or after
=
‘*wa Z BRI
N = EEBMEN

) Armuql Improvement projects Annual improvements 2015 - 2017 Cycle 1 January 2019
i\ ’ (Amendments)
L\\Q R —AEE-TLERPrEERE —T-hE-HA—A

(L.:T$)

B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— N\E+_-H=+— Elitif

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EXEFHEHSE@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 wRBEEE(E)

(b) New standards and amendments of (b) EAREXKA z/:%@ W IR BB
HKFRSs not yet effective and not early By & B B 7 3 & ZE Rl By #T AT 2E Al
adopted by the Group (Continued) RISETZ (4B)

Effective for

annual periods

beginning on

or after

RT5I A%

Z BRI

FEHBEN

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement 1 January 2019

BAEFTERFE 195 (BFT4) FEIEET - MR sBE —E-hF—H—H

HKAS 28 (Amendments) Long-term interests in associates and joint 1 January 2019

ventures
BB ERE 289 (BRI AN) REERARIRAEEDENRBER —E-hF—H—H
HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Prepayment features with negative 1 January 2019
compensation

BEMBRELENFEIR(BFIA) HAEREZBNER —T-NE—A—AR

HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

BB BRELERFE 1657 HE —ZE-hF—H—H

HK(FRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019

B (BERUBHREREZEE)R MEREREZTHREN —ZE-hF—A-H \h\
%mkk23‘5); \ NN

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments)  Definition of material 1 January 2020, / ‘ \X\\\

EREHEAE1RREAGHE BEANER
AIE 85k (187T )
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of business
EAMBRSEREIR(BITER) EBOHEER
Conceptual Framework for Financial ~ Revised conceptual framework for financial

Reporting 2018 reporting
B E RS HESR 2018 B mE R SER ZEET —EZE
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 Ja ua
BB BRELERE 175 REEE 4 _ES_
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets betweenan

(Amendments) investor and its associate or joint venture ‘
BBV BIRELERZE 109 & BREEHAEBENTNEERECHANEE /|

S G SR 285K (53T ) HeESTE |
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

2 EBEAREHTHERBE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and amendments of

HKFRSs not yet effective and not early
adopted by the Group (Continued)

The Group's assessment of the impact of these
new or amended standards and interpretations
is set out below.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
result in almost all leases being recognised on
the balance sheet, as the distinction between
operating and finance lease is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases. The
accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

The Group is a lessee of some buildings for
industrial parks and office buildings, which are
currently accounted for as operating leases
under HKAS 17. The Group had future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in aggregate of approximately
HK$18,668,000 as at 31 December 2018. Upon
adoption HKFRS 16, certain amounts included
therein may need to be recognised as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities. The Group is in
the process of making assessments on the
impacts of HKFRS 16 upon adoption and is
—considering whether it will choose to take
‘advantage of the practical expedients available
| and which transition approach and reliefs will
- be adopted.

2.1

RSB (1)
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B9 & 78 B 7 3 &5 22 R B9 37 3T 22 Al
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #& —ZE— \F+-A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EXEHBREE@®

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 wRBEEE(E)
(b) New standards and amendments of (b) [EAREMEAREFILFEIE R

HKFRSs not yet effective and not early
adopted by the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Some of the commitments may be covered by
the exception for short-term and low-value
leases and some commitments may relate to
arrangements that will not qualify as leases
under HKFRS16.

Further analysis, however, will be needed to
determine the amount of new rights of ues
assets and lease liabilities to be recognised,
including, but not limited to, any amounts
relating to leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases, other practical expedients and
reliefs chosen, and new leases entered into
before the date of adoption.

The Group will apply the standard from its
mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019.
The Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

There are no other standards that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have a

Y& 78 B 7 3 &5 22 R B9 37 3T 22 Al
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material impact on the Group in the current or ARABERRRZ X DELER e -
future reporting periods and on foreseeable s, VA | e,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E - ZE— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group's accounting policies.

(a) Business combinations
The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
| ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities
‘ and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured
‘ nH itfally at their fair values at the
‘,.acqwsmon date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1Consolidation (Continued)

(@

Business combinations (Continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by- acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of
liguidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to
fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of
the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKFRS 9 in
profit or loss. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not re-
measured, and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E - ZE— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EARETHERBE @)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued) 2.2 MEBAT(#E)
2.2.1 consolidation (Continued) 221458 AR (&)
(a)  Business combinations (Continued) (@ EBEOFE)

The excess of the consideration FragE/E N ER

transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any
previously held equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held

BV E I IE R R ) & 5R
N AEAA] 52 A1 45 B 10 1 AR P
TR BN R B R A
BB - B8 AT WO A] &
MIBEFEAABENE
BARRSHEE - HAEE
B - PREER I A as
AEFEEMBAERD
BEERNZEBERAIT

interest measured is less than the fair WENHBAREEFE
value of the net assets of the subsidiary NAEE MEBEER
acquired in the case of a bargain reiEn RE MW
purchase, the difference is recognised REER -
directly in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
(b)  Changes in ownership interests in b) HEBLADEEEERZZE
AN subsidiaries without loss of control GE:E
/\/ ‘ Transactions with non-controlling EIEPE R ETT B
N\ \ interests that do not result in a loss of REZEFIENR Z AR
- ‘/ \ control are accounted for as equity RN (BNEFEAR AAE
N\ transactions — that is, as transactions EREBANENHETR

with the owners of the subsidiary in their
capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying amount of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling
__interests are also recorded in equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EBEARETHERBE @)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued) 2.2 MEBAT (&)
2.2.1 consolidation (Continued) 221458 AR (&)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRS.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a
dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E - ZE— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EARETHERBE @)

2.3 Associates 2.3 HEAQT

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control.
This is generally the case where the group holds
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
\\transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
‘accounted investees have been changed where
necjssary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the board
of directors of the Company (the “Board of Directors”)
that makes strategic decisions.

The Group is managed centrally and the Directors are
of the view that the whole Group is one single
reporting segment and hence no segment
information is presented.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group'’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK dollars
(HK$), which is the Company's functional and
the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedge and qualifying net investment
hedge or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EXEFHERHSE@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.5 HNEITE (&)
(b) Transactions and balances (Continued) (b) XBRAEER(E)
Foreign exchange gains and losses are FrEINEW R RIBERRE 185
presented in the consolidated statement of FEMmEERBZERAN [ HibU
profit or loss and other comprehensive income m=—FEE | 25 o

within “Other gains — net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair BARBENEWUINEEZ
value in a foreign currency are translated using EEMEIERERETAAER
the exchange rates at the date when the fair EHCEXRFE - BAAEET
value was determined. Translation differences BErEERBBENTEZSHEZR
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are RANBEEREZZ — 2D o 0
reported as part of the fair value gain or 10ss. e FEEBHEERARG W
For example, translation differences on non- BERARBEFABZNEZ)N
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities TEEZEREERTEREND
held at fair value through profit or loss are BEREN D MIEEEE
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair BE(HlmSEAIRA EBEE
value gain or loss and translation differences on AEMEEWAZ#EZ)HOITE
non-monetary assets such as equities classified ERRNEMA 2SR ER

as at fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other comprehensive

income.

(c) Group companies (c) £EARA
The results and financial position of all the e M B 25| SRR TS
group entities (none of which has the currency EETR(HERSBIECEH
of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a EHEE)MEERTBRR
functional currency different from the BIETHARITE AR S

presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance () BREEBERAZINE
sheet presented are translated at the ENBEREEARBRA
\ ‘ closing rate at the date of that balance MM ERTE

‘ __sheet;




2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)

(b) income and expenses for each
consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operations and partial
disposals

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(d) Disposal of foreign operations and partial

disposals (Continued)

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences is re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and is not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group's ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated
" statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
“incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EXEFHEHSE@

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 2.6 Y% - WERREE)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is ME BMEMEREBITEFERES A
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate g wHAG A ERFSESEK AR Y
their costs less their residual values over their B2 HFeEE  A@EMETIFERE
estimated useful lives, as follows: HAgnR -
— Buildings 30 years —EF 304
— computer equipment 3-6 years — BIERE 3F6EF
— Motor vehicles 5years —RE 5%
— Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years — R REE 5ET7HE
— Equipment 10 years — & 104
— Leasehold improvements 3years —HEMEREE 34
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are BENHGEBELRIFERFHNIHR
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of HFHIRRE - YRBEEBRAT TUH
each reporting period. o
An asset’'s carrying amount is written down HEEREEESNEG T ESEE -
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s HEAREERIEMUR = AT £ %8 -

carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by PENRZEREBREBLERAERE /

comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount HIEmMEmMSBTE  TEEAEBHEE

and are recognised within “Other gains — net” in the EEWERRAE [ B s— %58 | ,,,,/,'?” ”
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 2o ‘ \‘ N
comprehensive income. ‘ /;;;'/ [
Construction in progress represents property, plant EEIRETENSREN % <R ixi‘\\\
and equipment under construction or pending B RGE I}gﬁz$,ﬁ£,@{g)§ﬂ§i}¥ ‘A %
installation and is stated at cost less provision for #H(nA) HIEE - ﬁi$@$§@%§ﬂq§zﬁ 25N
impairment loss, if any. Cost includes the costs of BIRK AN o & A B & B A 4 (5 R A ///736'\
construction and acquisition. When the assets $L$§;I¢@% ﬁ%&&{% %

concerned are available for use, the costs are MERATE - | \ p
transferred to property, plant and equipment and Ly 1
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated

above.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Investment properties

Investment property, primarily comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not
occupied by the Group. It also includes properties
that are being constructed or developed for future
use as investment properties. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as investment
properties when the rest of the definition of an
investment property is met. In such cases, the
operating leases concerned are accounted for as if
they were finance lease. Investment property is
initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing
costs. After initial recognition, investment properties
are carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
the information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as part of a valuation gain or
loss in “Other gains — net”.

Land use rights
All land in PRC is state-owned or collectively-owned
and no individual ownership rights exist. Land use

\\rights represent upfront payments made for the

Ieasepold land in the PRC. It is stated at cost less

‘accumulative amortisation and accumulated

mpirmenmosses, if any. Amortisation is calculated

using the straight-line method to allocated the cost of

‘land uFe rights over the remaining period of the lease.

‘ V‘J
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2.7

2.8
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

Intangible assets

Computer software licences

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of three to
five years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation but are tested annually for impairment
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

BEREBRESE @)
2.9 WEAE
BB AR AR

2.10

BB A B S B AT E AR D IR IR UL
8 % A PR TE SRR S R AR B AR A S L
B - ZFERATIREMAFT AIER
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ARE B A] ge AU B R T TIRUEDRIRA ©
BB IR IR B B R E A B H H AT Uk Bl
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ARBERHEXAREREENR
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EXETBERBME @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Financial assets 2.11 €MEE
2.11.1Classification 2111 288

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its BT /\F—A—H8 &%

financial assets in the following measurement EEeREESERUTEE

categories: Rl

e  those to be measured subsequently at o  ERBBRAREBEEGIAHM
fair value (either through OCI, or through FEWANKETAEZR)FE
profit or loss), and MNeREE &k

e  those to be measured at amortised cost. D BEENATENERHE

o

The classification depends on the Group's ZOBEAREESMEENSE

business model for managing the financial BEEXAEA LB S RENESNIE

assets and the contractual terms of the cash E

flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and MEARBESENEEMS

losses will either be recorded in profit or l0ss or WM EEET Ak e

OClI. For investments in equity instruments that HRA - WIEFEEEMRAT

are not held for trading, this will depend on AEREBRIAEBREHEEY

whether the Group has made an irrevocable SHERREH T r] By AR 2
election at the time of initial recognition to R A R BEGTAHMEERA
account for the equity investment at fair value ZAnBESAEMEZEEA)
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). B IR RIS B B ER o

The Group reclassifies debt investments when ®HEEAERE Iﬁgzqgﬁa’j
and only when its business model for managing REANEE  HeHERE
those assets changes. BETEH DM o

"\2.11.2Recognition and derecognition 2.11.2 AR AR LR

—Regular way purchases and sales of financial FENERMEEEE NS A
\ ‘assets are recognised on trade-date, the date H(AEEARESEZEEN

X ‘on which the Group commits to purchase or BHY) TIAR - EREREE
~sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised WHRR & RE 2 N E A2 Hgk

when the rights to receive cash flows from the e MAEECBHEREZE

;{ivn‘ ncial assets have expired or have been KB RS AN REE RS - B R

: tr‘a}sfjr:red and the Group has transferred CRBERZRIEER -

substantially all the risks and rewards of

~ ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EXEHBRMEm
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Financial assets (Continued) 211 SREE (&)
2.11.3 Measurement 2113 # &

At initial recognition, the Group measures a RIS HERE - KEBRIZER jt
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case BEMNME(HMEREEIIEZA
of a financial asset not at fair value through AREEFTABR(EZAREBER
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are Az WESRmEEBEEZENL
directly attributable to the acquisition of the MNZXGUAFTESREE - IR
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial AAEBEGFABRIENSRE
assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the ENRXSRARGEAEB REM
consolidated statement of profit or loss and FHENERP I -

other comprehensive income.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are REFERSRELSLE S MNA
considered in their entirety when determining © RFERE2EEEHSRA
whether their cash flows are solely payment of APTETENERIEE -

principal and interest.

2.11.4 Debt instruments 2114 EHETH
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments B TEMNBEFEFURNAE
depends on the Group's business model for BEEREENEREAREERN
managing the asset and the cash flow BeRBRFE -  "EBBEEK
characteristics of the asset. There are three TESEA=TE257 :

measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for o ERESHAKA: {W%%H)Zé.\z
collection of contractual cash flows where BEaMEMFAR ﬁ@é’]
those cash flows represent solely REMEE R/ &ﬂ \:\ :
payments of principal and interest are N3 Qs ZEEE E%ﬁg \7 \ B e,
measured at amortised cost. Interest A E - ZELAREE

income from these financial assets is 1 B Hﬁz)\%}fﬁ [ss’Tjr\J
included in finance income using the /g:qu)\aﬂg;qy)\ z&zﬁg"
effective interest rate method. Any gain u,béimﬁﬂqy \@ZP&‘?E
or loss arising on derecognition is E#gﬁa EPEEEL jI, /A
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains, together with
foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
2.11.4 Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OClI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in
other gains/(losses). Interest income from
these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other
gains and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit
or loss and presented net within other
gains in the period in which it arises.

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EBEARETHERBE @)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued) 2.1 &ERMEE (&)
2.11.5Equity instruments 2115 RAT A

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group'’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OClI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains in the
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

2.11.6 Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

For other receivables (excluding value-added
tax recoverable), the Group applies the general
model for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9.

2.11.6 W{E
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

N1

|

R

 orless th

=< \11aQ| ties

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses. Costs of inventories include the
transfer from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying
cash flow hedges for purchases of raw materials.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business and related receivable. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected
in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional
unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recognised at fair value. The Group
holds the trade and other receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less loss

"allowance.

Cash and cash equivalents
In thﬁz consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
“at-call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
iat atrwe readily convertible to known amounts
of cash ahd hich are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. In the consolidated and
\Com;banys statements of financial position, bank
ovejdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

217

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatorily
redeemable preference shares are classified as
liabilities.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

2 EBEARETHERBE @)

2.15

2.16

217

&N
BB B AR - AR EEE
FERAIDEREE -

B EATH (D BB B IR A R O3B
EBRA - B AERIERTFHRIRR
B (F0BRFHIA) -

B RHMENREA

B REMEMNFASRBERGAE
BRRHEEEEEmREOEN
Bff- MBS REMENFKIRTIN—
FRUAA(RMBREEE - RIA—K
LEXGEAE)ZE  ADERR
BRE BRIZ2IBERPEE -

5 RSN RENS R AR BE
RS T Ll EES R 3 s
AR E -

B8

EENSRAABENBHEENR
FIRATER o {5 B BRI IR K AT
BE : FT1SEKIE (F1M % Ak K ) BB 5

1R 2 ) 0 £ 1 22 2 00 PR R 1
RSB EIRI AR & R RE M SR
EEAHER - /

//
//

.

S

™~ ‘
\<,

K



China Minsheng DIT Group Limited 3 2018 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
n‘l-.l_\I:I /Zl-i%#ﬁgélzﬁ- (n‘,\

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E - ZE— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EBEAREHTHERBE @

2.17 Borrowings (Continued) 2.17 BE (&)

_estir

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over
the period of the facility to which it relates.

Preference shares, if mandatorily redeemable at a
specific date or redeemable at the option of the
holder, are classified as liabilities. The dividends on
these preference shares are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as interest expense.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless

FEE R EE AT REAS BB {0 3k 2 BB R EX Y
BRT  RRIEFBMENNER
ERRERNRZZKA  ERBERT
ZERERCERBEFRBERL -
fie] - 488 35 HR U "% B BRI BE S AR A Bk
2RI ZERAEREDCAERR
BE S RBEOTANFIA - LN EAEREE
MEBEAEE -

SBHEIMEREE A BBR S RTE AR
BEODNEERNOBRAER
BERNEENGEBEEREMEE
Wan sk ARER R SR

ey
° % E

FRIEAREAEB EFRTENSGERED

i"""

the Group has an unconditional right to defer HEEIRILERERRERDI12(EA -
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after GRIEERSBATRBAE -

the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs 2.18 fEER A

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance
charges in respect of obligations under finance lease
and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. The
exchange gains and losses that are an adjustment to
interest costs include the interest rate differential

EEXRABENBMAX AHEREM
ENRERMARESINEIEEREL
BV EE 5 = B8 (AR AR A SR AN T B /Y
TRRR) o BH SRR ENE N W
S REREBRHERALNERRE
AE R EERA ZHEGEEN X
ZH - ARBMINEREBBRELNE

" between borrowing costs that would be incurred if %ﬁz$ ZESHENRIBEAZEREI
the entity had borrowed funds in its functional REEMETHEUEENFEMETSE
curre‘ncy and the borrowing costs actually incurred H o

on firelgn currency borrowings. Such amounts are
; ated based on interest rates on similar
‘ borrO\T/ings in the entity’s functional currency.

\"'l
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18

2.19

Borrowing costs (Continued)

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes
more than one accounting period, the amount of
foreign exchange differences eligible for capitalisation
is determined for each annual period and are limited
to the difference between the hypothetical interest
amount for the functional currency borrowings and
the actual interest incurred for foreign currency
borrowings. Foreign exchange differences that did
not meet the criteria for capitalisation in previous
years should not be capitalised in subsequent years.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes
more than one accounting period, the amount of
foreign exchange differences eligible for capitalisation
is determined on a cumulative basis based on the
cumulative amounts of interest expenses that would
have been incurred had the entity borrowed in its
functional currency. The total amount of foreign
exchange differences capitalised cannot exceed the
amount of total net foreign exchange differences
incurred on a cumulative basis at the end of the
reporting period.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group
comprise convertible bond that can be converted to
share capital of the Company at the option of the
holder, and the number of shares to be issued does
not vary with changes in their fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial
instrument is recognised initially at the fair value of a
similar liability that does not have an equity
conversion option. The equity component is
recognised initially at the difference between the fair
value of the compound financial instrument as a
whole and the fair value of the liability component,
which is included in shareholders’ equity in other
reserves. Any directly attributable transaction costs
are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to their initial carrying amounts.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19

2.20

Compound financial instruments (Continued)
Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of a compound financial instrument is
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The equity component of a
compound financial instrument is not re-measured
subsequent to initial recognition except on
CONVErsion or expiry.

The liability component of a convertible instrument is
classified as current unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis

of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2.19
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 EBEARETHERBE @)

2.20 Income tax (Continued) 2.20 Fri5%:i (4&)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Income tax (Continued)
Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

(i) Investment allowances and similar tax

incentives

Companies within the Group may be entitled to
claim special tax deductions for investments in
qualifying assets or in relation to qualifying
expenditure (eg the Research and Development
Tax Incentive regime in Oneland or other
investment allowances). The Group accounts
for such allowances as tax credits, which
means that the allowance reduces income tax
payable and current tax expense. A deferred
tax asset is recognised for unclaimed tax credits
that are carried forward as deferred tax assets.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Group has participated in the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for its Hong
Kong staff. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The MPF
Scheme is generally funded by payments from
—employees and by the Group. The Group’s
" contributions to the MPF Scheme are expensed
| asiincurred in accordance with the rules of the
“'MPF Scheme and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who
La e the MPF Scheme prior to vesting fully in
. thejcojtributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

2.22

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

In accordance with the PRC regulations, the
Group is required to pay social security
contributions for its PRC staff based on certain
percentage of their salaries to the social
security plan organised by related governmental
bodies (“PRC plan”).

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid to the
MPF Scheme and PRC plan. The Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme and PRC plan
are recognised as employee benefit expense in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income when they are
due.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination
penalties and employee termination payments.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

( Il‘, ~

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
" as.a provision.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Sales of prefabricated units

Sales of prefabricated units are recognised
when control of the products has transferred,
being when the products are delivered to the
customers, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of
the products.

When either party to a contract has performed,
the Group presents the contract in the
consolidated balance sheet as a contract asset
or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the Group’s performance
and the customer’s payment.

Revenue from granting licenses

Revenue from granting licenses is recognised in
conjunction with related services at one point in
time when the required training of the licensing
is provided to the customers and then the
customer can direct the use of, and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits from
alicense.

Sales of equipment

Sales of equipment are recognised when the
control of the equipment has transferred, being
when the equipment is delivered to the
customer and accepted by the customer in
accordance with contract.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any
contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods or services to
the customer and payment by the customer
exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Group does not adjust any of the transaction
prices for the time value of money.

Revenue from consulting service income
Revenue from consulting service is recognised
over the service period when the service are
render to the customers as the customers can
benefit simultaneously as the Group
performing.
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2.23 WATER

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24

2.25

|

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease.
Obligations under finance lease are capitalised at the
lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
other long-term payables. The interest element of the
finance cost is charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The property, plant and

lequipment acquired under finance lease is

depreuated over the shorter of the useful life of the

asset and the lease term.

\ j
Divijlend distribution

‘Divide‘gd distribution to the Company’s shareholders

is recog ised as a liability in the Group’s and the

“ Company's financial statements in the period in

which thé,dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #& —ZE— \F+-A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group, if
that person:

(b)

(i)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-ZT— N\F+_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EXEBRMEm@
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.27 Related parties (Continued) 2.27 BAEF (&)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of (b) WS T IMEMIEAE - BlZEE
the following conditions applies: HAXEEERHEE : ()
(Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled (vi) ZEBX@A#HAIA
by a person identified in (a). PRIk R o

(vii) a person identified in (a) has significant (i) @WFTBAALTHZES
influence over the entity or is a member BEAZENNEBEZETRE
of the key management personnel of the (HZEBNEARME
entity (or of a parent of the entity). DEBRERE -

Close family members of an individual are those HFER AT HREERK S 578 R

family members who may be expected to influence, ZERETEERIZEZA LT

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with RATHERNREEKE -

the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party HiEHF v EEEERIETNRS

transaction when there is a transfer of resources or WIREBELIRS

obligations between related parties.

2.28 Subsequent events 2.28 MEMBEIE

Events after the reporting period that provide BARE BN RE R A IR EE

additional information about the Group’s position at EBROSMEHEEE(HAZRER]DR

the end of the reporting period (“adjusting events”) EAEREANARM - WIEFHERER
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. MEARE B EENM TR -

Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when
material.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 gEitBEREH
This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 A TR BN B B SR E KR o &
Financial Instruments and HKFRS 15 Revenue from BMTAREAUBFREEANFISHRRKER
Contracts with Customers on the Group’s financial PAHNMAHAREEBVBREHOZE - 5
statements and also discloses the new accounting policies WEe—_Z— \F—A—BREERNF:IE
that have been applied from 1 January 2018, where they HE  MZEREERNBARMER
are different to those applied in prior periods. % o
3(a) Impact on the financial statements 3(a) HEEBmERZTE
In accordance with transitional provisions in HKFRS 9, R R B SR A KR E oS rEE
the Group did not restate any comparative financial &3 REBE W EGEE BB 153 & %
information for impact of HKFRS 9. In addition, the AIEISi e B2 EVEMLERIBFE
Group elected to apply modified retrospective Bo AN REBRIBEEEMNISHRE
approach under HKFRS 15. Accordingly, the LRE155BEBEALIBITENE -
comparative figures were not restated. Bt - WESILLEET
The following tables show the adjustments T ERGEEERES B2
recognised for each individual line item. Line items WAREFTANZ EEHTEBNIER - At -
that were not affected by the changes have not been BB/ KA ERRBLREE
included. As a result, the sub-totals and totals HTENTE - TXEREFEERE
disclosed cannot be recalculated from the numbers B -
provided. The adjustments are explained in more
detail by standard below.
31 December
2017 1 January,/ -
As originally 2018 /
presented HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 Restated //
i S 1 74
+=A=+—8B  EEMBERE  EEMBERE '
REZ5 ZERIZE 95R AERIZE 1555
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Balance sheet (extract) EEASER (HR) FAET FEIT FEIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Deferred income tax assets BEMEREE 20,751 424 -
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 1,779,977 424 -
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables & 5 & E fth e Ug 308 bl
and prepayments KIEFRIE 402,516 (1,697) L
Available-for-sale financial AHHESREE 4
assets 23,926 (23,926) (=
AR EE R AR /
Financial assets at fair value HEPAHABRENS |
through profit or loss BMEE G e
= 23926 = 23926 <]
Total current assets TS EAE 1,088,011 (1,697) 2 = 1,0 6]31,4/'/
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3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 gEitBREs @
(Continued)
3(a) Impact on the financial statements (Continued) 3(a) YUK BmR2ZE (EF)
31 December
2017 1 January
As originally 2018
presented HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 Restated
—T—tF
+=—BA=+—H BRI BRE BB BRE —E-N\F
REZF EERIE 95K AEBIZE 1555 —HA—HBE7%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
Balance sheet (extract) BEEEER () FHEIT FEIT FEIT FET
Total assets EEMRE 2,867,988 (1,273) - 2,866,715
Current liabilities REEE
Contract liabilities ARAaE - - 22,987 22,987
Advance from customers AW EFRIA 22,987 - (22,987) -
Total current liabilities REBAEEE 329,471 - - 329,471
Total non-current liabilities 3ERE & &A% 133,123 - - 133,123
Equity R
Reserves fHE 723,517 (1,220) - 722,297
Non-controlling interests IR A= 560,917 (53) - 560,864
Total equity R 2,405,394 (1,273) = 2,404,121

3(b)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Impact of
adoption

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that
relate to the recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

" The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments from 1
January 2018 resulted in changes in accounting
gpol‘iots and adjustments to the amounts recognised
in-the financial statements. The new accounting
pol\io‘Les are set out in Note 2.11. In accordance with
> *the transitional provisions in HKFRS 9(7.2.15) and
(7.2.2$, comparative figures have not been restated.

3(b) ERUMBHRELEUFEIFREMT A —
RS R
BEMBHRELANEIRMEET LR
EREIRAMER  DELFTES
MEENGRAE KRIEBRRESHT
B EREEREREPGR ZEX -

B-Z-N\F—-A-HERANBTEY
BREEMEIFERMT AR - EHEGt
BRESH LW HHRERADERSEL
PR - FrETBEREIINMFE2.11 -
RIRE B M 15| 2R 5 957 (7.2.15)
K2(7.2.260) BB MEIRY - BB F A
mEY -
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3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Impact of
adoption (Continued)
The total impact on the Group’s accumulated losses
attributable to owners of the Company as at 1

3 EiTHREE ®)

3b) ERUYBBELAEIRESMTAE —
RE (A)
RZZE-N\F—HA—B HARQEE
BARGAKRERGBENATZEN

January 2018 is as follows: T
notes HK$°000
HizE FET
Closing accumulated losses 31 December 2017 R=-Z—tH&+=-A=+—-HBZFXKE
— HKAS 39 SR — BB ETEAIZE 39K (373,951)
Increase in provision for trade and other receivables & 5 & E fib & Uk T8 B 5 42 hn (i) (1,626)
Increase in deferred tax assets relating to impairment 75 BRI (E # 4 ~ YR T 74 18 & =L N
provisions (ii) 406
Adjustment to accumulated losses from adoption of ~ R=—ZT— \F— A — B AT BB
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 HRAFE I IE RETBIB 2 AR (1,220)
Opening accumulated losses 1 January 2018 R-B-NF-A—BZEDRFEER
— HKFRS 9 — EBMBREENFEIR (375,171)
(i) Classification and measurement () ZDERIE

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9), the Group’s management has
assessed which business models apply to the
financial assets held by the Group and has
classified its financial instruments into the
appropriate HKFRS 9 categories as follows:

=
R=F—\E—A—B(HRE
FESHBREEAEIR A
) AEEERBEFHEHE
£BRUERNARERENS )
REAE UEBHEBIANE
i%&w%#%+ﬂ%é%m@/
BT 4

,//

// FvVoCI
(Avri]ab_le-for-
FVPL /

#
SR RMEE %ﬂtﬁ 3

HEERED (@ 1 NN
AR = i AR

Financial assets — SREE — Note ~HKS'000 HK$”000 |
1 January 2018 —Z-N\§$-F—-H fitsE FETT
Closing balance R-T—+E+-_fA=+—BZEX

31 December 2017 — HKAS 39+ o — BB GERIE 395
Reclassify investments from BEHAELEESHHOBEEURAE

available- for-sale to FVPL BEifE EHEH ABE 23

Opening balance 1 January 2018 RZZ—NF—A—Rz2ENEEsH
— HKFRS 9 — BAMEREERE IR
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3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Impact of
adoption (Continued)
(ii)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has financial assets below that are
subject to HKFRS 9's new expected credit loss
model:

° trade receivables
° other receivables

The Group has revised its impairment
methodology under HKFRS 9 for each of these
classes of assets. The impact of the change in
impairment methodology on the Group's
accumulated losses attributable to owners of
the Company is disclosed in the table in Note
3(b) above.

While cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables.

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

3b) ERVBBELAFEIRESMITE —

R4
(ii)

TE (&)
EHEERE
AEETIEREERETELE
s s ERIFE O 2 A HIE
EEBRER

o  HEHRIFA
o HMEUWIA

AEERBEEVBHRE LR

VMM A FRRNEEECIETR
BHE - ARRIHEBARBIERE
BRZFERZRENEEBHTE
WER ERHTFE3D) -

BRERERRESZEBE AL
STEB YIRS 2R 95 /YR

BERE - EBHEREREIL
BEX-

=) -3¢/
AEBRAEBVBREENE
VMBI T A ERBEES
1B BEESRUGKIRRER
EFERARTEREE
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3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(Continued)

3(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Impact of
adoption (Continued)

EETHREE (@)

3b) ERUYBBELAEIRESMTAE —
RE (A)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) ZREEREE)
To measure the expected credit losses, trade AitETEHEEEE  BHEN
receivables has been based on shared credit REDEREEEERBSE &8
risk characteristics and the days past due. On HAKBEEE - IRIBILEE > B
that basis, the loss allowance as at 1 January —E-NF—FA—BHESREW
2018 was determined as follows for trade SHIAEIBREDETN T
receivables:
Less than 6 months More than
6 months  to 1 year 1 year
Current pastdue pastdue pastdue Total
B BEAEA B
1 January 2018 —E-N\f¥—-A—H B RAEA E-F ZR-F st
Expected loss rate LIV B 0.1% 2.5% 3.1% 6.9% -
Gross carrying amount IRE#BE 80,251 31,751 5,107 - 117,109
Loss allowance EE RS 101 800 157 - 1,058

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at
31 December 2017 reconcile to the opening
loss allowances on 1 January 2018 as follows:

N_ET—tF+_H=+—HEH
SEWAEEBRBERER -
—N\F—A—BEVBEREZ
HERIT -

receivables
//. e
H /§$/ ‘000 - \\7&\ K

et

At 31 December 2017

Amounts restated through opening accumulated losses
Opening loss allowance as at 1 January 2018

— calculated under HKAS 39

— calculated under HKFRS 9

R-ZF—tFt+-A=1+—H
—REEGHERFE WA HE

EBFENRFBEEINEHE

RZZE—N\F—A—HZFVEEERE

— REBUBIREEUNEIRTE
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3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Impact of
adoption (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade receivables are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group.

Other receivables

For other receivable (excluding value-added tax
recoverable) already in place at 1 January 2018,
the Group applies the general model for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9.
Since credit risk has not been considered as
significantly increased after initial recognition,
provision for the loss allowance for other
receivables recognised during the period was
therefore limited to 12 months expected losses.

Applying the expected credit risk model
resulted in the recognition of a loss allowance
of HK$639,000 on 1 January 2018.

3,}:) HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers — Impact of adoption
After considering the changes in accounting policies
as a result of the initial application of HKFRS 15, the
. Directors considered that the initial application of
HKFRS 15 has no material impact on the consolidated
" financial statements of the Group, save for the
; o~roSentation of contract assets and liabilities.
()| Presentation of assets and liabilities
\related'to contracts with customers
—Contract liabilities in relation to sales
iré fabricated units contracts were previously
’/in\clI}u ed in advance from customers
N HHKS 22,987,900 as at 1 January 2018).

3

EETEHREE @)

3(b) EEBMBHREENFIREMTA —
RS R (&)
(i) ZEEERE(H)

BA A TR TR B [T SRIARS - A
ﬁ%%ﬂ%ﬂ’éﬂﬂl RIB o RS IRTAH]
WEIKIAENERE (AR EHE)E
5 N R SRR SR B 5] S8 ARAT
El

Hith e 51 E
R-F-N\F-A-BFENH
i FE W R IR (A B 45 7] [ U ey 18
BR)ME  ARECEAEE
R EERIEIRIEENTA
EEBERBARKRLY - AREER
B IaTERE - W BB SAMR
IEAN - 7 HA P T R A At R S R
HEERERMRRY + @A N
EHEE -

EREAEERR R T
—N\E— - BRREEEE
639,000/ 7T °

3(c) BEBUBHEERNEISHRRAEFE
HHBA — RPN E
%J‘é ARVRERE LM GRS LR
FISHEMII BN G RRES  EF
RE - BAZIMANEERABIN -
VRERBBBREENF 155
AEEGEMHRRLBEERTE

(i) ZIEEFENHEBNEERA
&
HBSEFHERNERNAH
BELAGFAREER KA
(RZZFE-NF—-A—8A
22,987,000 7T) °
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

4.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange
risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

4.1.1 Market risk
(a)  Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the
value of financial instruments will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The majority of the
Group’s transactions and balances are
denominated in HKD and RMB, which are
the functional currencies of the Company
and its non-PRC mainland subsidiaries,
and its PRC mainland companies,
respectively.

The Company and its non-PRC mainland
subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities are
mainly denominated in HKD, except for
certain bank balances which are
denominated in RMB and United State
dollars (“USD"). As HKD are pegged to
USD, it is assumed that there would be no
material currency risk exposure between
these two currencies.

The PRC mainland companies’ assets and
liabilities are mainly denominated in RMB,
except for certain bank balances which
are denominated in HKD. Accordingly,
cash denominated in HKD is subject to
foreign exchange risk.

4 B

4.1

BEREEREMIE

R EE

AEBEXBAEARZERBRR : ™
SRR (BEMNERR  RERERA
AEENXRER)  EERRELRBE
TRk AEERBRAREENEE
ERERTSH AR - BEESR
AR R B AR B B 7S RIBBACH) &
ETMEE -

4.1.1 55 E
(@ JSMEREPFE

SNERBRIESR T AME
1B A P& == % &)y ) 8 A9 [
B o REBKRKIBMHR B K
EHRABTRARE
B BLIRARESRA
AN E) N H IE R B A
BARNEREFARBEAHA
RIMNREEH -

ADFREFERENH )
BARMAEREGETE )
RUBTHE WEFH
TREMARERERT /|
(TETEHE BRBT

A ‘ S

BT HNE - iR {E’;& LT
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% o
B
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

4.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

(@)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
Fluctuations in the exchange rates of HKD
against RMB will affect the Group’s result
of operations. The Group does not have
any formal hedging policies. However,
management closely monitors the foreign
exchange exposure and will take actions

when necessary.

As at 31 December 2018, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5%, against
HKD with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have
been HK$284,000 (2017: HK$278,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of net
foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of HKD denominated bank
deposits. All borrowings are denominated

in RMB.

risk

2018.

\ bearing assets.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to the Group's variable
interest generating bank balances and
bank borrowings with variable interest
rates in 2018 while the short term
borrowings with fixed rate exposed the
Group to fair value interest rate risk in

N ‘ . Except for cash deposits in the bank, the
: Group has no other significant interest

HEEREERSHM T A @)

4.1

HiEREZ (F)
4.1.1 15 E R (4E)

(@)

(b)

JME [ iz (4E)
BLTHAARBNERRE
BEERNEELERE -
7N & B 3 /B AEAA] IE =0 %0
KR -Am- EBREZTY)
EEPRSNE R B - IR B
ZRRMITH ©

RZZETE—-—NF+=A
=+t—H MARKLE
THE/BES%mAEE
HEHERTTE  FAM
m A e MmmD
284,000 7T (ZF —H 5 -
278000 L) WIHEE
HRITE S T E/ER
THEREENE LB
BAREFHEAMY - ATA
BEHUARBHE -

BERBRRAABEFE
=l
AEER-Z—N\FHH
TREMERAREREAR
;‘%lﬂc,uﬁﬁﬁmﬁ%&ﬁ
BEAHE MEHESE
ESAERR _ZT-N\F
EZAEEMNERRER

BRIFRRITHRESFR
AREYBEHEMBE AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
4.1.1 Market risk (Continued)

e IR R AR MY R

”‘r =~

—NF+ZA=+— Elitif

HEEREERSHM T A @)

4.1

HiSAREZ ()
4.1.1 15 ER (E)

(b)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate (b)) BE2HERINLEEFE
risk (Continued) BBz (48)
Management does not anticipate EEEBEPNEEHET
significant impact to interest-bearing eHFTEEENRBITEE
assets and bank borrowings resulted from Mk EATE FEATE
the changes in interest rates, because the HIETTERREER EI’J A =
interest rates of bank deposits and B e HIRE S
borrowings are not expected to change
significantly.
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, if RIE—N\FERZE—+tF
interest rates on interest-generating bank +=—A=1+—8 " 4zt B4R
deposits and borrowings with floating TR AR LB FI R EH
rates had been 50 basis points higher/ BEHEF = EF T RS0
lower with all other variables held EE2MTA £ E &M
constant, the post-tax loss of the Group T KREBREE_-Z
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and —NER—F—+F+=A
2017 would have changed as follows: =t+—RHIEFENFEESR
HFHIRA T2 E)
2018
—ZE-N\F
HK$'000
FET
Post-tax profit increase/(decrease) &1  Fi& i, Gm4>)
— 50 basis points higher — EFASOEEZ, (1,171)
— 50 basis points lower — Tk 50 EE 2 1,171
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4 BEEREENEMIAE@®
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 HMEERKBEZE(E)
4.1.2 Credit risk 4.1.2ERRE
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group's RZBE-N\FRZE—tF+=
maximum exposure to credit risk is trade and A=+—8 AEEHNREEE
other receivables and bank balances. [R\ B = 5 I EL th & W R IE I 8R
1THE8R
Trade receivables B Z W E
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified AREBERBEBVEHRELEDSE
approach to measuring expected credit losses ORI T AT ERBEERS
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance 12 BFEE S EWSRIBREE
for all trade receivables. As at 31 December EFESHANNTEEEE N =
2018, the loss allowance provision was —NE+—A=+—HBEEEE
determined as follows. THEFEMT o
Less than 6 months  More than
6 months -1 year 1 year
Current past due past due past due Total
BRSR  AEANEA AHSRH
B ~MEA Z-F - @5t
31December2018 =F—-NF+=F
=t+-AH
Expected loss rate BHBEE 0.1% 2.5% 3.1% 6.9% =
Gross carryingamount BRI #1E 213,274 48,294 30,684 2,688 294,940
Loss allowance EEEE 268 1,218 944 184 2,614
For credit risk arised from trade receivable HE 5 EUGE Iﬁ,ﬁ%ﬁ%?iﬁ’ﬂ:ﬁ
balances, each local entity is responsible for RS - Ria TIREMNRR
managing and analysing the credit risk for each 1‘HI7’§¥’X&1I7M¢HIJ %i‘ﬂﬁﬁ‘g‘%ﬁ
of their new clients before standard payment EERNIMBEHEFHEER

—and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Ekliﬁ @
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
4.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)
The credit risk on bank deposits are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit rating assigned by international credit-
rating agencies and are the PRC large state-
controlled banks. As such, no significant credit
risk from bank deposits is anticipated.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Cash transactions are limited to high-credit-
quality financial institutions. The table below
shows the bank deposit balances as at 31

4 BEERMEERESMIAE@®

4.1 HMKERKBEZE(E)

4.1.2 B Rk (&)
BRRZEHFHRERBREERT
THELETREETRORITR
FEARBEARIT  BIRITER
WEERBRER - Bt - EHR
NTEZETSELEEANEER

LA
a

o o
ZoN

EREERRAEEMBMRAR
AEBREMEENKRMEE °

ReX5ERNEEERREN
SRR - TREIIN=_F—N\
FR-_F—+tF+-_A=1+—H

December 2018 and 2017: BIERTTIF R AE R
2018 2017
R=B-N\F RIZT—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Counter party REGEF FET
Deposits with the state-owned banks 7 BIRITHTFH
of the PRC 54,491
Deposits with other listed banks R B E M EmiRITH
of the PRC TR 54,854
Deposits with other banks RE A RITHIE R 1,457
110,802

Management does not expect any losses from
non-performance of these counterparties.

EREEBTRERZERIYF
FROTRSEMRL-
Al | P s
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
4.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

Other Receivables

Other receivables mainly comprise receivables
amount due from related parties and land
deposit. The Group closely monitors these other
receivables to ensure actions are taken to
recover these balances in the case of any risk
of default.

As at 31 December 2018, since credit risk has
not significantly increased after initial
recognition, the loss allowance for other
receivables recognised during the period was
therefore limited to 12 months expected losses.
Applying the expected credit risk model
resulted in a reversal of impairment loss
amounting to HK$59,000 as at 31 December
2018.

4.1.3 Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecast is prepared by the finance
department of the Company. Group finance
monitors rolling forecast of the Group'’s liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to
meet operational needs.

Surplus cash held by the Group over and above
balance required for working capital are
deposited with bank with good credit rating. As
at 31 December 2018, the Group held cash and
cash equivalent of approximately HK$110.8
—million.

| The table below analyses the Group's financial
~ liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period as at 31 December
im and 2017 to the contractual maturity date.
~ The aTounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.

4

HEEREERSHM T A @)

4.1

HiEREZ (F)
4.1.21=ERk (&)

Bt WA

H A FEU NI = BB IR R IR B B
FRERIHIES  ALEER
PIEEEZ SH b FEURGRIA - LARE
{RTE 30 (a2 40 R b B B EER
MEUR B 1 S BR K o

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—8"
HRPHEREEERBRITEKR
PRI AN - Eit - HIRE R EA
JRE U5 TR IE s TR R M PR ) 8 121
BrEHEE R N\E+=
RA=+—8  ERAEHEERR
18 AU 38 B $3 [a] ok {8 85 18 59,000 7%
JL °

4.1.3 BB ELER

Bens @R h AR =M
%°EIW%@WQ$EI%

//lu@)éfj'zﬁ'ﬁ:ﬁ?_ TRENTEA -

ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁ%@%

%F'%o

AEERBEERNEEESHT
*%m%%ﬁ%TWFﬂﬁEﬁ
EEFRNET R N\F
TZA=+—B AEEHAHR
& &I e % EIEH 49 110,800,000
BT

TERAMARENERHAE
DRRER_F-NER_F
—tFtT-A=+—BE&EMNE
HIR PSR T HIRIR BRI I A
T RABRBENESEREHN
ARBRBERE °
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4 BEEREENEMIAE@®
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 HBEAKBEE(E)
4.1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued) 413 7B EL R ()
Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2and>5 years Total
PR-F —EEME MEZRE Bt
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET FET
As at 31 December 2018 R=F—-N\f&
tT=A=t-H
Trade and other payables BESREMERNTE 413,813 - - 413,813
Bank borrowings RITfEE 178,565 300,892 80,462 559,919
Financial lease MAHE 1,765 2,952 53 4,770
594,143 303,844 80,515 978,502
As at 31 December 2017 R=-Z—t#&
+-A=+-H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERNFA 266,537 - - 266,537
Bank borrowings RITEE 23,895 39,897 70,130 133,922
290,432 39,897 70,130 400,459 \l
/// ) \\t\ .
4.2 Capital risk management 42 BXEAKEE ‘ 4 \‘\ s
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to AEBESEEANS EIREAEH h,a [ .
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going e IR -1 & & If:gh ~ Y
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders SEE AL 1§L,(,m1£§§$ﬁg$ S

and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, Ao O AR % A
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid BOR A T ISR RS B 458
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to MR EBE R ﬁj‘%
reduce debt. { :
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4 BBEREERESEIAE @
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
4.2 cCapital risk management (Continued) 4.2 BFXRREBRERE(F)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the AREBUNEEABHLRERERN - %
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt LEEDFBBERNERNEETE - F
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total BENEEENERERTEHIR
borrowings and obligations under finance lease less SEERRSNRESEEEBAE
restricted cash for borrowings and cash and cash éﬂ&%@%ﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂjﬁjﬂi‘%ﬁﬁﬁlj%é
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as total equity, BEEINFEETE -
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position, plus net debt.
The gearing ratios of the Group at 31 December 2018 AEBR_ZBE—NFR_ZT—+LtF
and 2017 were as follows: +=—A=+— EE’UéﬁEﬁTﬁﬁEKZIDT :
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
RZB-—NFE RZE—LF
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Total borrowings BIEE 496,576 119,630
Total obligations under finance lease REHE AR 4,404 =
Interest payable FERTFIE 375 -
Less: restricted cash for borrowings B XRFIReEE (130,000) -
Cash and cash equivalents RekReSHEER (110,802) (582,511)
Net debt FEIE 260,553 (462,881)
Total equity (note (a)) R 4B FE (M7t (@) 1,770,906 1,844,477
- Total capital BEARBRE 2,031,459 1,381,596
Gearing ratio BERBELE 13% -34%

| to-owners of the Company.

hote‘( )\ Equity includes share capital and reserves attributable

Bret () -
i o

BEBEADEER AR R &
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4 BEEREENEMIAE@®
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.3 Fair value estimation 4.3 RAREEMEE
The table below analyses financial instruments TRABEEZEDMIRAALBEAR
carried at fair value by valuation method. The MemIAE - TREANERET

different levels have been defined as follows:

—  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for — HREESBGELERMISHR
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1). BOCRERAZ)(F14) »
— Inputs other than quoted prices included within — BRTB1RAEBENREN  Z
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or BENBENITEREASRE -
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or Al AEE(BMER) @i (AR
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2). BER)BABE(E2R) -
— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not — BEXGEIIFKETERTIES
based on observable market data (that is, HE R A SE (BN 3Er Bk
unobservable inputs) (Level 3). ABE)(B3H) -
The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AEEBNKRAANBETABSE ZE®
of the Group are measured at fair value by Level 3. BEFREIFIZALEBET= °
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1R $28 FE3R @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets at fair value BAREBEABRRY |
through profit or loss TREE - - 23,967 \23,96,7
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\F :
+=B=+-A 5 = 23,967 123,967
Available -for-sale financial assets  AJft HESRIEE - - 23,926
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tF ! | ) Ay N
+=A=+-H - - 23,926 | 23926 |
o I :/;;Il\\\\
There was no transfer between level 1 and 2 during ERNES 1 REE ) B IR S
/| = o i

the year.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 4
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

HEEREERSHM T A @)

4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 4.3
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active

DMABEMLE (F)
REBRTBSEENERTARRER

markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The instrument
is included in Level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over- the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
technigues. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value

TREEABRAHNTSRETE
WRZPT - R ~ &4~ TTRAR
BEQAXEEERAES L EH
RURE - MEBETISZRERER -
B BERRRIZAFEEERRE
FETHNMSERS - ZTAFAE

WIERNEFRMSEEN ST A (S
IR BTETR) AAEBEIERAGE
FEETE -  ZEMESEREFNAA
BEENAEEMEHE YRR
KEEBBEMT - MEETIAAR
BEMR2HMERE ASES T EHR -
ZITHEAGTAE 2% -

an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based it — 1B sk A _E B K A BB FERE
on observable market data, the instrument is included AERMISEEREL - IZIT ARG A
in Level 3. The following table presents the changes F3H o TSI TRBE_E—N\F
in Level 3 instruments for the year ended 31 +TZA=FT—HLEFERHE=-Z
December 2018 and the year ended 31 December —+E+-A=+—HIFEFIRT
2017. B HEE) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

HEEMREERSHM T A @)

4.3 RDAREEMS (&)

Quantitaive information
about fair value measurements
using significant unobservable

inputs (Level 3)
EREAABEFERANEE

o BEm AEE (E3R)
HWEEEHR
Fair value at
31/12/2018 Valuation
(HK$'000) technique
R=Z—N\F
+=A=+—8
KR REE
Description Bt (F#7T) HELZE
Other equity securities: HAAR A TE H Asset-Based

Equity instruments T H

approach
23,967 BEEMRE

See note 23 for disclosure of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss that are measured at fair
value.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstance. The Group makes
estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed
below.

BAREBEFENZIEETAR
BNEREENRERSHME3 -

EETRHMART R FE | VRN

// N
// S
// .
// S|
>4 K

~

st RABREBEEBREMER(R |

BEABER THEYRARESBARNRE

B F R AT A o AR B R AOE (T

&ﬁ&oﬁ%ﬁm@ﬁ@ﬁﬁiﬁiyg,
4
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AERAREEETHEABRGEREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

5 CR

ITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

directly

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group's management determines the provision
for impairment of trade receivables based on the
expected credit losses which use a lifetime expected
loss allowance for trade receivables. This assessment
is based on the credit history of its customers and
other debtors and the current market condition as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of
reporting period, and requires the use of judgements
and estimates. Management reassesses the
provisions at each balance sheet date.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the
period in which such determination is made.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses and analyses whether property
and equipment would impair on each balance sheet
date. When the carrying value of an asset or a group
of assets exceeds the recoverable amount (the higher

" of the net amount of fair value less cost of disposal

and tpe present value of estimated future cash flow),
it indi}cates that an impairment has occurred. The net
a‘moiunt‘oﬁfair value less cost of disposal is
determined by reference to the agreed sales price or
‘the oﬂservable market price of similar assets in arm’s
length transactions, less incremental costs that are

jattrﬁbutable to the disposal of the asset.

puring thb. egtimation of the present value of future

- cash flow, the management needs to estimate the
: \l;fgt‘ ré cash flow of the asset or group of assets, and
[seleit an appropriate discount rate to determine the

‘i‘goggs nt va\lue\of the future cash flow.

5 EEEsHEFRAE@®

(a)

(b)

(c)

B 5 RWRIARE

AEEERERBEEAREEEE]
B 5 EURIR A7 & A E R &
BIRHETE B 5 R UGRIRR R E R -
ZARHEERE T REMEH ARG
BB RER TS IERARR®RE B
REVATRE AT - SR EERHE R
it - EEEFNEEEEAEBERA
BB

Frig®t

AEEBHNZ ERDEERIOMEHR -
RETMEHBEESER  FE2EH
EBRHE - BT D REEHEE REHIA
MRS RFEHE - AEEREBEERAM
MBI AN EARTRAR B EZE
HRERBAE MREEENZEHRE
RRENISTHNESBINT - BEE
KR EFLEENHRANNH R
BERFFEHEERARE

3 - BERRERE
AEERTEEREBRBHYERR
BELAREREETHHEMON - &
BEXEEMANEREESR AR
R (ARARBEREREERRANFE
BMAMBAAARRR S RENRER R
=E)  RABLTREIE - 2 EER
ERBERARNFEE  R2ERQTR
HTRUEENHEHEEBIAE
RIAMTIGER  BEFTERREBR
ZEEREMNIEEKATEE - AR
XReRERER EEERMBITZ
REEXEEHANBIRKRRRE
WERBRENTREREERKRE R
EMRE-
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a
variety of methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the
end of each reporting period.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is determined
by using valuation technigue. Such assessment is
made based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainties and might materially differ
from the actual result. In making the judgement,
reasonable consideration has been given to the
underlying assumptions that are mainly based on
market condition existing at the reporting date. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market
data and actual transactions in the market.

Estimated useful lives and residual values of
property and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated
useful lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group's property and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property and equipment of
similar nature and functions. Management will revise
the depreciation charges where useful lives are
different to that of previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives and actual residual values may differ from
estimated residual values. Periodic review could
result in a change in depreciable lives and residual
values and therefore depreciation expense in future
periods.

5 EEEsHEFRAE@®

(d)

(e)

(f)

EMIANAAMEBE
WIRERTIZEEN SR TA (fIn
BN BITETE) MR EETIF B
BEDEERE - ARERERHER
BARDE  AXEBRERESEHRE
HIRMBRAHSBERELRE

REMEHENAAEE
BREMFHENAREBELNAGE
JTIRETE © st T IRBR TR
EZRFINAEEERGREEAEZR
BETERREL - RIELHER - 2
EEEEIZRENBREAHRNRE
MSERMELNERRR - ZFH
AAEMEMZNERMEHIERER
RBHALE o

WERBBOAEHTERAFHRIYG
EE
AEBEEREREEBEREELY )
MERRGEEREREROBELR )
REAANAEREY  AHEEY \
EREER  EEREHEZA
fEEF TR - AR RMORD WER
am%m&mia@ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁm\dg;\
HEN TEESERAERM '
Pt 40 A 8 48 B0 ) B T TR Y Tt £
FIR - WEREOFIREE DA AR
Bat OISR E(E - RAREA B
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E - ZE— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

6 REVENUE 6 UWA
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-Z-—N\F BE_ZT—tF
+=—HA=+—-8H +=—A=+—H
IHFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue from sales of prefabricated units 38 (5 $5 & TR - H U A 423,640 173,565
Revenue from granting licenses KRB TER M A
B U A 84,895 32,711
Revenue from sales of equipment KEHEERBEHWA 18,586 5,815
Rental income M WA 1,919 1,586
Revenue from consulting service income 3k B s8R IEHIUA 1,192 2,910
530,232 216,587
note a: Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities Wfeta: RHEEHBEBBHIRA
The following table shows how much of the revenue TREHARNBEHANEREE N BESE
recognised in the current reporting period relates to EEMNEEAOBERBOETEBRIW
carried-forward contract liabilities and how much relates to AEEE o
- performance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.

31 December

2018
—E-N\F
+=BA=+—H
HK$’000
gl T
" \ Repv%nue recognised that was included inthe  RE#E %E HBEEHRAN
X ntract liability balance at the beginning 2R A
of the year:

. Sales of prefabricated unit contracts FBEBHHERH 17,344
| sales of licenses contracts BRI EREEE A X 5,643

R 22,987
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REVENUE (continued)

note b: Unsatisfied long-term sales of prefabricated units contracts

The following table shows unsatisfied performance
obligations resulting from long-term sales of prefabricated

units contracts.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

6 Ut A @)

RENBHEE -

Hratb: RENREITARMBIHE

—NF+ZA=+—RLFE

=)

TREFIARMERBHHESOMELN

31 December

31 December

2018 2017
—E-N\F = —+F
+=ZBA=+—-H +t=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Aggregate amount of the transaction RGEEBESELT :
price allocated to
Sales of prefabricated units contracts TAERBAHIHESL 266,444 -
Sales of licenses contracts BRI AEHE S L 10,272 -
276,716 =
*  As permitted under the transitional provision in HKFRS 15, the ¥ ERRMBRERAE IS FRBEMEERAE R
transaction price allocated to (partially) unsatisfied performance ZE—+FF+ZA=+—0  TAREBEHEZ(H
obligations as of 31 December 2017 is not disclosed. D) RERBLHEENZSHEIE o
OTHER INCOME 7 HigA
Year ended Year ended >
31 December 31 Dec mber )
2018 2017 \‘ i
BE-R-\F BE-T, t¢ y
+=-BA=+—-8 +=AZ% :f
LFE JJ:EF“
HK$’'000 K$ OQO
FET
Interest income on bank deposits IRITIFRF B UA 2,359
Others Hfth 1,151

3,510
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—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

8 OTHER GAINS — NET 8 Hitnlkz=z—F8
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-ZT—\F HE_ZFT—+F
+=BA=+—8H +=ZA=+—8H
ILFE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Net exchange gains/(losses) bE 5 Was (B518) F 8 4,537 (1,272)
Net gains on financial assets at fair value ~ LARA AR BEEE B HE BT A
through profit or loss BafemEENRZEFE 2,789 (413)
Fair value gains/(losses) on Tﬁ’éﬁ'l‘i%ﬂ%ﬁ’\]’&ﬁ{%@
investment properties iz, (1) 367 (18,337)
Losses on disposal of equipments tlj%‘“ﬁﬁéﬂa (930) -
Recovery of trade and other receivables W B8 5 K E fih W kI = 30,4838
Net gains on redemption of BRIAIMHHESREERN
available-for-sale financial assets s 558 = 5,820
Gain on recovery of other receivables W B HoAth pE M R IB Uk 25
— interest charged on late settlement — R EREAF B — 1,420
Provision for onerous contract EiEaRaEE - (1,857)
Others EAh 388 (561)
7,151 15,288
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution

9 EUHIDHMAX

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

R BREREENA - SHE RO HRASARTT

expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as BEX > oM T :
follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-Z— N\ BE_Z—t%F
+=ZA=+—-H +=-—A=+—H
IEFE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Raw materials and consumables used E ARV R R EFE M 186,309 104,000
Change in inventories of finished goods MM ERRTFEEE)
and work in progress (9,249) (34,934)
Employee benefits expenses (note (a)) 8 TR (K@) 106,263 117,536
Depreciation e 50,360 42,357
Labour outsourcing BIEINE 32,915 33,208
Transportation Eig & 23,626 8,091
Operating lease rentals on buildings BFHgEHERS 18,202 21,677
Land use tax and value-added tax —+ s PR A R IR E R M N
surcharges 13,333 9,786
Legal and professional fees FEREEER 13,181 10,788
Entertainment and travelling expenses RiERERER 10,322 16,543
Amortisation of land use rights and o fE A I B B EE R O
intangible assets 10,508 12,772 )
Utilities DHEEBMA 8,136 /6,153
Auditors’ remuneration ZEE &
— audit services — ZER 1,890
— non-audit services — IER BT =
Provision for inventories impairment GFERERE 1,324
Bank charges RITUE 1,009
Office expenses WARMAZ 832
Registration expenses Ko nE = 565
Others Hi 47,036

Total of cost of sales, selling and distribution $8E AN « $5E K 55 2 A

expenses and administrative expenses

NATERBA 2 458 516,562
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=
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9 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 9 ERMHIESTHRAXZ @)
notes: Mzt -
(@) Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ and (a) EBIEMFX(BEESRESTBRASHS)

chief executive’s emoluments)

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

BE-_Z-N\&F HE_ZT—tF

+=H=+-—A8 +=A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Wages and salaries TERES 96,509 106,747

Pensions BRE 4,234 4,683

Other welfare benefit expenses HAab @A R 5,520 6,106
Charged to statement of profit or loss and Rz kEMmEEYER AR

other comprehensive income 106,263 117,536

(b)  Five highest paid individuals

(b) HERSHFHMAL

BE_Z-)/\F+_A=+—HLFE *&£H
TEESFMALT  BERE(EHE-_T—+
FTZA=+T—RALFE: =R)EF  RENH
SERMENA2IINDT PR - BHE=

—NF+ZA=+—RLFE E#h—R(EE

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 include four (year
ended 31 December 2017: three) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 11. Details of the
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2018 of the

remaining one (year ended 31 December 2017: two) highest paid —FFT-A=tTHLLFE: MB)NE
employees are as follows: = HEME B MF N BT
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
\ 2018 2017
BE-Z-N\F HE-T ti
+=B=t+—H +=ZRA=

HK$’000 HK$ OOO
FET FAT
| 1 ). Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 3 K H 1t 2 # & B /& 7 824 1,177
} ‘ Contribution to pension scheme BRRES B 18 30
842 1,207
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #& —ZE— \F+-A=+—HIFE

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE (continued) 9 RUEEISTHEFEZ @
notes: (Continued) Kt - (&)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) EHEESHMALE)
The remuneration to the remaining one (year ended 31 Ep— 2 BHEZ—tF+ZA=1+—HBL#HF
December 2017: two) highest paid employee fell within the M) SSEMESNTIER T &8E :

following emolument band:

Number of individuals

AB
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-_Z-N\& HE_ZT—+4F
+=A=+—8H +=—A=+—8H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 2= 1,000,000/& 7T 1 2
10 FINANCE COSTS 10 FERAR
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

RE-2-N\T BE-T 4
+=A=+-8 t=A=t+-FH
I3 =45

i_} N

HK$'000 HK§'000 /1
FHET TR/ [ \
// Z_ ) Y
Interest expenses on convertible bond A AR AR 25 BB S - k%@f’-’o‘? L \“\
Interest expenses on borrowings EEFAEY 13,739 4,063 / s

Less: Interest capitalised (Note 15) B BAEF B (KT 15) (4,584)

9,155
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11 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments
The remuneration of every director and the chief
executive is set out below. There is no chief executive
who is not a director of the Company.

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or its

(a)

11 ESEMRERS

ESRESTRAENME
BRESERRSTHRABNMSET
WT - IERSTRAEHRARATF
B%-

HEEARRREMBEARESZHE
ABRBEHENHENME :

subsidiaries:
For the year ended 31 December 2018: HE —NF+-_A=+—HItHF
E
Retirement
Fees Salary henefit costs Total
Name i we e BHREARE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
Executive Directors BTES
Yin Jun (Chairman) BE(E) - 1,950 - 1,950
Chen Domingo BEE(R=_F—NFE A - 1,400 9 1,409
(retired on 30 June 2018) ZTHEF)
Mi Hongjun EHE (R-FE—NEAA - 720 - 720
(retired on 30 June 2018) ZFHRE)
Yang Hongwei (CEO) BRE(THES) (R=F - 1,614 - 1,614
(appointed on 1 July 2018) —NE+A—RZf)
Non-Executive Directors 3F$}1"§$
Chen Donghui RRB(R_F-/\FBA 30 - - 30
(retired on 8 May 2018) AR EE)
Gan Ping B85 (R=F—\FRAN 30 - - 30
(retired on 8 May 2018) HRfE)
. Zhao Xiaodong HER(KR_F—/\F1A 30 - - 30
| (retired on 8 May 2018) NAE /f)
Peng Xiongwen RN (R=_F-\F+A 30 = = 30
~ (apppinted on 1July 2018) —AZ /:'E)
\ A
3 Inde‘Jendent Non-Executive BIEH{TES
‘ Dire(j"tors
~ Chan ChiHung RSB (K=F-NEFAA 140 - - 140
" (retired on 30.une 2018) —+E/ﬂ_€/f)
Jiang Hongging ZE 240 - - 240
\Lee CW Mmg : F5H 240 - - 240
Ma lrlslpan il 240 - - 240
980 5,684 9 6,673
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11 EEREAREX @)

(Continued)
(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERESTHRAENME (&)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017: BE_T—+tF+-_A=+—HIHF
E
Retirement
Fees Salary  Dbenefit costs Total
Name 4 e &  BRIEFIRER Bt
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET
Executive Directors BITES
Yin Jun (Chairman and CEO) B - 1,698 - 1,698
(FEFRITHABZ)
Chen Domingo PR B2 - 1,544 18 1,562
Mi Hongjun SHtE - 1,440 - 1,440
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Chen Donghui PeR B0 60 - - 60
Gan Ping ea 60 - - 60
Zhao Xiaodong HEEETE 60 - - 60
Zhou Feng (retired on 12 June 2017) &g (R = FE —+4F 54 - - 54
NA+ZHRE)
Independent Non-Executive B FHITES
Directors
Chan Chi Hung PR 240 - -
Jiang Hongging EHE 240 - - |
Lee Chi Ming ZEH 240 = = {
Ma Lishan B 240 - - ‘
1194 1,682 18 /5

For the year ended 31 December 2018 and the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not provide
any termination benefits, or pay or receive any
consideration to or from third parties for making
available directors’ service.

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not
have outstanding loan, quasi loan or other dealing
enter into by the Company or its subsidiaries, in
favour of directors of the Company or its controlling
shareholder, or the body corporates controlled by
such directors or entities connected with such
directors.

I
BE-T-\E+-A= +La¢/
ERBE-Z2—+E+LA=+F
\HE R - AR B S %@%
T 5% 6 55 = 75 3R 44 E (a B B AE A o

S SR E (T8 - 7

?khﬁ &mz:%a;\
/\l’p‘i‘;‘ﬁiéﬁEZ?%?ﬁ%ﬁ
T3 AW MR tgﬁCﬁ;, -
X5 o | s T
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

4= AH

B 55 R = B (48

11 BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

The emoluments of the directors are decided by the
Board of Directors, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics as well as the
recommendations of the Remuneration Committee of
the Board of Directors.

No Significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group's business to which
a company within the Group was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

11 EEREANREX @)

(@

ESRESTRAENMS (&)

EEMEHEFERERAEENE
BERE AARBARTELBTSHR
AHBUANEFEFHEBENER
FERIRETE ©

RARREZHMERATEBKE QRS
RV EAREBEEBARERFRIN
BHE_Z—\GFRZZE—tF+H
St RALEFEAEAKHETFENEE
R BHEREHNFTHEEENERE
Bk -

12 FiBHRAX (%)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-—Z— N\ HE-ZT—tF
+=ZA=+—-H +=—A=+—H
LEFE IEEE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FE&T

Irrent income tax REFTISH
PRC corporate income tax —HRPEER 24,715 23,080
Oﬂg Kong profits tax — BB G - 151
24,715 23,231
Def rred m ome tax (Note 30) RIEFRIS A (A1 5F 30) (17,812) (34,455)

\fﬁwmmmmwwmmwmwm FEREHHAS(ER) B8

6,903 (11,224)

for the year
T )|
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12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

(Continued)

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the enacted tax rate of the home country of the companies

within the Group as follows:

4=

nj\

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

/|

B FE IR AR AL

—NF+ZA=+—RLFE

Il‘/ =~

12 FRSHIRAE (&)@

AES B R RR P 1575 B A # P 1525 82456 A A
SEETARMERRKERMHTRAER
EweRAMIR  FEHEHIIMT

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-Z2-N\F #HE_ZT—+F
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
LEE EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEr
Profit before income tax FREr 1S 80 A A 26,243 112,597
Income tax calculated at respective BEBEEMEAERNMEN
statutory rates 8,476 16,227
Preferential income tax rate EBEEHE (5,066) (3,870)
Previously unrecognised tax losses iﬁf?&iﬁﬁﬁﬁ BIEEERAFE
recognised in current year as deferred BERAEERIBEE
tax assets (5,032) (4,289)
Adjustment of previously recognised AR AR EHE R M AT
deferred tax liabilities due to ERREERIES BEELA
conversion of convertible bond HE =
Non-deductible expenses AT 2,458
Non-taxable income BAERBBA (66)
Research and development expenditure NG EE X
additional deduction (392)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax BB KRR IEEE
losses (971)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FABARERNEREZSE
temporary differences -
Tax losses and temporary differences not iR ARERIEE ERNTIE
recognised as deferred tax assets EERERMERE 6,834
Prior year's tax filing differences I FEBRMERE 662
Total income tax expense/ (credit) for FEMEBHAL (Hf) B85
the year 6,903
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)
(Continued)

The tax charge relating to components of other
comprehensive income is as follows:

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

12 FREHRX (%)@

HE 2 EWA BN BHRER T

Year ended 31 December 2018
BE-E-\E+-A=1-ALEE

Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z-—+Et-A=t-RILEE

Beforetax  Tax charge After tax Beforetax ~ Taxcharge After tax
B REEX Bk 3] HER Bk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
&7 &7 &7 FET FAT AT
Fair value losses on available-for-sale F[{tHESBEBEAAER - - - 209 - 209
financial assets B
Currency translation differences SN EEE (105,416) - (105,416) 122,141 - 122,141
Other comprehensive (loss)) ~ Ht 2@ (58)/ KA (105,416) - (105,416) 122,350 - 122,350
income
Current tax SIEEE = -
Deferred tax ERHE - -
Hong Kong profits tax BEEMEH
NN The applicable Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% (year EA@?\]&EEE‘ hETERBEFMERANS
ended 31 December 2017: 16.5%) on the estimated BREHHEE165%(HE_ZT—+F

assessable profit derived in Hong Kong for the year.

Plﬁc corporate income tax

Under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (“CIT
\ Law"), the CIT rate applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries
I \established in mainland China is 25%, while certain
' X éd‘*‘bsidiaries are applicable to the preferential tax rate of

i f%T

) Thi CIT Law and its implementation rules impose a
wit holding tax at 10% for dividends distributed by a PRC-
;resijent e terpnse to its immediate holding company outside

N PRC tor egrnmgs generated beglnnmg 1 January 2008 and

_Company's ‘mainland China subsidiaries did not have plan for
d|st tbuttthg‘dmdend to the Company for the year ended 31
¢ ff;‘ ber\EOT 8, thus no such withholding tax was accrued (31
cembet< 017: Nll)

i uie

t_ﬂft BIEFE : 16.5%) °
REEREH

BEF B EMERE(TREMEBUED -
AN 52 B R AP B K ST H) P B A R RDSE A B
EFFEHHMERA25%  METHBEARER
15% 2 BB -

TEMASTAREEHRMARGKFREERDZE
R-ZEZTN\F—A—AHABREENEFRE
R AR BB SNG B B PR AR A BIFT 2 TR A AR B
B 10%TEE > MR _TENF—A—H
AIE R R 7 IR BT A ERR 2B ME BIEN
o IRIBHBEEEENORBRELH - WE
BERARIREARK - B sEEARER
S%TEMBER - BE-T—-N\F+=A
=+—HLEFE  ARTENPEAHE A

RN BT BIAA AR DIRARE - M E R
LR CE—+FE+=A=+—8:
/) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

13 DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors did not recommend any payment of
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018
(year ended 31 December 2017: Nil).

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share for the year is calculated by
dividing the consolidated earnings of the Group
attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the vyear.

e SRR MR

Il‘/ =~

—NF+ZA=+—RLFE

13 IRE

ExeTEaRBEEAEBEE T
A=+—BLEFEENERE(BE-_F—

NFE+Z
+F

toASt-BLEFE &) -
14 BIREF

(a)

X
FESREABNDREARBAES
AFTEAREGE BANBRAFAE %
TEBERAINEFHEEESS -

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-Z2-N\F HE-_ZT—+tHF
+=A=+—-8B t-A=+—H
LFE EFE
Consolidated earnings attributable KABEE AFTIGERE
to owners of the Company (HK$'000) & (FHT) 27,427 131,719
Weighted average number of ordinary BT EBARE NE I8
shares in issue ('000) (FR%) 11,209,603 10,360,288
| &
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BREARZF N
(A 0.24 ‘ 127
V4
Diluted (b) fiﬁké /
In 2017, the convertible bond was assumed to have R=ZF—+F- —Hﬁﬂxﬁ%‘bﬂ?] AR IS /
been converted into ordinary shares from the Z1X$%M%$J@2% @R w "
beginning of the year, and the earnings attributable to BAE ARG BAEL u”ﬁkr [
owners of the Company was adjusted to eliminate A B R 2 OR8] E’J%R?T“ﬁ/’ﬁ‘) CH=:
the interest expense less the tax effect before the R EEREBECE — t¢+ 7
conversion. Given the impact of conversion of A=+ RALFEHERAR | Bof
convertible bond on earnings per share was anti- By I&ttﬁxﬁﬁﬁﬁjﬂ =85 g
dilutive for the year ended 31 December 2017, diluted Hx%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ EJ@

earnings per share therefore equal to basic earnings
per share. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
diluted earnings per share were equal to the basic
earnings per share as the Group does not have any
dilutive shares.

R 'thﬁéEﬂdﬁ”
ABFIAER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

( Il‘, ~

(b) Diluted (Continued)
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The convertible bond
issued by the Company in previous year was fully
exercised by the bond owner in exchange of 1 billion
ordinary shares at HK$0.2 per share on 6 November

2017.

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

14 EKREA

(b)

)

e\
BREERNEBE M AREITER
ijJMEEFi’J%U’EHj HAEARKAEE
EHEEn T RRESRmMAERY -
ARB) E—FERTZAIBRBRERE
BEEBEAEARZZ—CtF+—AXA
BEITHE - AZER0.2BTER101E
B A

15 Y% - BERRE

Plant under
development
for
prefabricated
Computer Furniture & Leasehold  construction
Buildings  equipment  Motor vehicles fixtures  Equipment improvement husiness Total
BRRRAH
REEHH
B 2R R BLRRE R HEEE  AEEE it
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000
FEn T FiEn T T FEn T Fén
At 1 January 2018 R=E-N5-B-B
Cost it 615,190 449 10426 13072 194,962 17,847 13,047 969,173
\ Accumulated depreciton ith& (13:320) (1,116 (1,661) 1843 (16091 (6,434 - (40,465)
Netbook amount BETE 601,870 3513 8,765 11,29 178871 11413 113,047 928,708
N\ e ‘r’ended 3December208  HE-®-)\E
. N\ tZR=t-ALEE
T 7\ openingretbookamount EIETSA 601,870 3513 865 M2 178N nas 1M 908
e \Add fons hE 31 1401 1,082 13905 4,743 8,666 620,199 653,688
N TRBSrSLpon compleion TREER 111,859 - - - 53424 - (1e528) -
-~ Disposdls il - (634 (784) (1371) (3014) - - (5,803
N\ | Depreciaion charge ERR (21.287) (1,000) (1,844) (3172) (19,194) (3,863) - (50,360)
NS Curen | translation differences NEnEEE (27,478) (237) (223) (400) (6,948) (2529) (5,199) 43,01)
« D
gt bookarount EXRERFE 668,636 3,083 6,966 20191 207,882 13,487 56764 1483219
N N \ I j
oA DecemberzoLa . R-®-NEtzR=t-A
9 c@s‘ ; S A 701,906 4482 9,047 23,553 240721 /880 562764 1568353
- Acclmleted depreciton 2ithE (33,220 (1.439) (2,081) (3362 (2839 (12193 = (85134
\
3 Dethookamount ‘ } ] 668,636 308 6,966 20,191 207,882 13687 562764 1483219
: |
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

e TSR (E

—NF+ZA=+— Elitif

15 V£ - BER®E @)

(Continued)
Plant under
development for
Furniture & prefabricated
Computer Motor fixtures Leasehold ~ construction
Buldings equipment vehicles Equipment Equipment  improvements business Total
RREREN
BEZH
g7 AR g GLRRE By HERE TR a3t
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FAT T AT TA7 AT TA7 AT TR
At 1 January 2017 K=%-t£-5-H
Cost Bk 215,68 3568 8484 453% 145,034 112 333,525 72197
Accumulated depreciation 2itE - (292 283 @) 61 (2259 - (353])
Net book amount FEAE 215,688 326 8201 4404 14423 8863 33352 718420
Year ended 31 December 2017 HECS-tE
tZR=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount FEAFE 215688 3776 8201 4404 4R 8863 3855 718420
Addtions hE 70,155 1511 7,082 8944 9127 5956 29230 402,005
Transfers upon completion ThHEEE 409,559 - - - 91410 - (500969) -
Disposals k3 (93,964) (72 (5,390) (59%) (55,957) (203 (38,522) (195,3%)
Depreciation charge HEER (14.191) 67 (1.94) (1810 (19.448) (4,089) - 82357
Currency translation differences NENEZE 14633 m 820 17 9316 886 19783 15,99%
(Closing net book amount FREAFE 601870 3513 8,765 1129 178871 1413 13047 928,708
At 31 December 2017 R=§-tf+=p=t-A \h\\ "
Cost A 61519 469 10426 13072 194962 17847 13047 99,173 / e &
Accumulated depreciation e (13320) (1,116) (1,661) (1,843) (1609 (6,434) -/ Wk y/avd %\
T / ~ >
Net book amount FETE 601870 3513 8,765 1129 178871 1413 13047 { 928708 ™

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of HK$50.4
million (year ended 31 December 2017: HK$42.4 million)
has all been charged to administrative expenses and cost
of sales in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income.

f@% Jﬂ%& f%%ESOAOOOOO%E(%Z

42,400,000 7T ) EE(‘%?E\T@E’\L& th
W RMTHA R R ERARMR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E - ZE— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 WZE - BMENRRE#®)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, property, plant and equipment
with a net book value of HK$380.0 million were pledged as
collateral for the Group's borrowings HK$146.0 million.
Among the collateral, property ownership certificate of the
Group's building with a net book value HK$290.0 million (31
December 2017: HK$333.0 million) is under China Minsheng
Drawin Co., Ltd. These buildings were pledged as collateral
for two bank borrowings of HK$134.0 million which was
guaranteed by China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd..

Interest expenses of HK$4.5 million were capitalised in
plant under development for prefabricated construction
business for the year ended 31 December 2018 (year ended
31 December 2017: Nil).

At 31 December 2018, property, plant and equipment with
net book value of HK$4.9 million is obligations under
finance lease from & RER S ERIBRERA

R-ZE—N\F+_A=+—0 EEEES
380,000,000 TR « B FE RFED T
1 B 7 £ B LS 146,000,000 7 TS B &9 IK
W HELERYS  AEBERAFER
290,000,000 T (ZE—tF+=ZA="+—
H : 333,000,000/ T) NEFHEEERB
RARERBRAFET - ZZEFEER
YEBME S %84 134,000,000/8 THRITEE
BERY - BPRERERDEMERER -

BE_T-N\F+_A=1t—BLFE A
R?ﬁ%%ﬂ@ﬁ?&%ﬁ%ﬁ’]&@@%ﬁPéfﬁftﬂ
B X /4500008 T(BE_T—tF
T-A=t—BLFE: &) -

RZEB-N\F+_A=+—H REFER
4,900,000/ 8 TR Y% - BFERJRERKER
ERRERGEMERAANREHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

16 LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net book value are
analysed as follows:

16 L ihiEF4E

AEER T FERAENER SAMNEEHE
R NMERRERE - DMAT

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

BE_E-/\F BE_T—tF
+t=A=+—-8 t-A=1+—8~

IEFE IEFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Beginning balance FUEER 628,458 534,960
Additions NE 147,194 154,306
Amortisation s (10,107) (12,314)
Capitalised to plant under development ERCEERRE (4,232) (623)
Disposals & - (84,921)
Currency transaction differences GNEE I E = 2E (28,376) 37,050
Ending balance FRERR 732,937 628,458

At 31 December 2018, one of the Group's subsidiaries’ (F8
TR REREERFAMRAF) land use right with a net
book value of approximately HK$68.2 million (year ended
December 2017: HK$71.8 million) had been pledged as
collateral for its bank borrowings HK$18.9 million.

At 31 December 2018, one of the Group’s subsidiaries’ (7
B REREERIFE AR QR land use right with a net
book value of approximately HK$56.2 million (year ended
31 December 2017: HK$59.8 million) had been pledged as
collateral for its bank borrowings HK$39.9 million.

At 31 December 2018, one of the Group's subsidiaries’ (&
fEdh REE R EERE AR AR land use right with a net
book value of approximately HK$38.1 million (year ended
31 December 2017: HK$40.7 million) had been pledged as
collateral for its bank borrowings HK$46.0 million.

RZB-—N\F+=—A=+—H ~EEKB
DRIZ—MARAPRERBERFERABE
EFEAI68,2000008 T (HE-T—AF |
+= A IE% & ¢ 71,800,000 7T) #9 £ 4t fse )/ )
FAHED IR E B BB RITE B 18,900,000 1
BB o /

W= N\E+=A=1—0 ALEHE
AT — B RERREHHEAR AT/
% {8 47 56,200,000 T (B E= B — 4
+=A=+—H8 - F & : 59,800,000 7T
it E A REE R ARMERGEE
39,900,000 TR E 57 2

R-ZB—\F+-A=+—A ~EEHE

ARz —ARFREXDENRARANER
EFE#)38,100,000 8 T (BE-F — 4
+=A=+—HEFE : 40,700,000 7T) ‘ :
B & 30 6F A B AT B IS 5 fﬁ%g L
46,000,000 7% TEHY AT &R = W 9|~ |

Z
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16

17

BB RN (&)

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

LAND USE RIGHTS (continued) 16 LifE R (@)
At 31 December 2018, one of the Group’s subsidiaries’ (& RZZBE—NF+-_A=+—8  X&EEKNE
RERBHL (#81L) AR A A]) land use right with a net book AR T —FRRERRIR (1) SR D TEE
value of approximately HK$56.1 million (year ended SF{E £)56,1000008 T(HE =T —tF
December 2017: HK$61.0 million) had been pledged as + = A IEFE 1 61,000,000 7T ) B £ 015
collateral for its bank borrowings HK$79.9 million. AEEEFEAENERITEE 79,500,000
/EEWE&WDD °
During the year ended 31 December 2018, amortisation of HE_FT—/\FTHA=T—HLEFE L
land use rights of HK$10.1 million (year ended 31 December {5 FARE 55 2 A5 10,100,000 8 T (B E =
2017: HK$12.3 million) has been charged to cost of sales Z—+tE+-_A=+—RH 1Lt EE:
and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement 12,300,000 70) ERrEa B L EMEE
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and WHEROEERARITHRBASZAHE - m
amortisation of HK$4.2 million (year ended 31 December 42000008 T(HE —_Z—+tF+ - A
2017: HK$0.6 million) has been capitalised to plant under =+—HIEFE : 600,000#87T) B EARMbE
development for the prefabricated construction business. ANTERE N BEREESNEERE -
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 IREMEME
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-Z— N\ BE_Z—tF
+=HA=+—-H +=—A=+—H
LHEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
‘Beginning balance FERR 18,543 35,662
\ D|sposals HE (722) (2,052)
N t gain/(loss) from fair value AREBEARKE
. -adjustments (E58) F8 367 (18,337)
urrency translation differences SN I B = R (840) 3,270
nding balance FRERR 17,348 18,543
|

? N\l estmenjg propeJr"ties held by the Group are all commercial
N properties located in Shandong Province, the PRC.

AEBEFANREEFIES BT HIL
REMAEEDE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The revaluation gains or losses are included in “Other gains
— net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income (Note 8).

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into/out of fair
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer. The investment
properties are within level 3 of fair value hierarchy as of 31
December 2018 and 2017. There were no transfer among
Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.

Valuation processes and techniques

All investment properties were revalued as at 31 December
2018 and 2017 by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer.

The Group's finance team reviewed the valuation
performed by the independent valuers, including:

° verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation
report;

° assesses property valuation movements when
compared to the prior year valuation report;

° holds discussions with independent valuers.

17 REHEHE @)

BEffRaEREEE MG R MEMEE
Wan sy [ Efblan— %8R (HIFES) »

AEBHBR AR EBHEREFIIE RE
WAEH BRAABBEZERANEA &
HeRZE-—NFEZZE—tF+=A
=t+—8 BREUEHMERRNAEELEE
FE3R - FAN - B4 B2RREIRCH
PRAEE R o

HERFRAN

EREUEFEHEENR _ZE-N\FR_F
—tF T A=+ -HRBBIREXSERME
ERFEFEERAREHGEE

AEBNTEERNE BB EMETH
fhfE - B85

s BRYHBUMEBRESNMEIZHAK
&

©  BMEREEHEEREFELR L
GEEC DR

o  EBVIHERETHR o




China Minsheng DIT Group Limited 3 2018 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e ISR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E - ZE— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17 REMEHE @)
Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value HERASERENAEBENBE
The valuations were performed based on the income ZEREEEMETIREBR ALK (EHKEE
approach (term and reversion method) for those investment BOR) BTG WERBASEEKBUATE
properties. The following significant unobservable inputs KA B R A EuE -
for income approach have been used:
Relationship of
Fair value at 31 Valuation Unobservable Range of unovservable
Description December 2018 technique inputs unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
RZB-N\F
TSEETr=E TAIBREEA FAIBREAHE
it WAREBE [GERZE FTAHZGABE HENEE B R EENBEE
Commercial 17,348 Income Term yield 4.0% (2017: 4.0%), taking  The higher the term
properties (2017:18,543) approach into account of yield yield, the lower the
generated from fair value
comparable properties
and adjustment to effect
the certainty of term
income secured and to
be received
EEES 17,348 WASE EH R E 40%(ZF—+%F: EHREERMS A
: 40%)  LEIRAEEER AEEBE
MEEENREREUR
ARG KA
HHER 1S B TE HR A T fif
TR
Reversionary yield  5.0% (2017: 5.0%) The higher the
reversionary vield,
the lower the fair
value
EHEkaE 5.0% ERREERER
—+4F : 5.0%) NABEBIE
Vacancy rate 11.7% (2017: 20.0%) The higher the
vacancy rate, the
lower the fair value
TEEX 11.7% EERYS -

Average monthly
rental per square
meter

SFHKEAF
CLiE

ZF— 5 1 200%)
8.11(2017:7.86)

8.11

(ZZF—+t%F :7.86)

NABEBR
The higher the
averate monthly
rental, the higher
the fair value
FAHHeHS -
N AEEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
(Continued)

The term and reversion method measures the fair value of
the property by taking into account the rental income
derived from the existing leases with due allowance for the
reversionary income potential of the leases, which are then
capitalised into the value at appropriate market yield rates.
The market yield was developed based on the research on
the rental evidences of the properties and assuming the
existing tenancy will be extended. A significant increase/
(decrease) in the estimated market yield would result in a
significant decrease/(increase) in the fair value of the
investment properties.

Were the rental rate and yield rate required assumed to
increase or decrease by 10% from management’s estimate,
the carrying amount of investment properties as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 would have changed as follows:

17 IREMEME ®)
S B A RIS B 5 A A EE M BER ()

EHREREEAERMEN R EER
FEEEREFHEEENESEA - BHEE
MERKABNEEEGHE  AREEH™
B FEITERE - MBS R RRE
WMEHHECHEAAMEE - URKREE
WA IS - (AT M S s R EKRIE
m/CRA) S BBIRE M EE N A EED
BRI (HEM) -

HBRRBEENEE RERERERENTR
RIEHRIE NSO A 10% - RZTBE—NEFR =
Tt F T+ A=t BNREUEFHEN
FREERHIRATE

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R=B-—NF R_T—+F
+=A=+-H +t=—A=+—8
HK$'000 HK$'000 /
FHET TR )
Investment properties increase/(decrease) &M E#EL N, OF4) /
— 10 percent rental rate higher — e 1110% 15,267
— 10 percent rental rate lower — HERL 10% 14,969
Investment properties increase/(decrease) &M EMEL N, OF4)
— 10 percent yield rate higher — W EIE AN 10% 14,623
— 10 percent yield rate lower — WER KR 10% 15,894




China Minsheng DIT Group Limited 3 2018 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e AR MR ()
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
(Continued)

The following amounts relating to the investment properties
have been recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income:

17 REMHEME @
fh BB A BB R A A EENBE ()

UNTERREMEHENBBCRFEER
NEfb2EURER PR -

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

+t=-A=+—~H ‘l'_ﬂ_‘f— =

IEFE FE

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Rental income He WA 665 1,586

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group's aggregate
future minimum lease payments receivable under non-
cancellable operating leases is not material.

118 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

R-BE-NER_F—tF+_A=1+—
B ZK%@TET\EHE&%’E’JW%?’FHEBA%X
RN SEHEERARBMRTTE

BIEE

Computer software

RN BB
?;7/ N\ Yy HK$'000
\ O\ FB7
t
T N \Y ar ended 31 December 2017 BE_F-—tF+-A=+t—HLFE
“I Opening net book amount FYIRRTE R A 886
. Additions RE 530
Amortisation charge HEER (458)
curr ency translation differences INEEHTH R 19
LDIS osals HE (195)
N Closmg ne& book amount FRERMEFAE 782
At 31 Dec%mber,2017 R=®—t&+=A=+-8
N\ [cost - L - E%N 1,271
\A:cumulated a }ti'sation Rt (489)
w#%@w#mmt EEFE 782
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 = —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HItFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) BT EE @)
Computer software
B
HK$'000
FET
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZF-\FE+-A=+—HLEFE
Opening net book amount FYIRE A 782
Additions NE 3,805
Amortisation charge BiHE A (401)
Currency translation differences INEEYTH KR (68)
Closing net book amount FRERMEFAE 4,118
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NE+=-A=+—H
Cost XA 4,954
Accumulated amortisation R (836)
Net book amount REFE 4,118

For the year ended 31 December 2018, amortisation
charges of intangible assets were HK$401,000 (For the year
ended 31 December 2017: HK$458,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s
amortisation charges of intangible assets have all been
included in administrate expenses.

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

19 REEEQRNKRE

REBE-Z—N\F+-A=+—HLFE
NEBEREENEHEE R A401,000%8 7T
(BEZE—ZF—+FE+-_A=+—HILEE:
458,000/ 7T) °

RBRE-F-\E+-A=+-ALFE /N
ZK%I?%%%@FW%&%%%E?&%{Eﬂwﬁg,/ IS
BI o Y

Year ended
31 December 31 DeTcembe
2018 L 7
HE-B-N\F BWE-T LE
+=—A=t=H + RZ + E',f
IEFE :
HK$’000 ‘

Share of net assets Fi{h & EFE
Less: Provision for impairment B ORERE

192,697

192,697 “7
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E - ZE— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had indirect interests RZEBE—N\F+=

in the following associates:

19 R—XEZEQTNRE #®)

A=+—8 X&EERT
BB N RIS A S

Place of incorporation

Proportion of ISsued

Name and operation ownership interest Share capital  Principal activities
e EMALREL S, AR Ll BEIRA  FEXEK
Held by the Indirectly
Company held
MARERA AR
Zhejiang China Minsheng Drawin China - 47% HK$200,000,000  Construction

Technology Company Limited
MITRERMEERAT G =
YMCI China Minsheng China =
Kunming Technology Construction
EARTRERMRAERRA  HE -

industrialisation
47% 2000000008 EEEEL
30% RMB100,000,000  Construction
industrialisation
0% ARE100000007 RBEEZL

(@  The Group disposed 2% and 51% of its equity interest
in Zhejiang China Minsheng Drawin Technology
Company Limited (“Zhejiang China Minsheng”) in June
2017 and December 2017 respectively. Zhejiang
China Minsheng become an associate of the Group
after the transaction completed. This associate has
then been accounted for using the equity method
and was remeasured to its fair value at the initial
recognition, with the change in the carrying amount
recognised in gains on disposal of subsidiaries.

On 31 October 2017, the Group and two third-parties
entered into an agreement to set up YMCI China
Minsheng Kunming Technology Construction Limited

 ("YMCI China Minsheng"). The Group holds 30%
equity interest in YMCI China Minsheng. As at 31
December 2018, the Group and the third-parties have
injected paid-in capital of RMB30 million and RMB4O
m‘illickn respectively.

T e financijl year end dates of the above associates are
terminous Wirhrt‘hat of the Group.

O Il L .
__There are no centingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
iritefests inthe associates.

@ AEERR-_ZEZ-—+tFRAR-T—+
FT_ANREEERNIIHRER
BMEBR AR (DNTHhRER ) 8 2%
K 51% B - TR REENK S
B RSB S QT - R e
’A?Tﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁé\ AN R
REEFFEEZHEAAEE  BERK
ﬁ@ﬁ’]“@)?ﬁ’%ﬁ%%‘% 7] B Y 2

R o
b)) RZZ—tHFT+HA=1+—8 KEHH

MEE=F ] AR EEMIEH
REERMBEERAR( EmEEFR
K1) - REEFAERMIFAEI0% 2
fgiE - RZF—NF+_A=+—H"
AEBRE=ZFDANEIAARE
30,000,0007T % A R # 40,000,0007T &
B o

bR AR R B IR F R AR A B B
PR FEARAER -

o
%

BEAEASENEZE ARNEDRNIAR
f& e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Summarised financial information for an associate

The tables below provide summarised financial information
for the associate that is material to the Group. The
information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in
the financial statements of Zhejiang China Minsheng and
not the Group's share of those amounts. They have been
amended to reflect adjustments made by the Group when

using the equity method, including fair value adjustments
and modifications for differences in accounting policy.

BENAMBERBE
TREJIGAEEBEANBEABUKE
FEE - FTRENERRRIOINT R RER
MBS R R AT 2SI BER - MIEAREEE
ZEBENNE - RFENCHAREER
R AETR RRBENER] - BREAAE
ERBERHSABRNERETER -

19 A—XEZEQTNRE @)

Zhejiang China Minsheng AIRRER
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R-B—NF RZZT—+F
+=ZA=+—-H +=-—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Summarised statement of financial MR R R E
position
Current assets MENEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRESEEIER 17,142 7,433
Other current assets HEmne&E 174,790 78,187
Total current assets MENEEBRE 191,932 85,620
Non-current assets FERBEE 231,746 2;57,734/ \
//
Current liabilities RBAaE
Financial liabilities (excluding eREaE(TREES Y
trade payables) FERRRIR) 94,727 A
Other current liabilities HEinEhaE 131,466
Total current liabilities MENE BB 226,193
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 3,948
Net assets EEFE 193,537
Group’s share in % REBAEDE(BD L) 47%
Group’s share in HK$ REEMEDEECET) 90,962
Goodwill R 83,394
174,356
Carrying amount EEHEE 174,356
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-ZT— N\F+_A=+—HILFE

19 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 19 A—ZREEDTINIIBE @)

Zhejiang China Minsheng (Continued) WIHPRER (&)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2018 2017
+t=-A=+—~H ‘l'_ﬂ_‘f— =

IHFE IEFE
Revenue A 137,319 37,385
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETEE AR T, (B518) 303 (7,737)
Income tax credit PSR - 1,934
Other comprehensive income Hip 2wk - _
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) 2EEF(EB) 858 303 (5,803)
The Group recognised investment loss HK$1,354,061 from REEDFEAESEZRRAREEEHEPR

YMCI China Minsheng using the equity method. R & E518 1,354,061 B T °
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20 INVENTORIES 20 #8

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

RZB—NEFE RZT—tF

+=-—HB=+—8 +=—A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Raw materials R A7 # 42,264 38,548
Finished goods AR 53,198 43,224
Goods in transit EREm 1,967 954
Low value articles KESEmR 107 153
Work in progress EER 2 728
Inventory provision FERE (1,443) (4,998)
96,095 78,609

Provisions of inventories to net realisable value amounted
to HK$1,443,000 (2017: HK$4,998,000). These were
recognised as an expense for the year ended 31 December
2018 in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year
ended 31 December 2018 amounted to HK$177,060,000
(2017: HK$69,066,000). These were included in cost of
sales.

The Group realised HK$4,949,000 of a previous inventory
write-down in 2017, as the Group sold the relevant goods
that had been written down to third parties and related
parties at selling price agreed in contracts. The amount
realised has been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

BEZA 2R FEMNTFTE A1,443,00075 0
T+ : 4,998,000/87T) ° X EHIER

FEBmkHEMEPARERTEIREES

E-NF+-_A=+—BHLFENHAE -

BE-ZT—/\F+t-A=+—RLLFEBER
RAXMEER177,060000FT( =T~ /
% 1 69,066,000 7T) * BRI ABERA < )/

ANEE R T E — AT AR
4,949,000 7 - FERAREIRA KT
EEHEENRTE=ARBEFNEHESE/
Do DEBSBOHAGABEREMD
WasFm [HERA] - ‘
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21 B 5 RE{thFEURSRIE R FE(X
PREPAYMENTS
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
RZB-NFE RZZT—tF
+=BA=+-8 +=ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHT
Trade receivables — related parties B 5 WA — R 77,812 38,344
Trade receivables — third parties BIRWRIE —%F=7 217,128 78,765
Notes receivable eSS 1,574 -
Value-added tax recoverable EdEET 68,013 46,258
Amounts due from related parties FEUR FEE TS RIE 55,059 39,552
Land deposits THRES 46,074 =
Prepayments A NG 15,441 11,575
Deposits e 12,756 6,128
Government grant eGSR 5,935 6,224
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & — B QRS KIE
— related party — FaH = 62,232
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—FENB AR ASHRE
— third party —F=H - 99,144
Receivables relating to transaction witha BBV ERERERETI S
minority interest 2 R FRIE = 9,570
Others Hit 9,195 4,724
1) | 508,987 202,516
\“L ss: Provision for impairment of trade B 5 REUCRRIA B oAt e i
receivables and other receivables IR ERE (3,194) -

505,793

402,516
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The agings of trade receivables as at 31 December 2018
and 2017 based on the invoice issue date are as follows:

21 ESREMEBKRFIERFENRIA
(#4)

BoRWAREBENR - E—NER_T—+F
T A=+ —AEREBRZEABENEREKD
T

As at AS at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

R=B—N\F KTt
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Less than 1 year DR—F 263,451 117,109
110 2 years —EmF 31,489 -

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December
2018 and 2017 is the carrying value of each class of
receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any
collateral security against the receivables.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the fair values of trade
and other receivables approximate their carrying amounts.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other
receivables and prepayments are denominated in the
following currencies:

RZE—NERZF—tF+_A=+—H
FrA G &m =B Rk A Ll 585 E YR E
RBRTEE - N5 B I 48 5L B W BB B 11
R o

RZE—NER_F—tF+_A=+—
B Z5REMERZENAEEEELE
(IR EEEIE

REEEHE 5 K H A EUGRIE A R FBI R /)

e R EIA TS AT /)

o/
//
//
)/

As at L’?’//As at

31 December 31 December
2018
R-ZE-N\F
+=-BA=+-—H
HK$’000
FHT

HK dollar BT
Renminbi AR #E

10,698
495,095

505,793
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21

22

B IR ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

( Il‘, ~

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

BN VeI
N e AERLHS  ARAT

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21 B 5 & H{t FE Y 38 & Fa {1+ 3K 18
PREPAYMENTS (continued) (4&)
The creation of provision for impairment of receivables has W IERERE 2 IEED T AGZSEBER
been included in “Net impairment losses on financial Hi2mEmkzmxAe [ EEREERE
assets” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and 2o WE FEWH B RERED ST ALGESIE
other comprehensive income. The recovery of provision for m=hEMmEEKRERANEMkas — F
impairment of receivables has been included in "Other %] o
gains — net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 22 KMtBATIKER
(@ The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TERAR-ZE—NF+_-_A=+—8
31 December 2018: MNEZSHEAREE :
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERKE AEERE FERERER
A LR & i H WEBRLA  HEBRLS BRI
£ KEABRER TEER BRTRAHE (BAM) Pl (BAk)
% % %
Benelux Property Development  China, limited liahility Property USD5,000,000 100% 100% -
\ (Shanghai) Limitec™* company development 5,000,000% 70
| exEsER(DOARLT 4@ ARAT NEEE
Sunshine Universal BVI, limited liability Inactive UsD1 100% 100% -
\ Development Ltd company HRLHK (E
, ‘ EBRUES BRAF
& P‘kerfect Gold Investments Limited - Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD2 100% 100% =
PEREERAT liabilty company REIR 28T
: \‘ E%  BRAT
N j
N \ ‘ South\ELS'(Sh'angdon‘g) Property ~ Ching, limited liability Property RMB15,000,000 100% 100% -
: S mited company development ARE
N - R m% I RE BRAF UES 15,000,007
= ShanghengLi nited ‘ BVI, limited liability Investment holding UsD1 100% 100% -
company REER I
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

22 MBATINER &)

(@  The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at (a)
31 December 2018: (Continued)

TRAR-_FT-NF+-_HA=+—H
WEEMBAREE : (&)

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERKE REERE FERERER
A LR & i H EERILE  WERRUA  HEERLA
£ REABRER TEER BRITRAHE (BAk) (BAt) (BAk)
% % %
Commit Glory Investments Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 = 100% =
Limited liability company REER 18T
JIERERRAR &8 ARAw
Lux Property Construction China, limited liability Construction HKD200,000,000 - 100% -
Technology (Shangha) company industrialisation 200,000,000% 7
Limited* mE - BRAR BEER
ERERE(LE)BRAR
Giant Achiever Development Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 -
Limited liability company RARKR 18T
EEl%RERAR &8 ARAR
Fame Glory Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD1 =
ERREBRAT lighility company RELR 187
&8 ARAR
Noble Walk Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding UsD1 100%
WTARAH company REHR %7
RBEAHE  BRAT
Noble Tide Limited BV, limited liability Investment holding usD1 100%
LT company RERR %7
EBRUES BRAF
Shenzhen China Minsheng DIT~ China, limited fiability Construction HKD200,000,000 -
Limited™* (formerly known as company industrialisation 200,000,000% 7T
Guangdong China Minsheng %81 - BBAT BEEZY
Drawin Technology Limited®)

A REREENBARAT
(IR - BRPRERMEA
RAR)
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22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

( Il‘, ~

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

(@  The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2018: (Continued)

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

22 B ATINER @)

@ TERB/BR-ZF

—NE+=A=+-H

MEBMBARRE : (B)

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of  Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued  directlyheld  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERRE  ARERE FERERRE
SEMER I & 0L WEBRLA  HEBRLA EBRL
£ REABRER TEEK BRITRAZE (BA) (BAk) (At
% % %
Zheyou Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD10,000 100% 100% =
MREEBRLE liahility company REER 10000%7
&8 ARAw
Guiyou Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited Investment holding HKD10,000 100% 100% -
ERBEBRARA liability company REER 10,0007
&8 ARAR
Nanjing China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability Construction HKD200,000,000 - 97% 3%
Limited* (formerly known as company industrialisation 200,000,000 7
China Minsheng Drawin mE - BRAR BEEZY
Technology (fiangsu) Limited*)
(note ()
ARt REREENRARAR
(IRE - PREERRH (TH)
BRAR)(H20)
Hengyang China Minsheng DIT Ching, limited liabiity Construction HKD100,000,000 - 100% -
I Limited* (formerly known as company industrialisation 100,000,000 87T
"\China Minsheng Drawin TE - ARAT BEERL

“ Technology (Hengyang)
“Limited?) i
%LF BRRERHEAT
(iR AR SR ()
ﬁl@&%)

)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 22 MEBATKNER @)
(Continued)
(@  The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRARZZE—NF+ZA=+—H
31 December 2018: (Continued) MEEMBARIEZE : (&)
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of  Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued  directlyheld  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERKE REERE FERERRE
AEMERL I & 0L EERILA  WERRHA  HEERLA
£ REABRER TEEH BRITRAZE (BA) (BAk) (Bat)
% % %
China Minsheng Drawin China, limited liability Construction HKD1,530,000,000 = 100% =
Technology Investment company industrialisation ~1,530,000,0007 ¢
Limited* mE - BRAT BEEZY

PRERFERERRAT

China Minsheng Drawin China, limited liability Construction HKD100,000,000 - 100% -
Technology (Foshan) Limited* ~ company industrialisation 100,000,000 7T

PRERRR (BINERRE  HE - BRAE REEE

Hefel China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability Canstruction HKD95,000,000 =
Limited* (formerly known as company industrialisation 95,000,007
China Minsheng Drawin mE - BRAF BEEZY

Technology (Hefei) Limited*)
AERRERBENRERAA
(378 PRERBR(BI)

BRAA)

Changsha China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability Construction HKD?1,108,000,000 -
Limited* (formerly Known as company industrialisation ~1,108,000,000 7T
China Mingheng Drawin mE - BRAR REEEL

(Changsha) Green Construction

Technology Limited* (note (i) I
ROPRERBERHERAR

(R : MRER (RD) 532

MEARAR) M)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #ZE —Z— \F+ =

22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

@
31 December 2018: (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at

R=+—HIFE

22 B ATINER @)

(@

TRARZ=-ZE

—NE+=A=+-H

MEBMBARRE : (B)

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of  Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued  directlyheld  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERKE REERE FERERRE
SEMER I & 0L WEBRLA  HEBRLA EERLA
£ REABRER TEEK BRITRAZE (BAt) (BAk) (At
% % %
Kunshan China Minsheng Drawin ~ China, limited liability Canstruction RMB50,000,000 = 100% =
Intelligence Construction company industrialisation AR # 50,000,000
Technology Limited* (formerly Bl - ARA] BEEXL
known as China Minsheng
Drawin Construction
Technology (Kunshan) Limited*)
ElMREREERERBER
DA (AT - RRERBER
R(EW)BRAR)
China Minsheng Drawin Ching, limited liability Construction HKD?23,650,000 = 100% =
Intelligent Equipment company industrialisation 23,650,000/ 7T
Technology Limitect* HE - BRAR BEEZY
BRERBHRENRBRAA
Huizhou China Minsheng Drawin ~ China, limited liability Construction RMB40,000,000 - 100% -
Technology Limited* company industrialisation A% 40,000,0007
BN RERMRERAH hE - BRAR BEEEL
Ching Minsheng Drawin Ching, limited liability Construction RMBS0,000,000 = 90% 10%
“_Technology (Pingdingshan) company industrialisation A 80,000,000
‘Limited* (note (i) hE - BRAR BEEX
NN RRRER (RN ARAT
)
. YuxiChina Min%henfbrawm China, limited liability Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Technology Limited* company industrialisation ARE
mE - BRAR BEEZY 100,000,000 7T

FERRERPAERLT

RO ‘
~
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 22 MEBATKNER @)
(Continued)
(@  The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRARZZE—NF+ZA=+—H
31 December 2018: (Continued) MEEMBARIEZE : (&)
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERKE REERE FERERER
A LR E 0 EERIE  WERRUA  HEERLA
£ REABRER TEEH BRIRAFE (BAk) (BAt) (BAk)
% % %
China Minsheng Drawin China, limited liability Construction RMB70,000,000 - 100% -
Technology (Jiaozhou) Limited*  company industrialisation A& #%70,000,0007C
MRERME(BM)ERAR  #E FRAR BEER(
Haikou China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Limited* (formerly known as company industrialisation AR 100,000,000 7T
Haikou China Minsheng Drawin - R » BRA A BEEXL
Technology Limited®)

BOREREENRERAT
(A1 BN RERNEA

RAF)

Xiangtan China Minsheng Drawin ~ China, limited liability Construction RMB70,000,000 =
Technology Limited* company industrilisation AR 70,000,007

HEPRERMBERAR hE - BRAR BEEZY

China Minsheng Drawin China, limited liability Construction RMB70,000,000 -
Technology (liaozuo) Limited* ~ company industrialisation A& #%70,000,0007

MRERME (B ERAR  RE BRAR REEEL

Huai'an China Minsheng Drawin  China, limited liability Canstruction RMB70,000,000 =
Intelligence Technology company industrialisation A& 70,000,000 l
Limited* hE - ARAR REEZY

EZPREREENRARAH

Chongging Shi Qijiang Qu China China, limited liability Construction RMB100,000,000 -
Minsheng Drawin Technology ~ company industrialisation ARE
Limited* mE - BRAR BEEE 100,000,000 7T
BEMETRPRER

HBRAA
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E - ZE— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 22 MEBATKNER @)
(Continued)
(@  The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRARZZE—NF+ZA=+—H
31 December 2018: (Continued) HMEEMBATREZE : (&)
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERKE AEERE FERERER
A LR E i H WEBRLA  HEBRLA BRI
£ REABRER TEER BRTRAHE (BAk) (BAL) (BAk)
% % %
Shaoyang China Minsheng China, limited liability Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Drawin Intelligence Technology  company industrialisation ARE
Limite* hE - ARAA BEER( 100,000,0007C
B RERBENH
BRRA]
Jiangxi China Minsheng Drawin -~ China, limited liability Construction RMB70,000,000 = 100% =
Intelligent Technology Limited*  company industrialisation A #70,000,0007C
TARREREENS hE - BRAR je3:3 /4
BRAR

Wuxi China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
Limited* company industrialisation A &% 100,000,000 7

ERPRERTERR mE - BRAR REEE

BRAR

Shijiazhuang China Minsheng ~ China, limited liability Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% -
| DIT Limited* company industrialisation A E# 100,000,0007C

) NEREPREREENS mE - BRAR BEEZY

BRAT

ChengvjuDayivChlma Minsheng  China, limited liability Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% -
2 Drawin Technology Limited* company industrialisation AR 100,000,000 7T
ﬁ)‘i%ﬁk%ﬁﬁi&?ﬂ#& hE - BRAR BEEZY

AR
‘J
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 22 MEBATKNER @)
(Continued)
(@  The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at @ TRARZZE—NF+ZA=+—H
31 December 2018: (Continued) MEEMBARIEZE : (&)
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BARERKE REERE FERERER
A LR & i H EERILE  WERRUA  HEERLA
£ REABRER TEER BRITRAHE (BAk) (BAt) (BAk)
% % %
Wuhan China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability Construction RMB100,000,000 = 100% -
Limited* company industrialisation A& 100,000,000 7T
REPRERBERS mE - BRAF BEEZY
BRAHE
Chengau China Minsheng DIT~ China, limited liability Construction RMB70,000,000 = 100% -
Limited* company industrialisation A& 70,000,0007C
RBTRERBENRERAT H FRAF REESL
Tianjin China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability Construction RMB150,000,000 =
Limited* company industrialisation AR 150,000,000 7T
REPRERBENRERAT +#H - BRAT BEESL
Nanning China Minsheng China, limited liability Construction RMB100,000,000 =
DIT Limited* company industrialisation AR 100,000,000 70
BENRERBERR HE - BRAF BEESL
BRAE
Xi'an China Minsheng DIT China, limited liability Construction RMB150,000,000 =
Limited company industrialisation A& 150,000,000 70
BRPRERBENR mE - BRAR BEER(
BRAT .
Hangzhou Linan China China, limited liability Construction RMB150,000,000 =
Minsheng DIT Limited™ (note (1)~ company industrialisation AR 150,000,000 7T
MNBERRRERBERE mE - BRAR REEX(

ERAR (W)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B ISR R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

22 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

@)

( Il‘, ~

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at
31 December 2018: (Continued)

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

22 B ATINER @)

@ TRARZZE-—NF+-_A=+—H
MEEWNBARIRE : (48)

-l control over t.

Proportion of
Place of Proportion of Proportion ordinary shares
incorporation and Particulars ordinary shares  of ordinary held by
operation and Principal ofissued  directly held  shares held non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity activities share capital by parent by the Group interests
BAREREE  ARERE FEREERE
A LR E i H WEBRLA  HEBRLA BRI
£ REABRER TEER BRAIRAFSE (BAL) (BAL) (BAk)
% % %
Langfang China Minsheng China, limited liability Canstruction RMB150,000,000 = 100% -
DIT Limited* company industrialisation A& 150,000,000 7T
BT REREERS hE - ARAR REEXL
BRAR
Qingdao China Minsheng China, limited liability Construction RMB100,000,000 = 60% 40%
DIT Limited* (note () company industrialisation A X% 100,000,000 7
FEMREREENH hE - BRAR BEER(L
BRRE (M)
Xuzhou China Minsheng China, limited liability Construction RMB100,000,000 - 100% -
DIT Limitec* company industrialisation A% 100,000,000 7
BNPRERBENS hE - ARAE BEER(
BRAR

*  For identification purpose only

not (/) The Group holds 97%, 51%, 90%, 60% and 60% equity interest

of CM Nanjing, CM Changsha, CM Pingdingshan, CM Linan and
CM Qingdao, respectively. The voting right shall be exercised
in pqoportion to the capital contribution, according to the

‘ kCom\pany Articles. Except for modification of Company Article,

increase or decrease of registered capital, company merger or
dIVISIQn and Change of corporate structure, a resolution to be
made| by the shareholders general assembly shall be subject
to achptl n-by more than half of the voting rights held by the
shareholjersj CM-Nanjing, CM Changsha, CM Pingdingshan,
CM Linan qn&i CM Qingdao are owned by the Company and
are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Group's

* (R
BOE®) - AERBEDRFHARRERER - FRERED -
PRERFEL  PRERMMBERMHRE
RKEBE97% -~ 51% * 90% ~ 60% 1 60% K f 1% -
BEARER  BRRERERZHRRIRLE LA
TERAE - RIERAAER - H sk ER D
HMEAR - RARIAEWHRD L REE A REEIN
RERRERBHERR - D 2 —ALERREDN
RRBA ERAEEEHPRERER R
EREY - HPRERFREL - PRERMINE
ZMPRERBESWIEGIE  ZFFAREN
AEEA WAEAKEARFIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e IR R AR MY R

—NF+ZA=+— Elitif

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

23 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

”‘r =~

23 UonBEESFERHEZEF AR

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =NemMEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include NARBEFEAEES T ABINERE
the following: EVETYEE :
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R-ZB—NF RZZT—+F
+=ZA=+—-8A +=-—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Unlisted equity Instruments (note (a)) JELmiE=T A (Mt @) 23,967 -
note: Mt -
(a) Equity instruments are related to investment in two unlisted (@) BT EELERUARBEENFEKESD

MEZE LT ARAR -

24 JTHEEEMEE

companies in Mainland China which are measured at fair value.

24 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS

Year ended

31 December
2018
BE-Z—NEF
+=—A=+-—H
LFE
HK$°000
FET

Year ended
31 December

Beginning balance

Acquisitions

Disposals

Net fair value change through other
comprehensive income

Net realised gain/(loss) on redemption of
available-for-sale financial assets

Currency transaction differences

FHFERR

Yk

&
AFARMMEERANAREER

EROAHEESHEEND
FRWes (EE) F58
GNEEHTE = 5B

Ending balance

FRERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-ZT— N\F+_A=+—HILFE

25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 HERREEHEEHR
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

R=B-N\E R-F—t&
+=A=+-8 t=A=t+-8

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Cash at bank and on hand RITERAFHERE
— Denominated in HKD — LB ITEHE 14,050 291,576
— Denominated in RMB — UAREEHE 85,535 279,780
— Denominated in USD — AZETTEHE 11,217 11,155
110,802 582,511

26 RESTRICTED CASH 26 ZREBEE

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

R=B—\F R-T—t&
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-H

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Restricted cash ZREE S
'Deposit for bank borrowings (note (a) ~ —R1TIEEIRE S (K (@) 130,000 -
Deposit for bank notes —RITEERES 23,588 449
\ 153,588 449
|
“notel(a): . As at 31 December 2018, certificate of deposit of Mite: R=—2—N\F+-_A=+—R FRE
‘ \._HK$130,000,000 was pledged as collateral for the Group's 130,000,000 7T B £ #f fF & A& & B {5 3
! boTrOWingS HK$108,423,000. 108,423,000 7 JT HY4E 1847 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 = —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HItFE

27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 BBA
Authorised shares EERG

Number of

authorised shares

EERADEE

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018 RZE—+tFR-_ZF-—NF+-_A=+—H 25,000,000,000

Issued shares EERGEE

Number of  Ordinary shares
issued shares (nominal value)

(at HK$0.1 each) HK$000
ERTRHOEE @R (mE)
(K018 T) FET
As at 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—AF—H 10,209,602,920 1,020,960
Exercising of convertible bond ITE AR E S
(note (a)) (K1t (@) 1,000,000,000 100,000
As at 31 December 2017 and N-EBE—+ER T \F
2018 —A=1t—8H 11,209,602,920 1,120,960
note: K - \QT
(@  On 6 November 2017, 1,000,000,000 new shares were issued to (@) R-T—+F+— A8 BTEAaRES o -

Mr. Zhu Yue Hai at the price of HK$0.2 per share in result of
exercise of a convertible bond.

1,000,000,000 8 3 1 3 B 42 S A% O. 2/%7%%17%5&
g - ,
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

28 RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

F 355 R 2= B

OF THE GROUP

( Il‘/ ~

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

28 AKEHEAE ARBILFHE

KATEEAEE
Available-for-
sale financial Equity
assets  component Contributed
Share  revaluation  convertible  Exchange surplus Other  Accumulated
premium reserve hond reserve reserve reserve losses Total
REESR TRRER-
ROGE BEERRE BR3A EifE SARBEE Rbffe ZitEE oy
Note HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
it FAT T TAT Tir TAT Tir AT Fér
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BEZZ-NF1ZR
31 December 2018 Zt-ALEE
Balance at 31 December 2017 a5 O P
originally presented AfE (R 25) 859,695 - - 71,976 131,166 28,631 (373951 723517
Change in accounting policy EHIRE (1,220) (1,220)
At 1 January 2018 (Restated) RZE-NE-A-R
(mEih) 859,695 - - 71976 131,166 28,631 (375,171) 722,297
. Comprehensiv oss 2EFR:
~N Profitfoss) for the year Fpatl/ (B8) - - - - - - 2042 27,427
" Other comprehensive income/ B2l /(68)
(loss):
Changeinvalue of avallable-forsale Tt ES AR
financial assets [EE% - - - - > = s =
A Currency tran Iptiondifference HNErEEE - - (104,238) - - - (104,238)
\ |
Tot \‘\&omb}ehansive (loss)/income H(5R)/ hases
forthe\xear - - - (104,238) - - 27,421 (76,811)
« Transactionsr'th owners; HARARTNRE:
B ‘posalo Wl %h'pinterestsn HENBARERERER
\ utlossofcontrol Bk HRlE 20 = = o = 5 1,180 - 1,180
\/\K@p\ita 'ecnon r \ N IAER 3,652 - - - - (372) - 3,280
) /\\ \‘b ‘ ‘
T&Ia#%raﬁsacﬂonswnhowners" HERARTHNRS 3,652 - - - - 808 - 4,460
s At31\DEC§M§ER20]8 S S
863,347 - - (26,262) 131,166 29,439 (347,744) 649,946
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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—NF+ZA=+— EIJtiF

28 RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

OF THE GROUP (continued)

28 AEEH#EA AEBGRE®

Attributable to owners of the Company

”‘r =~

RAAEEAEE
Available-for-
sale financial Equity
assets  component Contributed
Share  revaluation  convertible  Exchange surplus Other Accumulated
premium reserve hond reserve reserve reserve losses Total
THEESR TRRES-
RORE EBEERRE REHD EifhE SARBEE Rtbfite ZithR oy
Note HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
it TAT T TAT T TAT T TE1 TAr
FOR THE YEAR ENDED HEZ-Z-t41-7
31 DECEMBER 2017 =t-HIEE
At 1 January 2017 R=E-t5-A-A 731,460 (209) 37,600 4379¢) 131,166 = (505,670) 350,551
Comprehensive loss: 2EFE:
Profit/loss) for the year Engfl/(B) - - - - - - 131,719 131,719
Other comprehensive income/  H#2E4KE/(58) :
(loss):
Change invalue of avallable-forsale AT ESREE
financial assets EES - 209 - - - - - 209
Currency translation difference INEREEE - - - 12772 - - - 121772
Total comprehensive income/ ER2ERS/
(expense) for the year (A% 2% - 9 - 121772 - -
Transactions with owners: SREAAETHRS -
Exercising of convertible bond A aRER 12823 - (37,600 - - -
Disposal of ownership interests -~ HEMBAAEAEERR
subsidiary without loss of control sk £ = = - - - 28,631
Capital contribution by non-controlling - —FMB AREERiER
interest of a subsidiary NE% - - - - - -
Totaltransactions with owners HEEAETNRSEE 128,235 - (37,600) - - 28631
At 31 December 2017 RZF-tF1+2A
=t-H 859,695 - - 71976 131,166 28,631

~L
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E - ZE— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 29 JEFERGREZS

The non-controlling interests of the Group are as follows: REE IR LA

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
RZB—NFE RZZT—tF
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Changsha China Minsheng DIT Limited AP RERDERFERA
("CM Changsha”) Al(REEADD 542,250 547,355
Hangzhou Linan China Minsheng DIT MG RER T ER T
Limited (“CM Hangzhou Linan”) BRAF([HREIMER]) 34,226 -
China Minsheng Drawin Technology RRERBI(BMN) BRAF
(Jiaozhou) Limited (“CM Jiaozhou") (TRRBIMN ) 26,115 =
Nanjing China Minsheng DIT Limited ARPREREHEEHEARA
(“CM Nanjing") A(THRERER] 5,032 4,252
China Minsheng Drawin Technology RRERBH (TR BRA
(Pingdingshan) Limited A ([PERFEBELD
("CM Pingdingshan”) - 9,310
607,623 560,917

In May 2018, the Group disposed 49% equity interest i) R-DZ—NFHEA AEBURELD

in CM Jiaozhou to a third party at a consideration of
approximately HK$29.0 million. The carrying amount
of the disposed equity interests in CM Jiaozhou on
the date of disposal was approximately HK$27.8
million. Resulted from this disposal, the Group has
recognised an increase in non-controlling interests of
- approximately HK$27.8 million and an increase in
equity attributable to owners of the Company of
appr?ximately HK$1.2 million.

on 1b October 2018, the Group and two third-parties
‘entered into an agreement to set up Hangzhou Linan
China ‘Mlnsheng DIT Limited (“CM Hangzhou Linan").
- The Grou h@lds 60% equity interest in CM Hangzhou
Linan asa syb5|d|ary. As at 31 December 2018, the
non-controlling interests have injected approximately

r f HK$3F 9 m|lhon paid-in capital.

29,000,000 7T # H 1A R R B K 49%
REHETFE=H HRHERHFE
B2 B 5 AR 1 BR 1 (B 49 27,800,000
B BRILIEHE AEERRHE
o0 {5 4 25 3% AN 49 27,800,000 7T © M Zx
NEHEBR A FE(G R 2 1E M%7 1,200,000
/%K"

RZZFE-—NF+ATH  NEBEHEFK
ZEZH RN BB ARSI Be 2R
RERBDEREARAT ([ RN
%)) e REBMMNF RMMNEEZR (KB
NANEBOBRIE - R —\F
+TZA=+—8 EERERTIED
33,900,000 8 T & AL -
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ncial Statements (Continued)
RE SRR MR (48)

December 2018 HE=—ZT—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued) 29 3E}ERRHEZS (&)

Summarised financial information on a subsidiary
with material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
the CM Changsha that has non-controlling interests that
are material to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position — CM

BEREAFEZREZNNEQAANMBEER
BME
TXHEITREDEEHASEMEBEX
HIEIER R R IS E R -

MHERREBE —FRRED

Changsha
As at AS at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R-ZB—NF RZZ—+F
+=—HA=+—8B +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current E
Assets BE 251,311 204,059
Liabilities afE (36,222) (58,373)
Total current net assets BREEEFE 215,089 145,686
Non-current IEFRE AN
Aszelts i{é 655,434 695,137 // \\\\\\
Liabilities BE = 8,513 // /| {
N A ‘
Total non-current net assets BIERBEEFE 655,434 671,624
:77, '
Net assets BEFE 870,523 817,310
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

Summarised statement of financial position — CM

Changsha (Continued)

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

29 FEFERGHERS (@)

BHRREME — FRRD (F)

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-_Z—N\§F BE_ZT—tF
+=—HA=+-—H -I—_ﬂf-t— =]
ILFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue WA 42,357 25,051
Loss before income tax MRS ATE B (18,690) (16,515)
Income tax credit FrigBii e 548 4,051
Other comprehensive income Hitt 2 Mk = -
Total comprehensive loss 2HEEAR (18,142) (12,464)

Total comprehensive loss allocated to S EZFEREZNEZEER
non-controlling interests #zE (8,890) (6,107)
ividends paid to non-controlling interests A JE 12 Bk 4 25 R A< B9 A% 2, - =
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
\ } -I-_H_-I- =] -l—_ﬂfﬂ- B
\ ‘ | L IEFEE IEFE
NE HK$'000 HK$000
“ FET FET

[NE

. Cash flows used in operating activities KEESMANRESRE (22,941) (24,977)
~Cash flows used in investing activities KETHMANIRES RS (30,788) (20,436)
sh flows from financing activities BMEEBAMEMNRSRE 55,808 45,770
ReKHASEEEBIGINFE 2,079 357
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

e IR ERAR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

30 ERIEFREH

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

R=ZB-N\F RZT—LF
+=A=+—-8B +t=-A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETL
Deferred tax assets BEERIEEE
— to be recovered after more than — B EBE 1218 A1 Uk El
12 months 11,521 20,751
— to be recovered within 12 months — B 1218 A AUk E 25,921 -
37,442 20,751
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE
— to be settled after more than 12 months — 4§88 128 A B &~ (651) (7,962)
— to be settled within 12 months — BR 12 A AER (7,359) -
(8,010) (7,962)
Deferred tax assets — net BEEMRIEEE — F58 29,432 12,789
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account RIEFTISIAR B R ARE BT -
is as follows:
Year ended Year ‘fendeq//
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-Z-N\F BE_ZT-tF
+=A=+—H
ILEE
HK$'000
FHET
At beginning of the year RELD (12,789)
Credited to profit or st B (FYat 12) ,
loss (Note 12) (17,812)
Disposal of subsidiary BB A A Vs
Currency translation differences INEATE E 5 - 1,169
At the end of the year REXR - (29,432)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E - ZE— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 30 REEFTSH @)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities RBEZE_E—N\FE-_E—tF+_H
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, without =+—RLEFE  BEMEHEERARBN
taking into consideration the offsetting of balance within gE)(WET MER — TSl AR A IE
the same tax jurisdiction are as follows: BAEER) AT ¢
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEFIEHAas

Fair value gains

arising from Depreciation
investment  Convertible  Government of fixed
properties bond Grant assets Total
REMEHEN EEEE
AAEENR RRES BFHE e Ftc)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F
—HR—H - - 7,962 - 7,962
Charged to profitor loss B EE - - 153 1,300 1,453
Currency translation NS E
differences - - (1,358) (47) (1,405)
At 31December2018 R=ZE-NE+=A
S—E = - 6,757 1,253 8,010
R=B—tF—A
—H 3,932 3,725 9,357 = 17,014
AR (4,066) (3,725) (1,981) - 9,772)
INEITE 2
134 = 586 = 720
R=EB-—t&+=A

Sr=E - - 7,962 = 7962
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE—Z— N\FE+_-_A=+—HBILFE

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) EEFRESH ®)

Deferred income tax assets EIEFEHRERE

Elimination of

intra-group
Movements BE Tax losses unrealised profit Total
BHEEER
BEER AREKREREF k]
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET FET FET
At 1 January 2018 R-ZE-N\F—A—H 17,092 3,659 20,751
Credit to profit or loss FAER 7,276 11,989 19,265
Currency translation INEIFTE ZRR
differences (1,969) (605) (2,574)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZE-NE+=A
=+-—H 22,399 15,043 37,442
At 1 January 2017 R=Z—-t&—-H—-H - 594 594
Credit to profit or loss STAER 21,762 2,921 24,683
Currency translation NI E E R
differences 763 144 907
Disposal of subsidiary HEHB AR (5,433) = (5,433)
At 31 December 2017 R=B—tH+=A
=+-H 17,092 3,659 \20,751 RS
Deferred tax assets arising from the unused tax losses have i 7 1E R SRR T a F S B IE R TR - Fb“’\$ “

been recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow such
deferred tax assets to utilised this year in the consolidated

financial statements.

FEER

ARBABIAERE LA
ERBEEECNZEMHRER

ﬁ?ﬁaﬁ

’r

Nt AS AR  AREEES

The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets relating to n=

unused tax losses of approximately HK$140.0 million on 31 T u{Jﬁfﬁﬂi@J%mIﬁﬁ%ﬁE’JLL%Rlﬁééﬁ’J
December 2018 (31 December 2017: approximately 140 000,000 Tt (=& t¢+_ ;
HK$205.8 million). Among such tax losses HK$113.2 million : #9205,800, 000/%75)

(31 December 2017: HK$117.8 million) have no expiry dates 5‘1113 200,000 7% 71:( ZE t &

and the remaining will expire within five years. _—I— EI
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31 EZNRHMEMNRIE

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

R-ZE-N\F —E—tF

+=ZA=+-A +=ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade payables — related parties o EMNTE —BEL 5,135 8,740

Trade payables — third parties HOENFIE—8=H 124,382 77,281

Notes payable ANES 114,365 2,299
Accrued payable for property, plant and equipment — #¥1% « BE iR B2 R E R 508

construction — third parties — =5 40,970 105,068
Accrued payable for property, plant and equipment ~ #1% - BE R R EEREN A

construction — related parties — &R 66,238 24,484

Accrued tax payable e IS RIE 31,940 1,671

Deposits Z& 8,639 3,076

Accrued payroll fEstTE 6,264 18,927

Amounts due to related parties (Note 36(c)) FEH A 5 2B (Bt 36(c)) 4,611 =

Interest payable FERFIS 375 -

Others Hith 10,894 24,991

413,813 266,537

The aging analysis of trade payables as at 31 December BoORENFBEBR_SE—N\ER_ZE—+45F

2018 and 2017 based on the invoice issue date are as
follows:

+= A=t BIREIARE A HOER I
T -

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

R=ZB—NF RZZT—+tF

+=A=+—-8 +t=ZA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FEr

Lesls than 1 year DR 129,517 86,021
| > y A}; at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the fair values of trade E’\ E-NFRZE—tF+ZA=+—
\ \and other p?yables approximate their carrying amounts. "B 5 &ﬁmlﬁﬁmlﬁiﬁ’] AR EEEEER

“'M, Eﬁm”°
1l

5 at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the carrying amounts of E’\ —NERZE—tF+=ZA=+—

: re and \other payables are primarily denominated in

: f’f%&ﬁ@%ﬁmlﬁﬁ’lﬁﬁﬁﬁixuj\
E?ﬁﬁ'ﬂﬁ ¢
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 = —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HItFE

32 BORROWINGS 32 88
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
RZBE-NE RIZT—+F
+=—A=+—8B +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current, secured: JEBNHER - HEA -
— Bank borrowings —RITER 361,790 119,630
Non-current, unsecured: JERNER - KA -
— Other financial institution borrowings — HE e mEEE R 22,826 -
384,616 119,630
Less: Current portion of non-current B REMEZRBIER S
borrowings (43,940) (17,944)
Non-current, total JEBNHER - 4ast 340,676 101,686
Current, secured: BNHER - A -
— Bank borrowings —RITER 77,721
Current, unsecured: BNER - ETEEW :
— Bank borrowings —RITER 34,239
111,960
Current portion of non-current borrowings & Hf& & &9 ENEREE 5 43,940

Current, total BNER - 485t 155,900




China Minsheng DIT Group Limited 3 2018 Annual Report

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A B ISR R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

( Il‘, ~

32 BORROWINGS (continued)

note a:

note b:

note c:

note d:

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

32 {BE @)

. December 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

These bank borrowings of the Group are secured by property, Hizta - ZK%.EI’JEZ%%ETTQ AAREEHYE - BE
plant and equipment (Note 15), land use rights (Note 16) and H4E (MEsE15) « Lt fE RE (MisE16) RZHR
restricted cash deposit (Note 26) of the Group and/or %Uiﬂﬁﬁ R (H5E26) fESEM RS HARTH
guaranteed by a subsidiary of the Company or a related party B /8 2 &) sk BB B 7 SR L HE AR (B EE36(D)) °
(Note 36(h)).
The borrowings are all denominated in RMB and their fair HiaFb . FAEBEHYUARENE  RAABEEALR
values approximate their carrying amounts. HEEE °
As at 31 December 2018, the Group's current borrowings Hiatc: RZE—N\F+-A=+—8 KEENIEB
included borrowings with principal amounts of HK$99,178,000 BEEREARLTEA99,178,0008 T (T —+4F
(31 December 2017: nil) which the Group has breached certain +Z—A=1+—R:T)MEE  AEERZEE
terms and conditions, as set out in the respective borrowing ERETBREIEBEH(ENEBEERS) &
agreements among which HK$53,926,000 were originally F539260008 T RER=_ZZE—NFE+=A
matured beyond 31 December 2019. =+—BZESIH -
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s borrowings Witd : R=Z—N\FER=FT—+tF+=-A=+—8"
were repayable as follows: AEBENEEEBBROT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R-ZB—N\F RIZE—tF
+=A=+-—8H +ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Within 1 year —FA 155,900 17,944
Later than 1 year but within 2 years ZR—FRLRMF 283,897 35,889
Later than 2 years but within 5 years ZHAMERLRAF 56,779 65,797
496,576 119,630
. The weighted average effective interest rates as at 31 Hite: BE_Z-—N\FR-_T—+tF+_A=+—H

HEF D EERFIR T -

\
Bank bor;F ngs RITIRE
Other financial institution borrowings HEib o rigiEER

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R=-ZB—N\F R-ZE—tF
+=B=t+—H +=A=+—H
4.98% 5.09%

4.40% =
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

33 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASE 33 MEHEE

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

R=B—N\FE RoT—L7F
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHEIT

Obligations under finance lease BMERE 4,404 -
Less: Current portion of obligations under 33 : & A EENEAEL 5

finance lease (1,524) -

Non-current, total JEBNER - 4B%E 2,880 -

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had certain equipments RZ-ZE—N\F+ZA=+—H AEBEEBERHE
under finance lease with net carrying amount of HK$4.9  JF#{E744,900,0008 L (ZF—+F : T)WE TR
million (2017: Nil) and the future minimum lease payments EBHERBEARARKFEHEMNFT(BEFE) - &
(including interest), and the present value of the minimum  BEHEKEEENKOIREWT :

lease payments under finance lease were as follows:

Present values

Minimum of minimum
lease lease
payments payments
2018 2018 AN\
RERE S

REHAESR
—B-N\F
HK$'000
FET

Within 1 year —F R 2,075
In the second year E_F 2,952
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoEFRFT (BEERWT) 53

Total st 5,080

Less: amounts repayable within one year g : B —FANEEZIE (2,075)
[

Long-term portion RHE S 3,005
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E - ZE— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 4 FERSRERMGE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) cash used in operations (a) KREMARSE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2018 2017
BE-2-N\F BE_F—+F
+t=A=+—-RB +t=A=1—H

ILFEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEr
Profit before income tax bR TS B & 26,243 112,597
Adjustments for: HEE
Depreciation e 50,360 42,357
Amortisation of intangible assets and A B N b PR 8
land use rights 10,508 12,772
Fair value (gains)/losses on REEEENDAAREBE
investment properties (Yezk), /B8 (367) 18,337
Shares of losses from associates FE(LEE & N R ES 1R 1,329 -
Fair value (gains)/losses on financial INARBEFEAEEE
assets at fair value through profit FAFABENSREE
and loss AAEE W) EE (2,789) 413
Provision for inventories impairment 7(_ 5 R B 1,324 -
Impairment loss on trade and B 5 R H A R GRIBRE
other receivables &8 1,633 -
Losses on disposal of equipments HERENEIR 930 -
Interest income from bank deposits RITIFFEF EUA (2,359) (2,081)
Interest expenses FEMAXZ 9,155 17,272
Recovery of trade and other receivables g[8 & 5 K H i i Y 7k 18 - (30,488)
Gains on disposal of HERTESRERE
available-for-sale financial assets EollE - (5,820)

~ . Gains on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A A Y e = (212,334)




34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

TREKEENREEERAT P =

—N\EER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
mE R MR (&

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Cash used in operations (Continued)

(a) KEmARE(H)

—NF+ZA=+— Elitif

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-ZE— N\ HE_ZT—+F
+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
IEFE 1EFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Operating profit/(loss) before EEESEBATHLE
changes in working capital B8R,/ (E8) 95,967 (46,975)
Increase in restricted cash Z PR HIZR S 3E 0 (24,036)
Increase in inventories FEEMm (18,810) (120,665)
Increase in trade and other receivables & 5 I E th & Uk 018 A I
and prepayments TR SRIEIE hN (273,122) (154,684)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N Eo A e A BRI N 147,197 178,611
Increase in contract liabilities AHBEE 17,558 -
Increase in advances from customers TEU R B SRIE L AN = 85,887
Decrease on financial BEARBEGEAR
assets at fair value through FE)ET AIBRNESR
profit or loss BERD = 44,555
S
Cash used in operations RemARE (55,246) (13 271) ,;2/ ‘\?\9\\\
RN
Non-cash operating activities disclosed are HK$13.4 (b) Fﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ“%/ﬁﬁﬁﬁ 400 9(50 [

millions of notes receivables endorsed in 2018 which

led to decrease of trade payables.

BEIR-_ZE-/\FEENE
HEHEZRNFERD

mTF
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e BRI (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-ZT— N\F+_A=+—HILFE

34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 4 FERERERME @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Liabilities arising from financing activities (c) BETHEEMNERS
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
HthEE RETHELNEE
Obligations  Obligations
under under

finance finance
Restricted  Borrowings  Borrowings  leasedue  lease due

cashfor  duewithin  due after within after  Interest
Cash  horrowings 1year 1year 1year 1year payable Total
—-Eh -Ef
SR -Efh -Ef  UHEE  UHRE
Be RefiE  HHRE  HHRE g HE  EfFS @it
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
AT T T TEL T A1 A AT
Net debt as at RZE-tE+Zf
31 December 2017 =+-BNEFEE 582,511 = (17.944) (101,686) = = = 462,881
Cash flows Reng (459,407) 130,000 2901 (353,369) - - @7 71229
Acqusitions — finance lease Wi — RLATRE - - - - (1,524) (2,380) - (4,400
Foreign exchange adjustments 3 5% (12302) - - 5,500 - - - (6,802)
Other changes -0} -3
— Reclassification from after — E ERETNE
1 year to within 1year B-ER = - (108,879) 108,879 - - - -
Net debt as at R=B-NF1ZR
31 December 2018 St-RNFEE 110802 130,000 (1559000 (340,676) (1,524) (2.880) (375 (260553




35 COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

TREABENREEERAT ¥ - N\FFER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e IR ERAR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, capital
expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred is as
follows:

(a)

35 &R

BEREYE
RZE-—NFEZZE—tF+=H
=+—H BEFNEHRREEMNER
AT :

As at AS at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

R=B—N\F KTt
+=A=+-8 +=A=+-H

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FE&T

Property, plant and equipment Y% - B RS 83,300 44,220
Operating lease commitments (b) REHERE

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the future
aggregate minimum rental expenses in respect of
certain office buildings held under non-cancellable
operating leases are payable in the following periods:

RZE—NFERZZE—tF+= A
=+t—H BETAIBCHLEZEHER
EETHAZEFR T ERERMN
HeREHEeAZBENAT

As at As at
31 December 31 December

2018 200 /N
R=B-NF R-T—HF /O

/

+=A=+-8 +=A=#+—-8 /

HK$'000 HK$'000/
FET B/
Within 1 year R—FRA 7,835 ’
1to 5 years —ERF 10,833

18,668

NN
O
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Name and relationship with related parties

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

36 BAESFRS

(@) BBEFHNEBREEBRE

Name
=L

Relationship
2fES

China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd

PRERBRRA]

China Minsheng Drawin Construction
Technology Group Company Limited
(formerly known as China Minsheng
Drawin Construction Co., Ltd)

PRERBRHUEEEER QA
(AT - PRERKZHZRBRAT)

Zhejiang China Minsheng Drawin
Technology Company Limited
IR RERBIRAR AR

China Minsheng Drawin Building
Technology Group Company Limited
(formerly known as China Minsheng
Drawin Building Technology
Company Limited)

PRERFEEMREEER QA
(FifE : PREREEREBERA
al)

Tianjin China Minsheng Drawin
Technology Limited
REFRERBEBRAA

China Minsheng Drawin Architectural
. Design Limited
EPE% *E@ﬁ?&ﬁr*ﬁﬁﬁ

Controlled by the same ultimate holding company (China Minsheng
Investment Corp., Ltd)
ZA—E&EERAR (FBRRERERMNBR AR ZH

Controlled by the same ultimate holding company (China Minsheng
Investment Corp., Ltd)

XRA-RREERAR (FERERERNER DR ZH

An associate company of the Group

REEEEEE A F]
Controlled by the same ultimate holding company (China Minsheng
Investment Corp., Ltd)

XRA-RAREERAR (FERERERNAER DR ZH

Controlled by the same ultimate holding company (China Minsheng
Investment Corp., Ltd)
ZR—EREERA R (FRRERERMDBRAR)ZH]

Controlled by the same ultimate holding company (China Minsheng
Investment Corp., Ltd)
ZR—EREZERA R (FRRERERNDBRRAR)ZH]
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e IR ERAR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #& —ZE— \F+-A=+—HIFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 AEFRXS #®)

(Continued)

(@) Name and relationship with related parties () BEEIHNEBREHERE)
(Continued)
Name Relationship
£1B B

Hunan China Minsheng Drawin Green
Construction Investment Limited

W RER R ERR AT

China Minsheng Drawin New Material
Company Limited
PRERFMBERRAA

Jiacheng (Holding) Investment Limited

B (ERRERRAR

China Minsheng Drawin Technology
Industry Limited
PRERMREXZRARAR]

China Minsheng Drawin Culture Co. -
Ltd
PRERNEIBER AT

YMCI China Minsheng Kunming
Technology Group Co. - Ltd
EEARTREZREARAA

SRE Group Limited

ES

7

LESEERRAF

Controlled by the same ultimate holding company (China Minsheng
Investment Corp., Ltd)
ZA—E&EERAR (FRREERERMNBR AR Z ]

Controlled by the same ultimate holding company (China
Minsheng Investment Corp., Ltd)
ZE—ERLZERATR(FERAEREROER AR 4

Controlled by the same ultimate holding company (China
Minsheng Investment Corp., Ltd)
ZE—FERLZERAT (FERAEREROER AR 24

Controlled by the same ultimate holding company (China
Minsheng Investment Corp., Ltd)
ZE—ERLZERAT (FERAEREROER AR 24

Controlled by the same ultimate holding company (China

R
Minsheng Investment Corp., Ltd) \3
ZE—FERLZERAT (FERAEREROER AR 24 _,/ |
| ,;f/ -
An associate company of the Group /// [
-] N 4

W
I

inshe

'/
y/
7/

Controlled by the same ultimate holding company (China
Investment Corp., Ltd) '
RR—HREERAR (FRERERERNERAT))E
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e AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(b)

Transactions with related parties

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has the

following related party transactions:

—NEFE+ZA=+—HILFE

(b)
REE
FERBE—

36 BAESRS (&

7)

EU) P p )
—2-\F+=A=+-AL

B LF+=A=+—
AL  AEEEATHESRS

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-Z— N\ BE-_Z—tF
+=A=+-H +=ZA=+—H
LFE IEFE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHAEIT
Payment on behalf of related AEBRREES X
parties by the Group
China Minsheng Drawin Construction — fFR&EKEZHREIEH
Technology Group Limited BIRAT] 25,308 36,422
China Minsheng Drawin New Material R RERFMBR A 7
Company Limited 2,098 =
Tianjin China Minsheng Drawin RERRERBHEBRAF]
Technology Limited 332 =
China Minsheng Drawin Architectural ~ FRREZEKEERITEARE R
Design Limited 46 1,387
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd FRERBRAT 34 -
Hunan China Minsheng Drawin Green i REKFEIRE
Construction Investment Limited BRAH 15 1,058
27,833 38,867
~ . _Payment on behalf of the Group by BEAFRKAEER
related parties X1
Chi’nq Minsheng Drawin Construction R REKEHREHEER
Teohnology Group Limited BRAA] 1,696 108
Chin l\/lmsheng Drawin Building RRALEEREEER
Technology Group Company Limited BRAE] 101 -
|
l 1,797 128

[ DlspOSaI of a subS|d|ary
j h China Mmsheng Drawin

HE—EHEAR

REFRERMRERAT

62,232




36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EERAESNRS (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2018 and the REZE

TREXEBENREEERAT ¥ Z2—

NEFIR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has the

following related party transactions:

e IR R AR MY R

—NF+ZA=+—RLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —=

36 FAERFRS &)

Il‘/ =~

—E-N\F+_A=+—H1t
FERHE_ZT—+tFt+_-_A=1+—

BIEFE  AEEEUATHELIRS :

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
BE-Z-—N\F BE_T—tHF
+=ZHA=+—-H +=ZHA=+—H
LEE IEEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Supply of prefabricated AEBHEERERAEE
construction components and BRHRER
products by the Group
China Minsheng Drawin Construction  AFREZEAKZEXRFIFREER
Technology Group Limited BIRAQA 122,149 27,853
Zhejiang China Minsheng Drawn I RERBHER AT
Technolgy Limited 11,246 -
China Minsheng Drawin Building RRALEEREEER
Techology Group Company Limited BRAR] 6,994
YMCI China Minsheng Kunming ERREPREER K
Technology Group Co., Ltd. BRAT 2,916
China Minsheng Drawn Co., Ltd. FRERKBRATR 39
143,344
EPC general contracting services BEEARYE  BMERRHE
for property, plant and REEPCHARBRKE
equipment provided by the
related parties
China Minsheng Drawin Construction — FARZEREZRBREER
Technology Group Limited BRAT 392,879
China Minsheng Drawin Architectural  f REE K EEER AR D
Design Limited 1,301
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd PRERBRAF 355

394,535
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E - ZE— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 BAEAXS &)
(Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (b) EEBAESNRS (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2018 and the REBEZZT-—NF+_A=+—HIE
nine months ended 31 December 2017, the Group FEREBEZT—tF+ZA=1+—
has the following related party transactions: HIEhEA  NEBEUNTEERR
5
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

BE-Z2-\F BE_T—tF
+t=ZA=+—-B +t-A=+—H

LFEE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Revenue from granting licenses to [ BFE# 5 355 H R H i
related parties FEREmMERE
YMCI China Minsheng Kunming ERREPREER K
Technology Construction BRAT 36,874 -
China Minsheng Drawin Architectural I RE K ZER AR A
Design Limited 179 =
37,053 -

Guarantee for bank borrowings BB RENRITEERR
provided by the related party
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd RRELKEGRA A 173,476 47,852
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RE SRR MR (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 &Z —Z— \F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 AEFRXS #®)

China Minsheng Drawin New Material R RZERKFHMEE A A

Company Limited 3,666
China Minsheng Drawin Architectural ~ FREREZEKEELRETEE QA

Design Limited 1,934
China Minsheng Drawin Technology FREARBEEEARAR

Industry Limited 1,141
Hunan China Minsheng Drawin Green il RERGFEREER

Construction Investment Limited NE] 1,059
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. PRELERAR 955
Tianjin China Minsheng Drawin REFRERBEBRAA

Technology Limited 59
China Minsheng Drawin Culture Co., RREAETAIBRAF

Ltd. 36
SRE Group Limited FEEEBERAA it

(Continued)
(c) Related-party balances (c) BAERL#EER
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R=ZB-—NF R_T—+tF
+=A=+-H +=—A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Amount due from related parties  FEUIRIH 5 7B
China Minsheng Drawin Construction — Rk ZRRIEE
Technology Group Limited. BRAR] 83,674 46,228
China Minsheng Drawin Building FREXFEERHEEHE
Technology Group Company BRAR
Limited 20,561 29,136
Zhejiang China Minsheng Drawin IR REAFRIE AR A A
Technology Limited 9,080 =
YMCI China Mingsheng Kunming EEBRTREERFAR
Technology Group Co., Ltd. NE] 5,705 =
Jiacheng (Holding) Investment Limited — F 3 (FA%) I EBR A ) 5,000 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-ZT— N\F+_A=+—HILFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 BAEARS (#)
(Continued)
(c) Related-party balances (Continued) (c) PBAEL#HER(E)
As at AS at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

R=B—N\F H-F—+7F
+=A=+-R +=A=+-R

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Amount due to related parties TR S R E
China Minsheng Drawin Construction — fREEKERRIE £ E
Technology Group Limited BRAT 70,498 24,484
Zhejiang China Minsheng Drawin T RERBHETERAT]
Technology Company Limited 2,430 8,465
China Minsheng Drawin Architectural AR K EELTEE QA
Design Limited 2,327 =
China Minsheng Drawin Co., Ltd. FRERBRATA 615 -
China Minsheng Drawin Building FREXFERBEESGR
Technology Group Company Limited NS 114 275
75,984 33,224
The amounts due from and due to related parties are FEWREMNBEEF KRB AERKE . ¢
unsecured, bear no interest and are repayable on BRBERERES -

demand.
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RE SRR MR (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #& —ZE— \F+-A=+—HIFE

36 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 BEAXS &)
(Continued)
(d) Key management compensation d FEEEAEMS
Key management includes directors (executive and TEEBEAEBREST(RITRIEHR
non-executive), chief financial officer, vice presidents 1) EFEMBEE BIEFEREED
and assistant presidents. The compensation paid or BepEERBENNENETEZER
payable to key management for employee services is AERMEYIRET :
shown below:
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017

BE-2-N\T BRE-Tt%
+=A=+-8 +t=A=t+-8

ILEE IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other short-term e kHMEEERA
employee benefits 6,202 6,453
Employer’s contribution to pension  {& = BRI & 5T 21 3
scheme 9 18

6,211 6,471
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #E - ZE— \F+-_A=+—HILFE

37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 37 AATREBBHRRREESE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE

COMPANY
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R-ZB-NE RZZT—+F
+=A=+-8B +t-A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MR 6 353
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR E 14,271 14,271
14,277 14,624
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables and B 5 N E A W IE DA K TR
prepayments ~FRIE 1,485,643 1,244,649
Cash and cash equivalents B MR EEIER 31,866 295,751
1,517,509 1,540,400
Total assets HWEE 1,531,786 1,555,024
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of KAGHEE AEEER
the Company
Share capital N 1,120,960 1,120,960
Reserves (note (a)) & (Mt @) 408,400 432,017
" Total equity AR 1,529,360 1,552,977
IABILITIES a1
rent liabilities REBEE
~Trade and other payables B 5 N E M E R IR 2,426 2,047
otal liabilities BEAH 2,426 2,047
N \
 Total equﬁty and liabilities BEEEAE 1,531,786 1,555,024
The statement of financial position of the Company was AR BRARR =T —NLEFE=A
. approved by thE Board of Directors on 29 March 2019 and —thH W%$%‘?ﬁt)’§ WA TEEAR
- was signed on its behalf by: BEEEHE
CIERN [¥inun Yang Hongwei ME BEfE
TN bireCtorfw Director E E
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RE SRR MR (48)

37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

note:

(@  Reserve movements of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #& —ZE— \F+-A=+—HIFE

37 ARRINBMBRARRKMELE

(#)

Kt -

(@ A2AFENRE2D

Available-for-
sale financial ~ Convertible
assets bond  Contributed
Share  revaluation — equity surplus  Accumulated
premium reserve  component reserve losses Total
AfHE
SREEER  TRERES #A
RPEE fkE - ERD BHRE RiER “am
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 R=E—tF-H—-H 686,890 (209) 37,600 157,955 (537,688) 344,548
Loss for the year FRESE = = = = (3,375) (3,375)
Other comprehensive income:  Ef2EKA
Changes in fair value of A HESREER
available-for-sale financial MREBEED
assets - 209 - - - 209
Total comprehensive loss for &R % EEELEE
the year - 209 = = (3.379) (3,166)
Transactions with ownersin E#&EA (LEHEEA
their capacity as owners B3 BITHR S
Exercising of convertible bond  7{# AT AR B 128,235 - (37,600) -
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+ZA
Er=F 815,125 - - 157,955 (541,063)
Loss for the year FRER - - - = (23,617)
Other comprehensive income/  E#r2EIKRA,/
(loss): (B#8) : - - = =
Total comprehensive lossfor — ERZHEEEE )
the year - - = = (23,617)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+ZA e
=+—H 815,125 - - 157,955 - (564,680)
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HFEBEHRE

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group forthe ANEBENBEREEE HRENELE  SERE
last five years/period is as follows: BT
For the period
For the year from 1 April For the year Fortheyear  For the year
ended 2015 t0 ended ended ended
31March  31December  31December  31December 31 December
2015 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-RE
BE mA—H BE Y Bz
“T-RF E-T-0F SN “TtF —E-N\F
ERET=E T=AET—6 T=HET—6 T=HZ=T—6 TSH=T=E
HFE il HFE IEFE LFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET AT FET FET
Results x5
Revenue WA 455 347 37,042 216,587 545,377
Profit/(loss) before income tax B FTERATHEFI,/
(B8) (4,795) (194,755) (90,409) 112,597 30,325
Income tax (expense)/credit IR (A% #e @17) 1,546 (10,889) 11,224 (6,903)
‘ Profit/(loss) for the period/year 07,/ EE5F|,/
(B#8) (5212) (193,209) (101,298) 123,821 19,340
\\Profit/( Iosrs ) attributable to ARREE ARG
N owner$ of the Company BH/(EE) (5,212) (193,209) (101,136) 131,719 27,427
As at As at As at As at As at
31March  31December  31December 31 December 31 December
2015 2015 2016 2017 2018
RZE—1F RIT—1F RIT—FF RIZT- E RZE-N\E
=A=+—-H +zZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H +=A=t+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N FET FET AT FET FET
 EEREHE
N BEE 352,152 1,672,566 2,425,233 2,867,988 3,358,006
} HEE (5,638) (203,999) (500,045) (462,594) 949,477
BEnEs 346,514 1,468,567 1,925,188 2,405,394 2,378,529
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